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From: Lyda Puleston 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Nitrate Poisoned Water 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:20:20 AM 


Previous actions have FAILED and our water is contaminated. 


We need mandatory requirements to reduce nitrogen fertilizer application rates; require cover crops and perennial
 vegetation; and require the capture and treatment of drain tile discharges.  But most importantly you must restrict
 nitrogen fertilizer 


Lyda Puleston 
4841 Washburn Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55410 



mailto:lydapuleston@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






From: Herb Davis 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Response to Nitrogen fertilizer rule 
Date: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 9:24:34 AM 


In Todd county and many others the frozen sandy soil and the high pollution in the
 Sauk River watershed should prohibit placing nitrogen fertilizers when the ground
 is frozen. The lakewater in the area and the Sauk river are foaming with manure
 and smells during spring runoff. 


Please reduce runoff and require that the ground be tillable when high
 nitrogen(manure) is spread. 


Thanks 


Herbert Davis 
12474 County 100 
Sauk Centre,MN 56378 



mailto:davisherb73@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Wayne Richardson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 6:10:11 PM 


Clean drinking water is something all Minnesotans need every day.  The proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Management
 Rule does not go far enough to protect our drinking water and our health. MDA’s proposal, based largely on the
 recommendations of the 2015 Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP), fails to require direct action to
 address groundwater contamination. 


1)  Wrong Triggers to Action--Contaminating Drinking Water Shouldn’t Be An Option. MDA’s proposal fails to
 require nitrogen management practices until 10 % or more of private wells violate the safe drinking water standard,
 or until public wells approach the health risk limit or an exceedance is imminent AND MDA finds that Best
 Management Practice (BMP) adoption rate criteria are not met. MDA must require practices, standards, treatment,
 and restrictions to prevent nitrate pollution in all unconfined groundwater, not just in areas where many wells are
 already contaminated. We need to prevent and address nitrate contamination - elevated nitrate levels in shallow,
 unconfined groundwater, and private well or public drinking water supply sources must trigger mandatory action. 


2)  Slow-walking Mandatory Action is Unacceptable. Necessary actions will be further impeded by a phased
 approach for moving from voluntary BMPs to mandatory groundwater protection requirements. For example, after
 MDA has identified an area with nitrate contamination (using the above unacceptable triggers), the NFMP proposes
 a 14-step process that unnecessarily delays mandatory requirements and further promotes voluntary BMPs. 26 years
 is already far too long and that mandatory requirements must being now where nitrate is elevated in groundwater,
 wells, or drinking water source areas.. 


3)  We Need Clean Groundwater, not Adoption of Ineffective BMPs. MDA only proposes mandatory use of the
 same nitrogen BMPs that have proven to be ineffective over the past 26 years.  Once these BMPs are adopted,
 either voluntarily or via regulation, MDA will require nothing more, regardless of whether groundwater
 contamination exists or not. MDA must prepare mandatory requirements demonstrated to work: reducing nitrogen
 fertilizer application rates; requiring cover crops and perennial vegetation; and requiring the capture and treatment
 of drain tile discharges. 


4)  Township Boundaries Are Not Contamination Boundaries. MDA proposes to restrict nitrogen fertilizer
 application only in townships where 50% or more of the land is vulnerable. Drinking water sources are not defined
 by political boundaries and MDA must restrict application in all vulnerable areas regardless of township
 boundaries. 


Wayne Richardson 
1613 20th Ave. NE 
Rochester, MN 55906 



mailto:wdmacr@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Chet Rick 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 9:10:40 PM 


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


Chet Rick 
5041 williston rd Mtka, Mn. 
Minnetonka, MN 55345 



mailto:waterman407@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Virginia Roach 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:42:19 PM 


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


Virginia Roach 
4300 West River Road South 
Minneapolis, MN 55406 3678 



mailto:vbrlola@usfamily.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Blaine Rowland 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:13:25 PM 


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


Blaine Rowland 
1590 Wellesley Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55105 



mailto:cblaine131@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






From: Jim Rudolph
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA)
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:30:22 PM


Clean drinking water is something all Minnesotans need every day.  The proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Management
 Rule does not go far enough to protect our drinking water and our health. MDA’s proposal, based largely on the
 recommendations of the 2015 Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP), fails to require direct action to
 address groundwater contamination.
       
1)      Wrong Triggers to Action--Contaminating Drinking Water Shouldn’t Be An Option. MDA’s proposal fails to
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
       
2)      Slow-walking Mandatory Action is Unacceptable. Necessary actions will be further impeded by a phased
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
       
3)      We Need Clean Groundwater, not Adoption of Ineffective BMPs. MDA only proposes mandatory use of the
 same nitrogen BMPs that have proven to be ineffective over the past 26 years.  Once these BMPs are adopted,
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


4)      Township Boundaries Are Not Contamination Boundaries. MDA proposes to restrict nitrogen fertilizer
 application only in townships where 50% or more of the land is vulnerable. Drinking water sources are not defined
 by political boundaries and MDA must restrict application in all vulnerable areas regardless of township
 boundaries.


Jim Rudolph
3412 19th Ave. S
Minneapolis, MN 55407



mailto:rudol058@umn.edu

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Cindy Salyers 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:07:44 PM 


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


Cindy Salyers 
427 8th Ave SE 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 



mailto:cbsalyers@comcast.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Donna Sandon 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 11:50:33 AM 


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


Donna Sandon 
48804 506th St. 
Courtland, MN 56021 



mailto:dlsandon@newulmtel.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Paul Sauer 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:51:16 PM 


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


Paul Sauer 
15766 Village Woods Dr 
Eden Prairie, MN 55347 



mailto:psauer@ecs-sales.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 
 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Gladys Schmitz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:55:10 PM 


This is a very serious and urgent  matter and I urge you to take very careful note of this letter! 
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


Gladys Schmitz 
170 Good Counsel Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001 



mailto:gschmitz@ssndcp.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 
   


 
 


 
 


From: Dan Schmitz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: MDA N Rule 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 5:02:38 PM 
Attachments: MDA N Rule comment.pdf 


Larry,
 


Please see attached.
 


Best regards,
 


Dan Schmitz
 



mailto:daniel.schmitz@newulmtel.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






Daniel Schmitz 
Top Crop Ag Consulting 
12222 400th Ave 
Springfield, MN 56087 
 
 
January 29, 2016 
 
Larry Gunderson 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
625 Robert Street North, St. Paul, MN, 55155 
larry.gunderson@state.mn.us 
 
RE: Comments on the proposed MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. 
 
Thank you for considering my comments on the proposed MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. I have three main 
concerns with this rule. 
 
1. The process for using domestic wells for determining if groundwater has been impacted by fertilizer 
nitrogen use is completely flawed. Domestic wells are subject to poor construction, unknown condition, 
and contamination from multiple sources that are unrelated to commercial agricultural use of nitrogen and 
are an unreliable indicator of ground water contamination from nitrogen fertilizer use. The MDA should 
research and consider the reasons why the state of Nebraska, which has documented high nitrate levels in 
groundwater, uses only dedicated monitoring wells for water quality monitoring of agricultural application 
and has completely rejected the use of both domestic and irrigation wells for monitoring nitrate in 
groundwater. 
 
2. The prescribed nitrogen fertilizer use rates for corn developed by the U of M are far too narrow to have 
practical application for the wide and diverse soils, topography, climate, and management abilities of the 
Minnesota agricultural landscape. The nitrogen evaluation strips that the MDA implemented with multiple 
Minnesota farmers a few years ago shows this to absolutely be the case: Many of the locations showed 
optimum rates both above and below University BMP rates. I am amazed how often I am sitting in a 
university extension program meeting and the nitrogen rates used to achieve optimal production are well 
above what the “Nitrogen Use Calculator” would dictate for corn production in Minnesota. 
 
3. The social costs have not been established. Minnesota farmers continue to raise the bar on nitrogen use 
efficiency. Farm yields continue to increase while nitrogen use in the state has remained relatively 
constant. To impose restrictions on their ability to economically and logistically produce a crop for a 
growing population would be a human injustice. We produce and sell millions of cars in this country every 
year knowing that a certain fraction of the population will die in automobile collisions, yet we continue the 
production; what are the documented deaths or illness from nitrate poisoning? I have not seen a single 
report of methemoglobinemia in Minnesota for the thirty years I have been in the Ag industry. 
 
I believe this rule needs further careful scrutiny before implementation. The methods proposed for triggering 
nitrogen use restrictions are flawed. The nitrogen use rate restrictions proposed under the rule are too narrow. The 
social costs of this rule have not been adequately considered. I suggest a series of public hearings be held to gather 
further input from the citizens of Minnesota and the ag community. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 



Dan Schmitz 





mailto:larry.gunderson@state.mn.us









  
 


  
   


 
 


   
 


  
    


    
       


 
 


      
 


           
   


 
             


             
           


           
            


          
              


 
 


                
             


         
                  


            
           


         
 


               
             


              
                


                 
               


               
 


             
               


                    
           


 
 


  
 


  


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






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: David Schuchman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 5:59:13 AM 


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


David Schuchman 
1712 Fillmore Street NE 
Minneapolis, MN 55413 
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From: Steve Schultz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:40:38 PM 


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


Steve Schultz 
1225 Ingerson Rd 
Arden Hills, MN 55112 
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From: Bonita Schwartz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:57:33 PM 


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


Bonita Schwartz 
13376 Elaine Ct 
Savage, MN 55378 
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From: Joan Seitz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:31:39 AM 


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


Joan Seitz 
325 Edgewood Ave 
Stillwater, MN 55082 
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From: Janet Shannon 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 4:22:49 PM 


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


Janet Shannon 
7250 York .ave ........s 
Apt 103 
Edina, MN 55435 
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From: Rebecca Shockley 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 9:39:13 PM 


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


Rebecca Shockley 
18 Barton Ave SE 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 
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From: Colleen Simmons 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 7:59:08 AM 


As a mother of daughters who knows young girls are physically maturing earlier and earlier, I have prioritized
 choosing foods WITHOUT nitrites and other additives for years. NOW, to find out we are not preventing nitrites
 from entering our water supply--makes my personal efforts moot! Government needs to take action on things
 individuals cannot personally control! Do we want a Flint, Michigan-type situation by permitting "some" to suffer
 contamination as long as "the majority" are not contaminated? That's how the current legislation reads to me. 


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


Colleen Simmons 
5917 Grass Lake Ter 
Minneapolis, MN 55419 
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From: Connie Slaten 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:38:17 AM 


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


Connie Slaten 
1709 Pine St. 
Hastings, MN 55033 
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From: Reid Smith 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 9:54:52 PM 


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


Reid Smith 
45 Green Apple Rd 
La Crescent, MN 55947 
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From: Mary Snell 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 7:03:38 PM 


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


Mary Snell 
2205 Xanthus Ln N 
Plymouth, MN 55447 
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From: Bruce Snyder 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 7:23:28 PM 


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


Bruce Snyder 
1690 Diane Road 
Mendota Heights, MN 55118 
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From: Joe Snyder 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:40:50 PM 


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


Joe Snyder 
8640 Girard Ave. N 
Minneapolis, MN 55444 
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From: Barb Sobocinski 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:37:00 PM 


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


Barb Sobocinski 
1390 Laurel Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55104 



mailto:barbasobo@gmail.com
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From: Laurie Solie 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Monday, February 01, 2016 7:58:19 AM 


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


Laurie Solie 
2718 Fillmore St NE 
Minneapolis, MN 55418 



mailto:laurie_solie@yahoo.com
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From: Eric Solien 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:37:17 PM 


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


Eric Solien 
6201 Linda Ln. 
Lino Lakes, MN 55014 



mailto:muskyman1@mac.com
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From: Robert G Spurr 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 11:59:56 AM 


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


Robert G Spurr 
1037 Delaware Ave. 
Mendota Heights, MN 55118 



mailto:rgspurr@comcast.net
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From: DeeAnn Stenlund 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 10:17:11 AM 


All Minnesotans need and expect clean drinking water every day. However, our water is at risk of contamination
 from agricultural chemicals, especially nitrogen. My daughter, who lives in Wisconsin, lives with elevated nitrates
 in her local water supply, requiring her family to have to filter their drinking water and this in not unusual. More
 and  more Minnesotans also face this problem, which is why I am writing to you. 


The proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Rule does not go far enough to protect our drinking water and our
 health. MDA’s proposal, based largely on the recommendations of the 2015 Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan
 (NFMP), fails to require direct action to address groundwater contamination. 


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


2)  Slow-walking Mandatory Action is unacceptable. Necessary actions will be further impeded by a phased
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


Please protect our drinking water and adopt mandatory protections what will stop and reverse the trend of increasing
 groundwater contamination of nitrates. 
Thank you. 


DeeAnn Stenlund 
2687 Matilda Street 
Roseville, MN 55113 



mailto:deeannstenlund@hotmail.com
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From: Jesse Stevens 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:47:11 PM 


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


Jesse Stevens 
771 Jefferon Street S 
Shakapee, MN 55379 



mailto:jstevens14@comcast.net
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From: G Strand 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:00:45 PM 


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


G Strand 
515 E. Minnehaha Pkwy. 
Minneapolis, MN 55419 



mailto:stra0274@umn.edu
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From: Tammy Thingelstad 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:47:36 PM 


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


Tammy Thingelstad 
5237 Morgan Ave South 
Minneapolis, MN 55410 



mailto:tammy@thingelstad.com
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From: Renea Thull 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:39:58 PM 


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


Renea Thull 
3409 23rd Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55407 



mailto:reneathull@gmail.com
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From: Clyde Thurk 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:03 AM 


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


Clyde Thurk 
9712 Rich Curv 
Bloomington, MN 55437 



mailto:clydethurk@aol.com
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From: Helen Trepanier 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:53:37 PM 


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


Helen Trepanier 
5409 Colfax Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55419 
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From: Lois Troemel 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:10:47 PM 


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


Lois Troemel 
14808 Gleason Lake Dr 
Plymouth, MN 55447 



mailto:loistroemel@gmail.com
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From: Michele Vaillancourt 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:19:29 PM 


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


Michele Vaillancourt 
244 Stonebridge Blvd 
Saint Paul, MN 55105 



mailto:mvaillancourt@winthrop.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Karen Walker 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 7:49:42 PM 


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


Karen Walker 
401 Normandy Ct 
North Mankato, MN 56003 



mailto:kmwalker@chartermi.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






From: Angie Robinson
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA)
Subject: Water Contamination by Nitrate
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 11:04:54 PM


An ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure. Don't wait until is becomes a problem!
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


Angie Robinson
1955 Hythe St.
Roseville, MN 55113



mailto:angierobinson2000@q.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Mary Welter 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 9:27:56 AM 


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


Mary Welter 
170 Good Counsel Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001 



mailto:mjwelter@ssndcp.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Dawn Wettergren 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 9:28:20 AM 


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


Dawn Wettergren 
3206 Buchanan St. NE 
Minneapolis, MN 55418 



mailto:dwett_1@msn.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


       
     


 


     


From: Janice White 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:20:23 AM 


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
 is already far too long and that mandatory requirements must be implemented now where nitrate is elevated in
 groundwater, wells, or drinking water source areas. 


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


Janice White 
7841 Vincent Ave N 
Brooklyn Park, MN 55444 



mailto:jwhite_minneapolis@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Barbara Whitney 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:53:51 PM 


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


Barbara Whitney 
2715 Silver View Drive 
Orono, MN 55356 



mailto:fivewhit2@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Katharine Winston 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:40:46 PM 


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


Katharine Winston 
4634 France Ave S 
Edina, MN 55410 



mailto:kswinston46@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Dorothy Zeller 
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


Dorothy Zeller 
170 Good Counsel Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001 



mailto:ssnddaz@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Member Name 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:39:41 PM 


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


Member Name 
314 Robie St W 
Saint Paul, MN 55107 



mailto:carls135@umn.edu

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: John Farmer 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:00 AM 


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


John Farmer 
6807 Boudin St NE 
Prior Lake, MN 55372 



mailto:jofar53@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: John Lansdown 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 9:15:56 PM 


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


John Lansdown 
15025 Hillside Dr 
Eden Prairie, MN 55347 



mailto:jmlansdown@hotmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Mary Ludington 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:39:52 PM 


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


Mary Ludington 
4240 Garfield Ave 
Minneapolis, MN 55409 
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From: Warren Formo 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Nitrogen rulemaking 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 4:08:42 PM 
Attachments: comments N rule jan 2016.docx 


Larry,
 


Attached you will find comments from the Area 2 Potato Growers Association, Minnesota Farmers
 
Union and Irrigators Association of Minnesota, relating to the nitrogen fertilizer rule.
 


Let me know if you have any questions.
 


Thanks,
 
Warren
 



mailto:warren@mawrc.org
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Larry Gunderson 


Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division


Minnesota Department of Agriculture


625 Robert Street North


St. Paul, MN 55155-2538





Dear Mr. Gunderson:





As the Department of Agriculture begins the process to develop rules related to the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan, we want to remind you that Minnesota farmers and farm organizations take the protection of ground water very seriously. Advances in nitrogen management, particularly in areas with relatively higher potential for nitrate nitrogen losses due to leaching, have been widely adopted.  Some would refute this point, though MDA and University of Minnesota reports show high rates of adoption of currently recognized nitrogen fertilizer BMPs. Others would suggest that it is evidence that nitrate impacts from farming cannot be adequately mitigated without significant regulation and additional changes in the way nitrogen fertilizer is managed. 





We remind you that the issue of nitrate effects on groundwater is very complicated and urge you to carefully examine all relevant data as you proceed with rulemaking.  We offer the following comments to assist you and to help insure that the rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) might reasonably expected to achieve the goal of protecting groundwater from adverse impacts of nitrogen fertilizer use.





The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan (and thus the associated rule) applies to those areas of the state where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy soils or karst geology. Thus while it is a statewide plan, it is truly focused on a small fraction of the state. The MDA estimates in the NFMP that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all townships) may be targeted for nitrate testing. The MDA should clearly state this focus of the NFMP and rule and clearly state that all other areas are not subject to the proposed rule.  





The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly defined areas of focus outlined in the plan. The fact that “three out of four Minnesotans rely on groundwater for their drinking water supply” may be true, but it would be more useful to know how many Minnesotans get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of focus covered by the NFMP. Likewise, statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in the context of actually focusing on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 





We agree with the MDA’s conclusion that tile drainage should not be a priority under the NFMP as the co-incidence of tile drainage and vulnerable groundwater is extremely minimal. 





We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of questionable construction or with known problems from their groundwater assessments. While it is important for all Minnesotans to have access to safe drinking water, it is also important to account for other factors aside from current agricultural fertilizer use as rules are developed. Is the actual impact due to septic systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate condition ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The answers to these questions may also vary considerably across the state. 





In order to adequately engage local stakeholders and bring in local knowledge of water conditions and farming practices, we strongly suggest that the MDA work diligently with local advisory teams once priority areas have been identified. These local advisory teams should include farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions and their input should be both actively sought and highly regarded. 





Regarding part one of the proposed statewide rule, we again emphasize that the plan may be statewide, but it will only apply in areas with vulnerable groundwater. IN THESE AREAS, the restriction of fall and frozen soil applications will provide a means for the MDA to insure that farmers are following this recommended BMP. We would encourage the MDA to allow for exceptions for phosphorus fertilizers containing small amounts of nitrogen, such as MAP or DAP, in instances where fall application is part of an overall conservation strategy to reduce soil erosion. 





With regards to the question of defining “fall” as after August 1, we propose that the MDA give consideration to late planted crops, which are becoming more common in irrigated areas, and which may require nitrogen applications into August or early September.  The MDA should also consider that more frequent, smaller applications of nitrogen may necessitate applications to growing crops further into the late summer and early fall. 





With regards to the question of cost of complying, we would not expect costs to individual farm businesses to exceed $25,000 in association with the basic rule. However, should the MDA move in the future to require Alternative Management Tools that might restrict crop choices, some farms and some fertilizer retailers may face costs in excess of $25,000. 





With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the difficulty of defining geography for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil types and their shapes. In the request for comments, the MDA seems to suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas includes elevated groundwater nitrate levels. We would suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas be considered as a separate step-wise process from the evaluation of groundwater nitrate levels, specifically that an area deemed vulnerable based on geology may have groundwater with elevated nitrate levels or it may not. Any movement toward nitrogen regulation must be accompanied by documented nitrate impacts to groundwater associated with the use of nitrogen fertilizers, as outlined in the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and as authorized in the Groundwater Protection Act. We would also suggest that the MDA define coarse textured soils based on NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand. We also suggest that the MDA develop criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater vulnerability throughout the karst region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce vulnerability and fall nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater contamination.  





While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local condition, we would suggest that the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships in which there are clear and marked differences in soil type and groundwater vulnerability across a township.





With regards to reasonable notification, we recommend notification be sent to affected counties and townships, farm organizations and Extension professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen Fertilizer Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in guiding MDA efforts. 





We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs of Minnesota farm organizations and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual Nutrient Management Conference and the annual Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Conference. 





Sincerely,





Alan Peterson, President


Irrigators Association of Minnesota





Paul N. Gray, President


Area II Potato Growers Association


[bookmark: _GoBack]


Doug Peterson, President


Minnesota Farmers Union



































 


















 
 
 
 


  
 


 
 


  
 


  
 


    
      


     
   


      


  
  


 
      


       
    


  
 


 
   


    
    


  
   


    
 


  
       


     
  


    
   


 
    


   
 


   
 


January 28, 2016 


Larry Gunderson 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
625 Robert Street North 
St. Paul, MN 55155-2538 


Dear Mr. Gunderson: 


As the Department of Agriculture begins the process to develop rules related to the Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Management Plan, we want to remind you that Minnesota farmers and farm organizations take the 
protection of ground water very seriously. Advances in nitrogen management, particularly in areas with 
relatively higher potential for nitrate nitrogen losses due to leaching, have been widely adopted.  Some 
would refute this point, though MDA and University of Minnesota reports show high rates of adoption 
of currently recognized nitrogen fertilizer BMPs. Others would suggest that it is evidence that nitrate 
impacts from farming cannot be adequately mitigated without significant regulation and additional 
changes in the way nitrogen fertilizer is managed. 


We remind you that the issue of nitrate effects on groundwater is very complicated and urge you to 
carefully examine all relevant data as you proceed with rulemaking. We offer the following comments 
to assist you and to help insure that the rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan 
(NFMP) might reasonably expected to achieve the goal of protecting groundwater from adverse impacts 
of nitrogen fertilizer use. 


The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan (and thus the associated rule) applies to those areas of the state 
where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy soils or karst 
geology. Thus while it is a statewide plan, it is truly focused on a small fraction of the state. The MDA 
estimates in the NFMP that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all townships) may be targeted for nitrate 
testing. The MDA should clearly state this focus of the NFMP and rule and clearly state that all other 
areas are not subject to the proposed rule. 


The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly defined 
areas of focus outlined in the plan. The fact that “three out of four Minnesotans rely on groundwater for 
their drinking water supply” may be true, but it would be more useful to know how many Minnesotans 
get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of focus covered by the NFMP. Likewise, 
statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in the context of actually focusing 
on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 


We agree with the MDA’s conclusion that tile drainage should not be a priority under the NFMP as the 
co-incidence of tile drainage and vulnerable groundwater is extremely minimal. 


We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of questionable construction or with known 
problems from their groundwater assessments. While it is important for all Minnesotans to have access 







   
   


   
   


 
    


      
 


  
 


       
   


    
    


    
   


 
  


  
    


  
  


 
      


  
   


   
 


    
   


     
 


  
     


      
    


  
   


   
     
   


      
 


    
     


  
 


to safe drinking water, it is also important to account for other factors aside from current agricultural 
fertilizer use as rules are developed. Is the actual impact due to septic systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate 
condition ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The answers to these questions may also vary 
considerably across the state. 


In order to adequately engage local stakeholders and bring in local knowledge of water conditions and 
farming practices, we strongly suggest that the MDA work diligently with local advisory teams once 
priority areas have been identified. These local advisory teams should include farmers and agronomists 
with knowledge of local conditions and their input should be both actively sought and highly regarded. 


Regarding part one of the proposed statewide rule, we again emphasize that the plan may be statewide, 
but it will only apply in areas with vulnerable groundwater. IN THESE AREAS, the restriction of fall and 
frozen soil applications will provide a means for the MDA to insure that farmers are following this 
recommended BMP. We would encourage the MDA to allow for exceptions for phosphorus fertilizers 
containing small amounts of nitrogen, such as MAP or DAP, in instances where fall application is part of 
an overall conservation strategy to reduce soil erosion. 


With regards to the question of defining “fall” as after August 1, we propose that the MDA give 
consideration to late planted crops, which are becoming more common in irrigated areas, and which 
may require nitrogen applications into August or early September. The MDA should also consider that 
more frequent, smaller applications of nitrogen may necessitate applications to growing crops further 
into the late summer and early fall. 


With regards to the question of cost of complying, we would not expect costs to individual farm 
businesses to exceed $25,000 in association with the basic rule. However, should the MDA move in the 
future to require Alternative Management Tools that might restrict crop choices, some farms and some 
fertilizer retailers may face costs in excess of $25,000. 


With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the difficulty 
of defining geography for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil types and their 
shapes. In the request for comments, the MDA seems to suggest that the identification of vulnerable 
groundwater areas includes elevated groundwater nitrate levels. We would suggest that the 
identification of vulnerable groundwater areas be considered as a separate step-wise process from the 
evaluation of groundwater nitrate levels, specifically that an area deemed vulnerable based on geology 
may have groundwater with elevated nitrate levels or it may not. Any movement toward nitrogen 
regulation must be accompanied by documented nitrate impacts to groundwater associated with the 
use of nitrogen fertilizers, as outlined in the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and as authorized in 
the Groundwater Protection Act. We would also suggest that the MDA define coarse textured soils 
based on NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand. We also suggest that the MDA 
develop criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater vulnerability throughout the 
karst region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce vulnerability and fall 
nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater contamination. 


While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local condition, we 
would suggest that the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships in which there are 
clear and marked differences in soil type and groundwater vulnerability across a township. 







     
 


   
 


      
 


   
 


 
 


  
  


 
  


 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 


With regards to reasonable notification, we recommend notification be sent to affected counties and 
townships, farm organizations and Extension professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in guiding MDA efforts. 


We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs of Minnesota farm organizations 
and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual Nutrient Management 
Conference and the annual Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Conference. 


Sincerely, 


Alan Peterson, President 
Irrigators Association of Minnesota 


Paul N. Gray, President 
Area II Potato Growers Association 


Doug Peterson, President 
Minnesota Farmers Union 








 


 


 
 


 


From:	 Betsy Lawton 
To:	 Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Cc:	 Kris Sigford 
Subject:	 MCEA comments on MDA"s proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 
Date:	 Friday, January 29, 2016 4:24:15 PM 
Attachments:	 2016-1-29 FINAL MCEA Comments on Draft NFM Rule.pdf 


2016-1-29 FINAL Expert Report DR Gyles Randall N BMPs for Corn.pdf 
GWR CV 2 page.pdf 


Good afternoon Larry ­


Please find attached MCEA's comments on MDA's proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule, along
 with an accompanying expert report of Dr. Gyles Randall. 


Once you've had a chance to review these comments I'd like to set up a time to discuss, and
 Gyles has indicated he is likely available to attend a meeting later in February.  In the
 meantime feel free to contact me with any questions. 


Have a great weekend, 
Betsy 


Betsy Lawton 
Water Quality Associate 
Minnesota Center for Environmental Advocacy 
26 E. Exchange St., Suite 206 
St. Paul, MN 55101 
651-287-4866 
blawton@mncenter.org 
www.mncenter.org 


"Since 1974, your legal and scientific voice protecting and defending Minnesota's
 environment." 


NOTICE: This email may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise
 protected from disclosure.  If you are not the intended recipient or otherwise received this
 email message in error, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy or disseminate this
 message or any information contained in it.  If this reached you in error, please notify us
 immediately by email or phone and destroy any paper or electronic copies of this email
 message. 



mailto:blawton@mncenter.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:ksigford@mncenter.org

mailto:blawton@mncenter.org

http://www.mncenter.org/
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January 29, 2016 



 



VIA EMAIL 



 



Larry Gunderson 



Minnesota Department of Agriculture 



625 Robert Street North 



St. Paul, MN 55101 



larry.gunderson@mn.state.us 



 



RE: MCEA Comments on MDA’s Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen 



Fertilizer 



 



Dear Mr. Gunderson, 



   



Thank you for the opportunity to submit the following comments on behalf of the 



Minnesota Center for Environmental Advocacy (MCEA) on the Minnesota Department 



of Agriculture’s Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Revisor’s ID Number R-



04337.  MCEA is a Minnesota non-profit environmental organization whose mission is to 



use law, science and research to preserve and protect Minnesota’s wildlife, natural 



resources and the health of its people.  MCEA has statewide membership.  MCEA has 



been concerned about the impacts on Minnesota’s waters from agriculture, point source 



discharges and other sources for many years, has made pollution prevention and resource 



restoration a significant component of its work, and has been engaged with MDA on 



issues related to nitrogen fertilizer management for a number of years. 



 



In 1990 MDA developed a Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP), and as 



required under the Groundwater Protection Act, has developed and promoted nitrogen 



fertilizer management practices. In 2013, when MDA proposed revisions to the 1990 



NFMP, MCEA urged the MDA to adopt water resource protection requirement (WRPRs) 



because voluntary implementation of the University of Minnesota nitrogen fertilizer use 



BMPs, promoted by MDA for decades, were ineffective and had failed to prevent or 



mitigate nitrate contamination in groundwater. MCEA, and other interested stakeholders, 



also expressed concern with MDA’s snail’s pace proposal for adopting WRPRs.   



 



Despite urgings to require more, MDA continued with its preferred approach – continued 



voluntary implementation of nitrogen fertilizer use practices, and a proposal to cement 



the slow and cumbersome process for moving to WRPRs into rule. MDA is now 



requesting public comment on its generalized proposal to develop new rules to: 1) restrict 



the application of nitrogen fertilizer in the fall and on frozen ground in vulnerable areas 



when it is “not recommended” by the University of Minnesota; 2) establish a process for 
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moving to regulation based on the process outlined in the NFMP; and 3) adopt a “menu” 



of site specific regulations that could become WRPRs via order of the Commissioner.  



 



MCEA is concerned that MDA’s proposal fails to prevent groundwater contamination 



and will leave existing contamination unmitigated for many years.  These concerns are 



detailed below and MCEA incorporates by reference the attached expert report and 



recommendations of Dr. Gyles Randall, Soil Scientist and Professor Emeritus from the 



University of Minnesota. 



 



MDA’s proposal is neither reasonable nor consistent with the Groundwater Protection 



Act because it applies only to drinking water; limits MDA’s authority to impose WRPRs 



until groundwater is already unsafe to drink; precludes adoption of WRPRs in areas 



where the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPS have been adopted; and fails to establish 



WRPRs that are designed to prevent nitrate pollution from exceeding the Health Risk 



Limits in vulnerable areas of the state. 



 



MCEA recommends that MDA amend its rule proposal to: 



 Authorize the use of WRPRs in all areas with documented groundwater 



contamination.  



 Remove arbitrary constraints on the adoption of WRPRs, including the thresholds 



based on the percentage of groundwater contamination and BMP adoption rates.  



 Establish WRPRs that can effectively prevent and mitigate groundwater 



contamination in vulnerable areas of the state. 



 



MDA’s Proposal 



 



MDA proposes to establish a process for implementing the agency’s NFMP, and to 



define the prevention steps or mitigation response that could occur both before and after 



MDA enforces WRPRs in areas with nitrate groundwater contamination. MDA’s 



proposal creates “levels” of response based on two criteria, breadth or severity of 



drinking water contamination and the extent to which farmers have adopted nitrogen 



fertilizer use practices recommend by the University of Minnesota (U of M). The basis 



for determining what activities to prevent and mitigate groundwater contamination should 



be promoted, or required, is deeply flawed, unreasonable, and contrary to the goals of the 



Groundwater Protection Act.   



 



MDA’s proposal is short sighted and precludes WRPRs in all but a small portion of the 



state - leaving the vast majority of the state subject only to voluntary adoption of nitrogen 



fertilizer management practices even if groundwater contamination exists. First, MDA’s 



proposal does not require a mitigation response in areas where contaminated groundwater 



is not a source of drinking water; and MDA’s Township Testing program proposal 



further limits the agency’s capacity to respond to contamination of private drinking wells 



in all but approximately 300 townships in which 20% of the land is in row crop 



agriculture and 30% of the township is in a vulnerable groundwater area.
1
 Once 



                                                 
1
 https://www.mda.state.mn.us/protecting/cleanwaterfund/gwdwprotection/townshiptesting.aspx 





https://www.mda.state.mn.us/protecting/cleanwaterfund/gwdwprotection/townshiptesting.aspx
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contamination of drinking wells has been confirmed, MDA’s proposal delays any 



regulatory response for at least 3 years and recommends an unnecessary and redundant 



14 step process that includes:   



 Formation of a local advisory team; 



 Selection of a project lead and development of a work plan; 



 Establishment of a local nitrate monitoring network; 



 Public information meetings; 



 Selection of the “right” nitrogen BMPs from the U of M guidance; 



 A survey of adoption of these voluntary BMPs; 



 Consideration of Alternative Management Tools (AMTs) in high risk areas; 



 Assessment of the need for demonstration projects; 



 Planning for educational activities; 



 Obtaining funding for implementation of voluntary BMPs or AMTs; 



 Work with farmers to implement BMPs; 



 A follow-up survey to BMP adoption after 3 seasons of implementation; 



 Evaluation of BMP adoption; and 



 Determination of appropriate mitigation level using nitrate concentration and 



BMP adoption criteria.   



 



Where private drinking water wells are contaminated but the number of contaminated 



wells does not amount to 10% of the sampled wells in a township, MDA will simply 



continue to promote voluntary practices. Under MDA’s proposal, mitigation would only 



be required if over 10% of the private wells that are voluntarily tested exceed the Health 



Risk Limit, or exceedance of the Health Risk Limit is imminent in a public drinking well, 



and where the U of M’s nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs are not adopted on 80% of eligible 



land.
2
 In these areas, MDA’s regulatory response will depend on the percentage of 



private wells voluntarily sampled that exceed the Health Risk Limit. Where 10-15% of 



drinking wells exceed the Health Risk Limit, MDA will limit any regulatory response to 



record keeping and reporting requirements; the development of management plans such 



as irrigation, water management or nutrient management plans; and attendance at one 



educational activity. MDA only proposes to mandate compliance with the U of M 



nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs in areas where farmers have not voluntarily adopted those 



practices and over 15% of private wells exceed the Health Risk Limit of 10 mg/L, or 



where public wells exceed 9 mg/L nitrate.
3
   



 



In addition, the U of M’s nitrogen use BMPS, which relate only to the use of nitrogen 



fertilizers (timing, rate, source and placement) and have been promoted by MDA for 



years, are not capable of mitigating or preventing groundwater contamination in many 



                                                 
2
 However where 10% of private wells are contaminated, or concentration of nitrate in public drinking 



water are > 5.4 mg/L, and BMPs are not adopted, MDA proposes to promote the following activities: 



irrigation well water sampling, determine proper crediting for nitrogen sources, record keeping of rate, 



timing, placement and source of nitrogen use, development of management plans for irrigation, water, and 



nutrients.  In addition MDA may develop demonstration sites and provide annual farmer updates.   
3
 NFMP at 70-71.   
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areas of the state.
4
 Where the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs have been adopted, but 



drinking water contamination still exists, MDA’s proposed rule would insulate the 



agency and area farmers from any additional mandatory action, despite clear proof that 



the use recommendations are ineffective. This is based on MDA’s belief, albeit incorrect 



belief, that it lacks any legal authority to 1) prohibit activities that cause groundwater 



contamination; or 2) create standards or require actions that could effectively mitigate or 



prevent nitrate groundwater contamination, but that may impact cropping practices.
5
   



 



MDA’s proposal is needlessly complicated, time consuming, and expensive to 



implement, and places the burden of obtaining clean drinking water on those least 



capable of controlling the contamination and most likely to be impacted: water users. 



 



MDA’s Proposal Establishes Impediments to Preventing and Remediating 



Groundwater Contamination  



 



MDA’s proposal unreasonably limits the agency’s authority under the Groundwater 



Protection Act because it limits MDA’s authority to impose WRPRs where nitrate 



groundwater contamination is detected but 1) the groundwater is not a drinking water 



source, 2) less than 10% of drinking wells voluntarily sampled in a township are 



contaminated, 3) public drinking water supplies are contaminated but exceedance of the 



Health Risk Limit is not imminent, or 4) the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs have 



been adopted.    



 



MDA Must Adopt WRPRs in Areas with Groundwater Contamination.  



 



The Groundwater Protection Act requires MDA to promote implementation of BMPs to 



prevent and minimize the source of pollution if “groundwater pollution is detected.”
6
  



Where the implementation of these best management practices is “proven to be 



ineffective” MDA may adopt WRPRs with the goal of maintaining groundwater in its 



natural condition. The Act clearly envisions a process for prevention and mitigation of 



groundwater contamination even if that groundwater is not a direct source of drinking 



water.  However, MDA’s proposal prevents the use of WRPRs where groundwater 



contamination is detected but less than 10% of wells voluntarily tested exceed the Health 



Risk Limit or where exceedance of the Health Risk Limit is not imminent in public 



drinking wells. 



 



According to MDA’s data it is common for shallow groundwater wells in agricultural 



areas in Minnesota to exceed the Health Risk Limit for nitrate and in 2014 86% of 



                                                 
4
 The U of M nitrogen rate recommendations are not meant to prevent groundwater pollution but are 



“based on a grouped economic approach that determines nitrogen rates by applying economics to large sets 



of nitrogen response data.” NFMP at 42. These recommendations are based on a ratio of nitrogen fertilizer 



costs to corn prices. See Best Management Practices for Nitrogen Use in Southeastern Minnesota, 



University of Minnesota Extension, at. 2, Table 1. 
5
 NFMP at 79-80; personal communications. 



6
 Minn. Stat. § 103H.275, Subd. 1(a). 
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shallow groundwater samples had detectable levels of nitrates.
7
 Although these shallow 



groundwater wells are essential to detecting groundwater contamination early,
8
 MDA’s 



proposal would eliminate the use of WRPRs in areas with significant groundwater 



contamination where the shallow groundwater wells are not a source of drinking water.
9
 



As the Minnesota Department of Health has explained, groundwater may be 



contaminated even in areas with a low percentage of nitrate impacted drinking wells 



because these low percentages may “primarily be due to the reduced use of shallower 



aquifers by well drillers in certain areas of the State.”
10



  



 



MCEA encourages MDA to prioritize mitigation efforts in areas where drinking water is 



impacting the human population.  However such prioritization cannot be at the expense 



of addressing nitrate groundwater pollution in shallow groundwater – this water is both 



an early indicator of potential pollution of drinking water wells and an indicator of 



contamination in areas where drinking wells may have been re-drilled to deeper depths or 



individuals have tapped into an alternative source of drinking water.
11



 The Groundwater 



Protection Act requires protection of all groundwater resources.
12



 



 



MDA should revise its proposal to authorize the use of WRPRs in areas with 



groundwater contamination, regardless of the whether that groundwater is currently a 



drinking water source. 



 



WRPRs Must Be Available Regardless of the Percentage of Drinking Wells 



Contaminated or the Severity of Public Drinking Water Contamination. 



 



Contrary to the goals and mandates of the Groundwater Protection Act, MDA’s proposal 



allows significant groundwater contamination before any mandatory action to remedy the 



contamination is even contemplated.  MDA acknowledges that “once groundwater is 



contaminated, the remediation process can be extremely slow, difficult, and expensive.”
13



 



According to the United States EPA, clean-up of contaminated drinking water wells costs 



anywhere from 10-30% more than taking steps to prevent the contamination.  These 



significantly higher costs for remediating contamination are borne by individuals that 



simply live in an area where those responsible for the contamination have opted not to 



incur the much lower costs of preventing this contamination.  



 



                                                 
7
 MDA 2013 Annual Monitoring Report, at 84; 2015 EQB Water Policy Report, Beyond the Status Quo, 



Appendix A: Five-year Assessment of Water Quality Degradation trends and Prevention Efforts, at 7.  
8
 NFMP at 21.  



9
 See Minnesota Department of Health comments on 2013 Draft Revision to the NFMP, at 1.  



10
 Id.  



11
 As MDA notes, water at greater depths in aquifers entered the ground 50 or more years ago before the 



increase in nitrogen fertilizer application.  Water that enters the ground more recently, after the increase in 



nitrogen fertilizer application may eventually reach these greater depths which are now being used to drill 



deeper drinking water wells where shallower wells have shown nitrate contamination. MDA believes that 



the nitrate reaching lower areas in the aquifer may be converted to gas due to low oxygen content in the 



aquifer in some aquifers and under some conditions.   
12



 Minn. Stat. § 103H.005, Subd. 8, Minn. Stat. § 115.01, Subd. 6. 
13



 NFMP at 5. 
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The costs of treating nitrate contaminated drinking water for private well-owners ranges 



from an initial cost between $250 and $2200, with additional annual costs in the range of 



$100-$500, depending on the type of treatment chosen.
14



  Private well-owners who opt to 



drill a new well to avoid drinking nitrate contaminated groundwater will incur costs 



ranging from $7,200-16,000.
15



  To avoid treatment, well-owners could choose to drink 



bottled water, which would cost $530-1590 annually.
16



  For users of public water supply 



systems forced to install treatment to remain below the Health Risk Limit, the annual 



costs per household ranges from $35-305.
17



 MDA’s proposal fails to identify areas where 



immediate implementation of WRPRs could prevent further groundwater contamination, 



and treatment costs could be avoided.  



 



In addition requiring private well samples before imposing WRPRs, even where MDA 



has clear evidence of nitrate groundwater contamination, is inefficient and further delays 



mandates needed to meet the Health Risk Limit in groundwater. Changes to land use and 



cropping practices between 2007 and 2012 are already expected to result in a 29% 



increase in private wells over the Health Risk Limit.
18



 However a 20% reduction in 



annual average nitrate application could decrease the number of wells exceeding 10 mg/L 



by 57%.
19



 MDA’s proposal will delay preventative measures and increases costs to 



communities in areas vulnerable to groundwater contamination, such as the Central 



Sands, that need mandatory action to mitigate extensive and well documented 



groundwater contamination.
20



  This delay will result in increased and unnecessary 



expenditures of agency time and resources. 



 



Moreover, voluntary private well testing cannot adequately identify areas in need of 



WRPRs. For example, MDA data shows that 62% of its monitoring wells in the Central 



Sands exceeded the Health Risk Limit, however of the private wells sampled 4.6% 



exceeded the Health Risk Limit. In MDA’s pilot Township Testing program in Dakota 



County in 2013-2014, less than 30% of the private well owners that were offered free 



well testing responded.
21



 Of the wells tested that exceeded the Health Risk Limit, 20%, or 



192 wells, were located in townships that would not qualify for WRPRs because less than 



10% of the wells sampled exceeded the Health Risk Limit. The number of wells that 



exceed the Health Risk Limit but are located in towns ineligible for WRPRs is likely 



much higher. For example, in Eureka and Rosemount, 2 townships in vulnerable 



groundwater areas, WRPRs would not be considered because less than 10% of the wells 



tested exceeded the Health Risk Limit. However 750 private wells in these townships 



                                                 
14



 Estimating the external costs of nitrogen fertilizer in Minnesota, December 2014, Bonnie Keller and 



Jesse Gourevitch, University of Minnesota, Institute on the Environment, Prepared for the Minnesota 



Center for Environmental Advocacy, at 21. 
15



 Id. 
16



 Id. 
17



 Id. at 26. 
18



 Id at 17.  
19



 Id, at 22.   
20



 Data from 2007-2011 show that over 40% of the wells in central Minnesota exceed the Health Risk Limit 



– this data came mainly from shallow wells installed in uppermost part of the aquifer.  The Condition of 



MN’s Groundwater 2007-2011, May 2013 MPCA, at 18.  
21



https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/WaterQuality/WellsDrinkingWater/Pages/targeted-townships-



results.aspx 





https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/WaterQuality/WellsDrinkingWater/Pages/targeted-townships-results.aspx


https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/WaterQuality/WellsDrinkingWater/Pages/targeted-townships-results.aspx
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were not tested, but could certainly have been contaminated. Despite well-documented 



and widespread nitrate groundwater contamination in this area, MDA’s proposal will 



leave extensive groundwater contamination unmitigated. 



 



MDA should revise its proposal to authorize the agency to require compliance with 



WRPRs in both areas with confirmed groundwater contamination and in areas of the state 



vulnerable to groundwater contamination.  



 



BMP Adoption Rates Are Not An Appropriate Threshold for Determining the 



Level of Mitigation Response to Groundwater Contamination. 



 



WRPRs are authorized where implementation of BMPs has proven to be ineffective.
22



  



Where groundwater contamination exists implementation of BMPs has clearly been 



ineffective. The Groundwater Protection Act does not, as MDA suggests, require an 



analysis of BMP adoption rates before WRPRs may be imposed.
 23,24



 MDA’s proposal is 



contrary to the goals of the act and impermissibly prevents MDA from establishing 



WRPRs where BMPS are adopted but ineffective.  Moreover, it is hardly equitable to 



require individuals who rely on groundwater to incur the costs of remediation because 



farmers have failed to voluntarily adopt BMPs or MDA has not required compliance with 



practices that will mitigate the groundwater contamination. 



 



MDA’s Proposed 14-Step Mitigation Implementation Process Is Repetitive, 



Creates Unnecessary Delay, and Imposes Avoidable Expenses on MDA, 



Communities and Water Users 



 



Because the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs are foundational, MCEA urges MDA to 



immediately adopt these recommendations as WRPRs in all areas of the state that are 



vulnerable to groundwater contamination, or are currently contaminated.  MDA’s 



proposed 14-Step process simply delays the inevitable: where groundwater is 



contaminated or vulnerable to groundwater contamination, farmers will need to comply 



with these foundational requirements either voluntarily or as mandated by WRPRs.  The 



only thing the 14-step process does is delay compliance, which in turn creates needless 



expense for farmers, MDA, well users, and communities.
25



 



 



 



                                                 
22



 Minn. Stat. 103H.275, Subd. 1(b). 
23



 Minn. Stat. 103H.275, Subd. 1(b).  That MDA intends to restrict application of nitrogen fertilizer in fall 



and on frozen ground when not recommended by the U of M is evidence that MDA understand its own 



authority to adopt WRPRs is not limited to areas where BMPS have not been adopted – MDA proposes to 



adopt a WRPR restricting fall application of nitrogen fertilizer despite the fact that “the vast majority of 



Minnesota farmers and their crop advisors do not fall apply or apply fertilizer to frozen ground when it is 



not recommended by the U of M.” NFMP at 82. 
24



 NFMP at 49. 
25



 Dakota County explained that because significant degradation to groundwater has already occurred in the 



County that MDA should act faster that proposed in the plan, which will take many years to implement.  



MDA Response to comments at 7. 
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MDA’s Proposed WRPRs do Not Meet the Requirements of the Groundwater 



Protection Act. 



 



WRPRs are adopted by rule and must be designed to prevent and minimize pollution to 



the extent practicable and prevent pollution from exceeding the health risk limits. 



WRPRs may include “design criteria, standards, operation and maintenance procedures, 



practices to prevent releases, spills, leaks, and incidents, restrictions on use and practices, 



and treatment requirements.”
26



  



 



Notably absent from MDA’s proposal are potential WRPRs the agency has identified as 



most likely to be effective in preventing or mitigating nitrate groundwater contamination 



in vulnerable areas where crops with high nitrogen demand are grown.  Instead MDA 



proposes to classify these practices as purely voluntary Alternative Management Tools 



(“AMTs”).
27



 While MDA will encourage the exploration and use of the AMTs – 



including utilizing new technologies, improving genetic diversity, increasing continuous 



cover (including diversifying crop rotation, perennial crops, and cover crops) and retiring 



crop land – its current proposal excludes the use of these tools as WRPRs.   



 



The U of M Fertilizer Use Recommendations, While not Designed to Prevent 



Nitrate Pollution from Exceeding Health Risk Limits, Are Foundational And 



Should Be Adopted as Statewide WRPRs. 



 



The U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs are based only on economics, are not designed 



to protect groundwater, and even if followed will result in groundwater nitrate 



contamination in areas of the state susceptible to groundwater contamination.
28



 Full 



adoption of these use recommendations could only reduce nitrate leaching losses by 15-



25%.
29



 Therefore these practices are not, by themselves, appropriate WRPRs.
30



 However, 



these recommendations are considered “foundational” and if adopted could reduce 



nitrogen fertilizer application rates in many areas of the state by limiting the application 



of “insurance nitrogen” that is often recommended by retailers to ensure that “yield-



limiting conditions not occur due to insufficient [Nitrogen].”
31



  



 



MDA should immediately adopt as WRPRs for the entire state the U of M nitrogen 



fertilizer use BMPs and record-keeping requirements that support the use of the right rate 



for each field the state of Minnesota.  See Expert Report of Dr. Gyles Randall, attached. 



 



 



 



 



                                                 
26



 Minn. Stat. § 103H.100, Subd. 15. 
27



 NFMP at 57-61.  
28



 NFMP at 57. 
29



 MDA Response to Comments at 6. 
30



 See for example Tables 1-4 in attached Expert Report of Dr. Gyles Randall. These nitrogen fertilizer 



rates may be authorized under the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPS but they result in high rates of 



nitrate pollution in tile water.    
31



 Expert report of Dr. Gyles Randall, at page 3.  
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MDA should adopt effective WRPRs. 



 



The Groundwater Protection Act defines WRPRs broadly. WRPRs may include nitrogen 



fertilizer rate restrictions necessary to protect groundwater in vulnerable areas (even if 



those rates are more restrictive than the yield based U of M nitrogen fertilizer use rates), 



and production of less nitrogen-demanding crops (including cover crops and perennials). 



 



MDA should adopt the following WRPRs in its menu of practices that could be required 



by a Commissioner’s order: 



 Cover crops, where effective, including in areas where they could be planted by 



September 1 and following sweet corn, peas, small grans and corn removed for 



silage.
32



 



 Alternative cropping systems, including alfalfa and other crops with low nitrate 



losses.
33



 



 Use of low nitrogen input crops such as forage crops and other vegetative cover, 



and other “AMTs” identified in MDA’s NFMP.  



 Use of split application of N on coarse-textured soils.
34



 



 Incorporate broadcast or inject sidedress application of urea and UAN into moist 



soil to a minimum depth of three inches. 



 Restrict the use of U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPS that are “Acceptable , but 



with risk” if nitrate levels increase or BMPs are not used.
35



 



 Use of nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve and urease inhibitors (UI’s) 



such as Agrotain and Limus when appropriate for reducing losses of yield and N.
36



 



 The Primary BMP recommendations specific for southern Minnesota identified in 



Dr. Gyle Randall’s expert report at page 3.  



 



MDA Should Perform Research to Identify the Nitrogen Fertilizer Use BMPs that 



Are Most Effective in Preventing and Mitigating Groundwater Contamination and 



Adopt those BMPs as WRPRs. 



 



Given the lack of research identifying practices that are most effective at preventing and 



mitigating groundwater contamination (including nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs, and viable 



and effective crop rotations and cover crops) MDA should continue to research: 



 the impacts of the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs on groundwater nitrate 



concentrations, with the goal of establishing the optimal combination of use 



practices capable of preventing and mitigating groundwater contamination to the 



greatest extent.   



 crop rotations with the potential to reduce nitrate losses to groundwater, including 



rotations including alfalfa or other crops.   



                                                 
32



 See Expert Report of Dr. Gyles Randall at 2-3 
33



 Id. 
34



 Id. 
35



 Id. 
36



 Id. 
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 cover crops that could be used in corn-soybean rotations to effectively reduce or 



eliminate nitrate leaching to groundwater.   



 potential incentives for agricultural advisers, retailers, consultants, commodity, 



groups, agricultural interest groups and farmers to adopt fertilizer nitrogen 



application rates that reduce nitrate groundwater contamination.  



See also Expert Report of Dr. Gyles Randall, at 3-4. 



 



MDA should then revise its menu of WRPRs to include those practices most effective at 



preventing and mitigating groundwater contamination. 



 



MDA’s Proposed Restriction on Fall and Winter Application of Nitrogen 



Fertilizer Should Apply in All Vulnerable Areas of the State 



 



MDA proposes to restrict application of nitrogen fertilizers in fall and on frozen ground 



in areas where this practice is “not recommended” by the University of Minnesota. 



However, MDA is proposing to implement this restriction only in townships where at 



least 50% of the land in the township meets the definition of vulnerable land. MDA’s 



proposal fails to identify any legitimate rational for failing to protect groundwater from 



fall and winter application in areas where 50% of the land does not meet the definition of 



vulnerable land. Spring application of nitrogen fertilizers results in higher grain yields 



and lower nitrate losses.
37



 Therefore MDA should restrict application of nitrogen 



fertilizer in fall and on frozen ground in all areas of the state unless the U of M has 



identified this practice as “recommended.”
38



   



 



Conclusion 



 



For all the above reasons, MDA must revise its proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule and 



immediately move to adopt rules that 1) require record keeping necessary to determine 



appropriate rates of nitrogen fertilizer application and other WRPRs; and 2) require 



compliance with the U of M fertilizer use recommendations statewide.  In addition, MDA 



must revise its rule proposal to 1) eliminate any prohibitions on adopting WRPRs in areas 



where groundwater is contaminated; and 2) remove the tedious, time consuming, and 



unnecessary process it proposes must be followed before compliance with WRPRs can be 



mandated by MDA. Finally, MDA must commit to funding and completing research 



necessary to develop WRPRs that can be truly effective at preventing and mitigating 



nitrate groundwater contamination. 



 



Sincerely, 



    
 



Kris Sigford      Betsy Lawton 



Water Quality Director   Water Quality Associate 



                                                 
37



 Expert Report of Dr. Gyles Randall, at 2. 



 













Nitrogen BMP’s for Corn in Minnesota  
 



Gyles Randall 
Soil Scientist (Retired) and Professor Emeritus  



University of Minnesota 
grandall@umn.edu 



 
 The purpose of this report, prepared for the Minnesota Center for Environmental 
Advocacy, is to review and assess the Minnesota Department of Agriculture’s (“MDA”) 
current proposal to adopt restrictions on the fall and winter application of nitrogen 
fertilizer and adopt a “menu” of potential water resource protection requirements 
(“WRPR”) that could be required in specific areas of the state via an order of the 
Commission of the Department of Agriculture, and recommend practices to be included 
in the menu of WRPRs MDA will adopt.  
 
MDA is currently proposing to: 



1) Restrict application of nitrogen fertilizer in the fall or to frozen soils in areas of the 
state overlying vulnerable groundwater where this practice is listed as “not 
recommended” by the University of Minnesota’s Best Management Practices for 
Nitrogen use 



2) Adopt specific WRPRs that could be applied to local areas through a 
Commissioner’s Order, including 



a. Where the U of M Nitrogen Use BMPS have not been adopted and 10% of 
private drinking wells exceed 10 mg/L or nitrate levels in public drinking 
water wells are expected to exceed 10 mg/L in 10 years or less: 



 Collection of irrigation well water samples by MDA or an approved 
representative 



 Farmers report on their fertilizer management practices to the MDA 



 Irrigation, water management and or nutrient management plans be 
developed 



 Farmers attend at least one MDA approved education activity. 
b.  Where the U of M Nitrogen Fertilizer Use BMPS have not been adopted 



and 15% of private drinking wells exceed 10 mg/L or nitrate levels in 
public drinking water wells exceed 9 mg/L 



 Require compliance with region specific U of M Nitrogen Use 
BMPs. 



 
While MDA’s proposal for adoption of WRPRs is directionally correct, MDA’s proposed 
WRPRs are not designed to, and cannot independently, prevent and minimize the 
nitrate pollution to the extent practicable; or prevent nitrate pollution from exceeding the 
health risk limit. The U of M Recommended Nitrogen Use Fertilizer Recommendations 
are based on yield optimization and the production economics of corn. Environmental 
metrics such as nitrate concentration in drainage water or in the soil at the end of the 
growing season have historically not been measured along-side of the agronomic and 
production metrics. In the more vulnerable soil areas of the state, this will change in 
time.   





mailto:grandall@umn.edu
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SUMMARY 
 



General Recommendations 



 Using the right/correct rate of N is a cornerstone BMP from an economic and water 
quality perspective. Of all N management practices, rate of application has the 
greatest potential for reducing nitrate losses to ground and surface waters.  



- include all forms of N added, i.e., starter fertilizer, weed & feed N, ammonium 
phosphate fertilizers.  



- use N credits from previous crops and manure applications, requiring record-
keeping by farmer.  



- Discontinue the application of excess “insurance” N rates generally 
associated with fall application.  



 



 Spring application of N fertilizers is highly recommended regardless of N source. Corn 
grain yields are higher and nitrate losses are lower. 



 



 No N is to be fall-applied to medium-textured SE Minnesota soils, coarse-textured 
sandy soils, and vulnerable soils throughout the state.  



 



 Use split applications of N on coarse-textured soils.  
 



 Incorporate broadcast or inject sidedress applications of urea and UAN into moist soil 
to a minimum depth of three inches.  



 



 Restrict present “Acceptable, but with risk” BMPs if nitrate levels in ground and 
surface waters increase or BMPs are not used.* 



 



 Ag advisers (retailers, consultants, etc.) play a huge role in educating the farmers and 
in advocating universal use of the 4Rs.  



- record keeping may be needed in the more vulnerable areas and for fall  
  application* 



 



 Cover crops perform quite well in Minnesota if planted by Sept. 1 when following 
sweet corn, peas, small grains, or corn harvested for silage.  



 



 Use nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve and urease inhibitors (UI’s) such as 
Agrotain and Limus when they are appropriate for reducing losses of yield and N.  



 



 Shifting a portion of Minnesota’s corn acres to other non-N demanding crops would 
likely reduce nitrate losses more than implementing N BMPs.  
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Primary BMP recommendations for southern Minnesota  
 



     Recommended 



 Spring preplant application of ammonia and urea or split applications of 
ammonia, urea, and UAN are highly recommended.  



 Under rain-fed (non-irrigated) conditions, apply sidedress N before corn is 12 
inches tall (V7 stage).  



 When soils have a high leaching potential (sandy texture), nitrogen application in 
a split application or sidedress program is preferred. Use a nitrification inhibitor 
(N-Serve) on labeled crops with early sidedressed N.  



 
     Acceptable, but with greater risk* 



 Fall application of ammonia + N-Serve after soil temperature at the 6-inch depth 
is below 50ºF in south-central Minnesota.  



 Late fall or spring preplant application of ESN in south-central Minnesota.  



 Spring preplant application of ESN in southeastern Minnesota.  



 Spring preplant application of UAN.  
 
     Not Recommended 



 Fall application of ammonia, urea, and UAN, with or without a nitrification inhibitor 
(N-Serve) in the 7-county area of southeastern Minnesota.  



 Fall application of N to coarse-textured (sandy) soils.  



 Application of any N fertilizer including MAP or DAP on frozen soils.  
(runoff in spring snow melt can be significant)  



 Fall application of urea and ammonia without N-Serve and urea with N-Serve in 
south-central Minnesota.  



 Fall application of UAN (28-0-0).  
 
* = Items marked with an asterisk (*) could be considered as associated with WRPR’s.  
 
Field research recommendations 



 Continue to conduct N rate research studies to determine corn yield response, 
net return to fertilizer N, N recovery in the corn plant, and residual soil nitrate in 
the soil profile in the fall after harvest and again the following spring (to determine 
leaching losses) on the medium-textured soils of SE Minnesota and similar 
vulnerable soils of the state. Collection of soil water at 5’ or tile drainage would 
be helpful. These complete sets of production and environmental data will be 
relied upon and necessary to make improved N management decisions for 
Minnesota in the future.  



 



 Conduct cover crop research to increase the success of earlier fall establishment 
or to select/develop those cover crops that tolerate limited light in dense corn 
stands in August. Perhaps combining cover crops with low vegetative biomass 
corn planted at lower-than-optimum populations would allow for improved early 
fall establishment. This would compare the economic risk of reduced corn yields 
vs. the environmental benefit of reduced nitrate losses to ground water.   
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 Crop rotation research involving a year or two of alfalfa in a rotation such as C-S-
C-A-A or other crops is encouraged. Determining the efficacy of these rotations 
to reduce nitrate losses to ground and surface waters while optimizing net return 
would be particularly valuable in the vulnerable soils within areas of “high dairy 
cattle numbers”.  



 
Editorial Comment 



 After preparing this document the question can be asked “Will the 4R approach 
be successful in reducing nitrate-N losses to surface and ground water to meet the 
goals of Nitrogen Loss Reduction Strategies being established”?  
 My answers are:  



1) They are directionally correct and helpful but will not accomplish the goal 
by themselves.  



2) Universal commitment will be needed within the agricultural community 
(ag advisers, retailers, consultants, commodity groups, agricultural interest 
groups, etc.) to advance the 4R concept consistently and quickly.  



3) Shifting acreage away from corn to other cropping systems is the most 
effective strategy as it decreases N inputs to the landscape and 
significantly reduces N losses to ground and surface water.  
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History 
 A series of BMP’s were identified and assembled by the University of Minnesota 
and the Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) as part of the Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Management Plan developed by the Nitrogen Fertilizer Task Force coordinated by MDA 
in 1990 and 1991. A series of seven (7) bulletins were developed for specific areas of 
the state (generally based on specific soil and climatic conditions) and were published 
by the Minnesota Extension Service in 1993. These N BMPs were broadly defined as 
“economically and environmentally sound, voluntary practices that are capable of 
minimizing nutrient contamination of surface and groundwater”.  
 Based on numerous N research experiments between the early 1990’s and 2005, 
involving both crop production and nitrate-N loss data, another set of management 
guidelines were developed to assist crop producers to manage their nitrogen in ways 
that optimize profitability, reduce risk, and minimize loss of nitrate to surface and 
groundwater. Similar to the 1993 publications, these voluntary management practices 
were published in a series of U of M Extension bulletins in 2008 to be adopted on a 
statewide as well as a regional basis. In these publications, the management practices 
(BMP’s) have been divided into three categories: (1) recommended, (2) acceptable but 
with greater risk, and (3) not recommended. The risks can be either economic (input 
cost or yield) or environmental (potential for loss of nitrogen to ground or surface 
waters).  
 



Nitrogen Management Practices 
 
Rate of N Applied  
 Using the correct amount of N as opposed to extra “insurance” N optimizes crop 
yield while minimizing N loss to the environment. However, there are two factors leading 
to the optimum N rate: (1) N becoming available from the soil and (2) N added as 
fertilizer N to meet the crop’s total N need. Unfortunately, two uncontrollable factors 
(precipitation and temperature) affect the release of N from the soil as well as the 
amount of N needed by the crop.  
 For many years the optimum N rate for corn in the Midwest was determined by 
multiplying the yield goal times a factor of 1.2, i.e.,  160 bu/A x 1.2 = 192 lb N/A minus N 
supplied by the previous crop. Nitrogen fertilizer recommendations in Minnesota used a 
somewhat similar process, but they also included the level of soil organic matter. By the 
late 1990’s this method of determining the rate of N to apply was being questioned by 
Minnesota and Midwest agronomic scientists. Consequently, a massive effort by them 
involved the collection and interpretation of data from hundreds of fertilizer N rate 
response studies with corn in Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, and Wisconsin. The data 
showed yield goal was not a good predictor of the N rate needed. Instead, the  
recommended rate of N to apply was determined to be within a range of N rates, 
depending on the productivity of the soil, previous crop, and the ratio of the price of 
fertilizer N to corn price. Each year additional N rate studies are conducted in all states 
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to increase the size and value of the database and to include the newest corn genetics 
and higher yield potentials.  
 For southern Minnesota with 109 sites, the range of N rates for corn after corn 
and corn after soybeans using a fertilizer N price of $0.35/lb and a corn price of 
$3.50/bu is 141-160 lb/A and 98-122 lb/A, respectively. The maximum economic return 
to N (MRTN) is 149 and 108 lb/A, respectively. Thus, on highly productive soils a N rate 
of 149-160 lb/A is recommended for corn after corn and 108-122 lb/A for corn after 
soybeans. On lower productively soils where the yield potential is less due to limited 
water holding capacity, the recommended N rates are 141-149 lb/A for corn after corn 
and 98-108 lb/A for corn after soybeans.  
 As one can see from this discussion the recommended N rates for corn are 
based totally on the production economics of corn as influenced by a large N rate 
response database and soil productivity. The economics or risk of N loss to ground or 
surface waters is not included because it is an uncontrollable factor and is not 
predictable at the time of N application.  
 Rate of N application has a huge effect on corn yield/production and on nitrate-N 
losses on both well-drained and poorly-drained soils. On a well-drained Port Byron soil 
in Olmsted Co., three-year average continuous corn yields ranged from 65 bu/A with 0 
lb N/A to 164 bu/A with 140 lb N/A. Residual nitrate-N in the 0-7’ soil profile after harvest 
with the 0, 90, 120, 150 and 180 lb N/A rates averaged 35, 45, 65, 110 and 140 lb 
nitrate-N/A. These data clearly show the huge yield response to fertilizer N coupled with 
the large amount of nitrate-N remaining in the soil in the fall when the applied N rate 
was above optimum. These high levels of residual N would be expected to leach from 
the 0-7’ profile into the groundwater acquifers between Nov. 1 and mid-June the next 
year when corn roots would be taking up soil N and fertilizer N again. In a 5-yr study on 
the same soil, corn yields following soybeans averaged 72% of maximum yield with no 
fertilizer N (In other words, the soil supplied 72% of the N needed for maximum yield. 
The remaining 28% would come from fertilizer N).  When 90 lb N/A was applied, yields 
reached 97% of maximum yield. When rates of 120 and 150 lb N/A were applied, yields 
attained 100% of maximum. Residual nitrate in the 0-5’ soil profile after harvest (Nov. 1) 
totaled 30, 40, 75 and 95 lb NO3-N/A for the 0, 90, 120 and 150 lb N/A fertilizer N rates. 
These data also support the high potential for large leaching losses of nitrate to 
groundwater acquifers when N rates applied are in excess of optimum.  
 In poorly drained soils the effect of N rate on corn yield, profitability, and nitrate 
loss to tile drainage is shown in Table 1. Compared with the standard 120-lb N rate 
applied in the fall, adding an additional 40 lb N/A (160-lb N rate) increased yield 6 bu/A 
(4%), increased net profit by $7/A (5%), and increased NO3-N concentration in tile water 
by 4.9 mg/L (37%). In other words, the economic gain from excess N was small 
compared to the large environmental effect of increased nitrate loss to water. On the 
other hand reducing N rate from 120 lb N/A to 80 lb/A reduced yield 22 bu/A (13%), 
reduced net profit $63/A (45%), and reduced NO3-N concentration in the water by 1.7 
mg/L (13%). Greatest yield and profit with a minimal increase in NO3-N concentration 
(4%) was found with the spring-applied 120-lb N rate. (Net profit was calculated using 
corn = $3.50/bu, N fertilizer = $0.35/lb N, and N-Serve @ $10/A). These data clearly 
demonstrate two fundamental findings: (1) the importance of using the correct N rate as 
a cornerstone BMP from an economic and water quality perspective and (2) the net 
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return advantage (42%) of applying the correct rate of N in the spring compared to the 
fall with minimal effect on NO3-N concentration (4%).  
 
Table 1. Effect of N rate on yield of corn after soybean and nitrate-N concentration in tile  
              drainage at Waseca (2000-2003).  



N Treatment 4-Yr Yield 4-Yr FW 



Time Rate N-Serve Avg. NO3-N conc.  



 lb/A  bu/A mg/L 
--- 0 --- 111 --- 



Fall 80 Yes 144 11.5 
Fall 120 Yes 166 13.2 
Fall 160 Yes 172 18.1 
Spr. 120 No 180 13.7 



 
Compliance with applying the correct rate (“Right Rate”) of fertilizer N does not 



come easily and without well-ingrained attitudes, thoughts, perceptions, and challenges 
from a variety of positions. First, because the price of N fertilizer has generally been low 
compared to crop price and because wet growing season conditions can cause loss of 
N, farmers will often apply an extra 20 to 50 pounds of “insurance N” to ensure that 
yield-limiting conditions not occur due to insufficient N. This is particularly true in years 
when crop prices are high and the potential exists for a high net economic return to 
fertilizer. Second, no farmer, dealer, ag adviser/consultant or landlord likes to see N 
deficiency symptoms (yellow corn) occurring, especially early in the season. Dark 
green, robust, even-looking corn is a “hallmark” visual assessment of a grower’s ability 
to profitably produce corn. Yellow, N deficient corn has been known to terminate land 
rental agreements. Third, N credits from previous crops and previous manure 
applications vary if various crops were grown and manure sources and rates differed 
from field to field. This requires careful record keeping if correct N rates are to be 
applied for each field. Fourth, the amount of soil N mineralized to become available for 
the growing crop can be variable and is at this time not easily predictable. Thus, 
applying a slightly greater amount of fertilizer N is often done. Fifth, farmers often do not 
make their own fertilizer N rate recommendations; they rely on their retailer/dealer or on 
an ag advisor/consultant. This can present a problem, especially for the retailer who has 
a service and a product to sell. Trimming the “safe” higher-than-recommended rate to 
the correct/right rate of fertilizer N may be good for the farmer and the environment, but 
it may not be good for the retailer’s bottom line because of reduced fertilizer sales 
volume - - - a primary profit stream for them. This can put the retailer on a slippery slope 
especially if part of the service required by the farmer is to minimize loss of nitrate to 
ground and surface waters. Consultants on the other hand have a service to provide 
and sell, but no fertilizer product to sell. Thus, they can adopt their fertilizer 
recommendations more easily to a correct/right rate of application that considers the 
risks of both profitability and environmental losses of N to ground and surface waters. 
Sixth, the total N rate should include any N applied in a starter, weed and feed program, 
and contributions from phosphorus fertilizers such as MAP and DAP. Also, appropriate 
credits must be taken for previous legume crops and any manure used in the crop 
rotation. Seventh, historically fertilizer N recommendations have been made only from 
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the production perspective. Combining an environmental perspective with the 
production perspective may take time for some fertilizer N advisers, but adapting to 
change rather quickly with good record keeping will be a successful approach for 
improved water quality and profitable production.  
 In summary using the correct/right rate of N has a high potential for improving net 
economic return for farmers while minimizing the loss of nitrates to ground and surface 
waters.  
 
Time of N Application and N-Serve 
 Time of N application has been an issue in the northern latitudes of the U.S. 
since anhydrous ammonia (AA) became available in the 1950’s. The thinking was that 
fall N would not be lost from soils that were frozen for 3-4 months during the winter. As 
a result, AA was being applied as early as the first week of October in the 1970’s. Under 
warm conditions when the fall soil temperature was in the 60’s, significant conversion of 
AA to nitrate (nitrification) occurred, which was then lost via leaching or denitrification. 
Since the rate of AA nitrification is a function of soil temperature, research on the 
process indicated that nitrification was slowed substantially at soil temperatures < 50ºF. 
Research on nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve in the 1970’s and 80’s in 
Minnesota showed that they significantly inhibited nitrification. As a result the following 
BMP guidelines for fall application of N in southern Minnesota have existed since 2008:  
 
 Not Recommended 



 Fall application of ammonia, urea, and UAN, with or without a nitrification 
inhibitor (N-Serve) in the 7-county area of southeastern Minnesota.  



 Fall application of N to coarse-textured (sandy) soils.  



 Application of any N fertilizer including MAP or DAP on frozen soils. 
(runoff in spring snow melt can be significant)  



 Fall application of urea and ammonia without N-Serve in south-central 
Minnesota.  



 Fall application of UAN (28-0-0).  
 
 



Acceptable, but with greater risk 



 Fall application of ammonia + N-Serve after soil temperature at the 6-inch 
depth is below 50ºF in south-central Minnesota.  



 Late fall or spring preplant application of ESN in south-central Minnesota.  



 Spring preplant application of ESN in southeastern Minnesota.  



 Spring preplant application of UAN.  
 



Recommended 



 Spring preplant applications of ammonia and urea or split applications of 
ammonia, urea, and UAN are highly recommended.  



 Under rain-fed (non-irrigated) conditions, apply sidedress N before corn is 
12 inches tall (V7 stage).  
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 When soils have a high leaching potential (sandy texture), nitrogen 
application in a split application or sidedress program is preferred. Use a 
nitrification inhibitor (N-Serve) on labeled crops with early sidedressed N.  



 
As one can see by the above Time of N recommendations, the influence of soil 



texture (coarse, medium, and fine), precipitation and characteristics of the N source are 
dominating factors when determining the suitability of fall-applied N.  



The following text describing some of the research conducted in southern 
Minnesota contains corn production and water (soil and tile drainage) data that support 
the above Time of N Application recommendations. Southeastern Minnesota is 
characterized by permeable silt loam soils with underlying fractured limestone bedrock. 
This “Karst” region, which also receives the greatest amount of annual precipitation in 
the state, is very susceptible to ground water contamination. Consequently, few studies 
have examined fall application with spring and in-season N applications receiving most 
attention. A 4-yr study conducted in Olmsted Co. showed little yield average difference 
among the time of application treatments, but in the wet year (1990, 1987-89 were dry) 
fall-applied AA with and without N-Serve produced lower yields and greater NO3-N 
concentrations in the soil water at 5’ than did spring applications (Table 2).  



 
Table 2. Corn yield and NO3-N concentration in the soil water at 5 feet as affected by  
               rate and time of application in Olmsted Co., 1987-90.  



   Nitrate-N 
Nitrogen Treatment  Grain Yield Conc. in Soil 



Rate Time/Method  1990 1987-90 Water1/ 



lb N/A   - - - - - - bu/A - - - - - - ppm 
0 --  76 84 1 



75 Spr., preplant  145 156 11 
150 “     “  155 172 29 
225 “     “  156 167 43 
150 Fall  145 169 43 
150 Fall + N-Serve  148 169 50 



75 + 75 Spr. + SD (V7)  154 168 47 
1/  Fall, 1990. Determined using porous cup suction samplers.  



 
A long-term study on poorly drained soils in south-central Minnesota, comparing 



late-October application of ammonia with and without N-Serve with a spring pre-plant 
application without N-Serve, showed distinct yield and environmental advantages for 
spring application, but not in all years (Table 3). Across the 15-yr period, corn yields 
averaged about 10 bu/A greater for the fall N + N-Serve and spring N treatments 
compared with fall N without N-Serve. Also, compared with fall application of N without 
N-Serve, NO3-N losses in the drainage water were reduced by 14 and 15% and N 
recovery in the grain was increased by 8 and 9% for fall N + N-Serve and spring N, 
respectively. However, corn yields were significantly affected by the N treatments in 
only 7 of 15 years. In those seven years, when April, May and/or June were wetter-than-
normal, average corn grain yield was increased by 15 and 27 bu/A for the fall N + N-
Serve and spring N treatments, respectively. In summary, the 15-yr data suggest that 
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applications of ammonia in the late fall + N-Serve or in the spring preplant were BMP’s. 
However, when spring conditions were wet, especially in May and June, spring 
application gave substantially greater yield and profit than the fall N + N-Serve 
treatment. Therefore, fall N + N-Serve application is considered to be more risky than a 
spring, preplant application of ammonia. Moreover when N-Serve was not used, fall 
application of ammonia was more risky (lower yields) compared with fall application + N-
Serve. 
 
Table 3. Corn yield and NO3-N loss to drainage water as affected by time of application  
              and N-Serve at Waseca, 1987-2001.  



 Time of Application1/ 



Parameter Fall Fall + N-Serve Spring 



15-Yr Avg. Yield (bu/A) 144 153 156 
7-Yr Avg. Yield (bu/A)2/ 131 146 158 



Flow-weighted NO3-N concentration 
in tile drainage from the corn-



soybean rotation (mg/L) 



14.1 12.2 12.0 



Nitrogen recovery in the corn grain 
(%)3/ 



38 46 47 



1/ Rate of applications for 1987-1993 and 1994-2001 were 135 and 120 lb N/A,  
   respectively.  
2/ Only those seven years when a statistically significant yield difference occurred  
   among treatments.  
3/ Nitrogen recovery in the corn grain as a percent of the amount of fertilizer N applied.  
 



A split application of ammonia with 40% applied pre-plant and 60% applied 
sidedress at the V8 stage was compared with late October and spring preplant 
applications of ammonia (Table 4). In this 7-yr period, grain yields were significantly 
greater (6 bu/A) for the split-applied treatments, resulting in slightly greater N recovery 
in the grain compared with the fall and spring treatments. However NO3-N 
concentrations in the tile drainage were also slightly higher with split-applied N than for 
the spring N and fall N + N-Serve treatments.  
 
 
 
Table 4. Corn production after soybeans and nitrate loss as affected by time of N  
              application and N-Serve at Waseca, 1987-93.  



    Flow-weighted 
N Treatment   7-Yr Average NO3-N conc. in 



Time N-Serve  Corn yield N recovery tile drainage 



   bu/A % mg/L 
Fall No  131 31 16.8 



“ Yes  139 37 13.7 
Spring No  139 40 13.7 
Split No  145 44 14.6 



 LSD (0.10):  4   
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A 6-yr study comparing fall versus spring application of N-Serve with ammonia 



showed a statistically and economically significant 10 bu/A yield response to N-Serve 
applied in the fall (Table 5). The 4 bu/A yield increase to spring-applied N-Serve was not 
statistically significant and is considered economically neutral. However, a yield 
response to spring-applied N-Serve occurred in years when June rainfall was 
excessive. Because these data do not suggest a consistently significant and economical 
response to N-Serve applied in the spring and because excessive June rainfall can not 
be predicted at the time of spring ammonia application, adding N-Serve to spring-
applied ammonia is not considered to be a BMP at this time.  
 
Table 5. Corn grain yield after soybeans as affected by fall and spring application of  
              N-Serve with anhydrous ammonia at Waseca, 1994-99.  



 N-Serve 



Time of application No Yes 



 - - - - - - - - 6-Yr. Avg. Yield (bu/A) - - - - - - 
Fall 161 171 



Spring 172 176 



 
The corn yield data obtained in the above studies clearly support spring 



applications over fall applications regardless of N source (ammonia or urea). This is 
especially true when April-June rainfall was above average, causing denitrification and 
leaching losses of N. In addition, nitrate-N concentrations in tile drainage water were 
reduced (14 to 18%) with the fall N + N-Serve and spring N applications.  
 With spring application of N showing these increased corn yields and reduced 
nitrate losses to water, one would expect most fertilizer N to be spring applied. This is 
not true in Minnesota, however, as there has been a historic, fall application culture for 
fall-applied AA by both retailers and farmers when fall conditions allow (crops 
harvested, soils relatively dry, and soil temperatures cooling to below 50ºF). Fall 
application is often considered an advantage to either the retailer and/or farmer for the 
following reasons:  



 Logistics – The workload is spread out for the retailer when a portion of the N is 
fall applied.  



 Less storage space is required with a combination of fall and spring application. 
Storage space can be refilled during the winter. 



 Less worry by the retailer about being able to receive and deliver the total 
amount of N needed in a timely manner. They question whether the fertilizer N 
infrastructure is able to supply and deliver the fertilizer in a timely manner when 
only spring applied? 



 Fall application is often preferred by the farmer because more time is usually 
available in the fall.  



 If the N is fall applied, the farmer does not need to worry about it in the spring 
when tillage and planting are the highest priorities. The worries only begin to 
occur later in the spring if the soils are warm and rainfall is plentiful, causing loss 
of the fall-applied N.  
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 Soils are generally more firm and better suited for application without compaction 
in the fall - - favored by both farmers and retailers.  



 Fertilizer N is often somewhat cheaper in the fall - - - an economic plus for the 
farmer.  



 
N Source and Time of Application  



The N source used must also be considered when selecting the proper time of 
application. Studies at Waseca in 1981 and 1982 compared fall application of 
anhydrous ammonia and urea, with and without N-Serve, to spring application of the 
same. Two-year average corn yields (Table 8) indicate: (a) broadcast and 
incorporated urea was inferior to anhydrous ammonia when fall-applied, (b) spring 
application of urea was superior to fall application, and (c) a slight yield advantage 
for spring-applied ammonia compared with fall application was found when averaged 
across N-Serve treatments.  



A subsequent study evaluated late October application of urea (4” deep band) 
and anhydrous ammonia with and without N-Serve compared to spring preplant urea 
and anhydrous ammonia. Three-year average yields show a 33 bu/A advantage for 
urea and a 14 bu/A advantage for ammonia when applied in the spring (Table 6). 
Nitrogen recovery in the corn plant ranked: spring ammonia = spring urea > fall 
ammonia > fall urea. The effect of N-Serve in this study was minimal. Yield response 
to the spring treatments were greatest in 1998, when April and May were warm and 
late May was wet, and in 1999 when the fall of 1998 was warm and April and May, 
1999 were very wet. Significant yield differences were not found in 1997 when the 
fall of 1996 was cold and the spring of 1997 was cool and dry.   
 In summary, these studies clearly show reduced corn yield and N recovery for 
fall-applied urea regardless of N-Serve use. Thus, fall application of urea with or 
without a nitrification inhibitor (NI) should not be recommended in south-central 
Minnesota.  
 
 



 
 



Table 6. Corn yield and N recovery in the whole plant as influenced by time of  
              application and N source at Waseca, 1997-1999.  



Nitrogen Management  3-Yr Average 



Time Source N-Serve  Yield N Recovery 



    bu/A % 
Fall Urea No  152 43 



“ “ Yes  158 47 
“ An. Ammonia No  168 60 
“ “ Yes  170 63 



Spr. Preplant Urea No  185 76 
“ An. Ammonia No  182 84 
-- None --  112 -- 



 LSD (0.10):   8  
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 Preplant-applied urea gave significantly greater continuous corn yields in a 3-yr 
study in southeastern Minnesota than did preplant-applied UAN (28%N). Yields for a 
split application of UAN were not significantly different from the preplant urea treatment. 
A 4-yr study in south-central Minnesota showed greatest corn yields following soybeans 
with preplant-applied urea (182 bu/A), followed by preplant and incorporated UAN (181 
bu/A), and poorest yields with broadcast pre-emergence UAN (166 bu/A).  
 The results from the four above studies are not surprising and could have been 
predicted given the characteristics of the three primary sources of fertilizer N in 
Minnesota - - - anhydrous ammonia, urea, and UAN (a 50:50 blend of urea and 
ammonium nitrate). These three sources currently occupy 39, 50, and 11% respectively, 
of the fertilizer N used for crop production in Minnesota. Ammonium forms of N fertilizer 
such as anhydrous ammonia with a nitrification inhibitor should be used for fall 
applications. Urea and anhydrous ammonia (both ammonium forms) should be used for 
spring preplant applications to reduce the potential for early-season nitrate loss. Urea-
ammonium nitrate (UAN) contains 25% nitrate, which is immediately susceptible to 
leaching, performs best when split applied or applied in-season. Under normal spring 
conditions anhydrous ammonia will take up to six weeks to nitrify from ammonium to 
nitrate while urea may take up to three to four weeks. This delay decreases the potential 
for leaching of nitrate during the last part of April and in May, when precipitation is 
greatest and crop demand for nitrogen and water is low.  
 
Method of Application – Placement 
 Method of application or placement choices are generally not large contributing 
factors in the management of anhydrous ammonia or urea. Anhydrous ammonia is 
usually knifed into the soil about 7” deep. The only time AA placement becomes a 
decision factor is when sidedressing where the AA is usually knifed in between each of 
the rows but can be knifed in between every other row. The latter method is easy and 
requires less tractor horsepower. Yield comparisons show no difference between the 
two. Urea is usually broadcast on the soil surface and then incorporated with tillage. In 
some cases, urea is knifed in about 4” deep. Yield differences are generally not found 
between the two placement methods. UAN has myriad placement options ranging from 
broadcast on the soil surface with or without incorporation by tillage, to dribbling in 
bands on the soil surface, to being knifed in about 2-3” deep with preplant, pre-
emergence, and sidedress application times or with a combination of split applications. 
Yield differences among placement systems show little consistency except that 
incorporation of UAN produces greater yields than UAN left on the soil surface and not 
incorporated. Dribbling UAN within 2” of the corn row at a rate of 20-30 lb N/A has also 
been quite effective.  
 Although not a specific application/placement method, incorporation of urea and 
UAN is generally recommended because of the possibility of volatilization losses of 
ammonium if rainfall does not occur within a few days of application. Broadcast 
application of urea for no-till corn is a problematic application method likely to result in 
ammonia volatilization especially under high urease conditions [high levels of surface 
residue and calcareous soils (pH>7.4)]. Urease inhibitors such as Agrotain and other 
products, reduce the potential of volatilization losses of N to the atmosphere. These 
products should be impregnated into the urea before broadcast application.  
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 In other studies, sidedress application of urea and UAN at the V6 stage followed 
by cultivation a few days later resulted in corn yield reductions of 12 to 17 bu/A. These 
data suggest that the urea and UAN had not been incorporated sufficiently deep into 
moist soil to move down into the active root zone, thereby remaining positionally 
unavailable.  
 In summary, these data for southern Minnesota support the recommendation of 
incorporating or injecting broadcast or sidedress applications of urea or UAN into moist 
soil to a minimum depth of three inches.  
 
 



Relative Effectiveness of Management  
Practices to Reduce Nitrate Losses 



 
 



Various N and crop management systems can be employed to reduce the potential of 
nitrate loss from corn production systems to ground and surface (tile drainage) waters. 
The N management practices are commonly referred to as BMP’s (best management 
practices) - - - the ones discussed within the preceding portion of this document. The 
following discusses each of the management practices shown in Table 7 and their 
relative effectiveness at reducing nitrate losses. The estimates are based on my 
experience and professional judgment.  
 
Nitrogen Management Practices 
Rate of N: Of the five N management practices, rate of N application has the greatest 
potential for reducing nitrate losses. The data shown earlier in this document clearly 
shows the huge impact of fertilizer N rate on nitrate concentrations and losses in 
drainage and soil water. The wide range in effectiveness is related to the amount of 
excess N above the recommended rate, ranging from minimal effectiveness if the 
excess rate is small (10-20 lb N/A) to substantial if the applied excess N rate is large 
(>100 lb N/A). These large excess rates could occur from a combination of fertilizer N 
coupled with manure N including the buildup of labile soil N from high rates of past 
manure and fertilizer applications. Discontinuing the application of 20-50 lb of excess 
“insurance” N for corn would significantly reduce nitrate losses.  
 In looking to the future, it is important to continue N rate research studies to 
determine yield response, net return to fertilizer N, N recovery in the corn, residual soil 
nitrate in the profile of medium-textured soils of SE Minnesota, and nitrate concentration 
in soil water or tile drainage when growing new highly productive corn hybrids. These 
complete sets of production and environmental data will be relied upon and necessary 
to make improved N management decisions for the future in Minnesota. Research on 
remote sensing and in-season adaptive models may be helpful to provide diagnostic 
information to improve N rate decisions. It will be particularly useful to focus some 
studies on slightly less-than-recommended N rates for corn on highly productive soils to 
more clearly define the yield and economic effects/risk relative to the environmental 
effects/risk with this reduced N rate approach. 
 Another factor that clouds the optimum N rate picture is the high levels of labile 
organic N, which have accumulated in soils that have received long-term abundant to 
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excessive rates of manure or fertilizer N over the years. Because significant amounts of 
the labile organic N can be mineralized into available N each year from these soils, 
optimum fertilizer N rates could be rather small due to the large amounts of available 
soil N, yet nitrate concentrations leached into ground and surface waters could be large.  
 
Time of N: Time of N application also can have a significant impact on reducing nitrate 
losses. This is particularly true if growers were to discontinue this application of extra 
“insurance” N when fall applying their fertilizer. Growers have additional options, - - - 
either add a nitrification inhibitor (NI) such as N-Serve to the recommended N rate and 
fall apply after the soil temps remain below 50ºF or switch to spring or in-season 
applications involving various N sources. The data shown throughout the earlier portion 
of this document consistently show the corn yield and economic advantage to spring 
application of N. Reductions in nitrate concentrations and losses are much smaller than 
the large and consistent yield advantages for spring-applied N. The greater effect of 
Time of Application for ground water under well-drained soils is the dominance of 
leaching and absence of denitrification on these soils.  
 As fall application of N becomes less popular, especially on vulnerable soils, due 
to economic and environmental risks and challenges, new Time of Application research 
must consist of various spring and in-season application times coupled with various N 
sources, placements, and inhibitors - - - both NI’s and UI’s. It is unlikely that these “new” 
combinations of sources, placement, timing, and inhibitors/additives will show a large 
advancement of reduced nitrate losses. But, it is important to identify combinations that 
improve net economic return for the farmer and improve logistics for the retailer.  
 
Source of N: In the big picture source of N has little effectiveness on reducing nitrate 
losses. However, two examples stand out where N source plays a significant role: (1) 
urea applied in the fall with or without a NI in south-central Minnesota. With this 
treatment, corn yields are reduced, largely due to nitrate losses. (2) UAN applied in the 
spring to well drained soils may be lost due to excessive spring rainfall, necessitating an 
additional in-season application of N that leads to the total N rate exceeding the original 
rate recommended.  
 
Method/Placement of N: The method or placement of N generally has very little effect 
on nitrate losses even though it may affect grain yield some. An exception could be the 
broadcasting of urea or UAN without a urease inhibitor (UI) for no-till corn where surface 
residues are abundant and/or soil pH is high. Significant volatilization of ammonium 
could occur requiring a supplemental application of additional fertilizer, which would 
bring the total N rate applied to exceed the recommended N rate.  
 
Inhibitors (NI & UI): Nitrification inhibitors (NI) such as N-Serve and Instinct currently 
play a role of improving the performance of fall-applied ammonia and hog manure. 
Urease inhibitors (UI’s) such as Agrotain and Limus reduce volatilization losses of 
ammonium fertilizers applied to the soil surface. Proper use of NI’s and UI’s allows 
improved N management, which in turn often improves corn yield but the effect on 
nitrate losses to water is yet unknown.  
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Table 7.  Relative effectiveness of management practices to reduce nitrate losses to  
               ground and surface waters in Minnesota 



 
Practice 



Tile Drainage 
Poorly drained 



Ground Water 
Well drained 



Rate of N L-H (10-60)* L-H (10-70)* 
Time of N L (10-30) M-H (30-80) 
Source of N VL (0-10) VL (0-10) 
Method/Placement VL (0-10) VL (0-10) 
Inhibitors (NI & UI) L (10-20) L (10-20) 
Fall tillage VL (0-10) VL (0-10) 
Cover crops  L (0-30) L (0-30) 
Cropping system  VH (100) VH (100) 



* = Effectiveness (0 = VL to 100 = VH) 
 
Crop Management Practices 
 
Fall tillage: A 11-yr study was conducted at Waseca comparing no tillage with 
moldboard plowing for continuous corn. Moldboard plowing produced higher corn yields 
and slightly higher nitrate concentrations in the tile drainage but lower drainage volume. 
No tillage produced lower corn yields and slightly lower nitrate concentrations but 
greater drainage volume. Thus, nitrate loads (drainage volume X nitrate concentration) 
were not different between the two tillage extremes. This study conducted where soils 
are frozen from December through March produced data much different than are found 
in warm climates, where fall tillage stimulates nitrification of soil organic matter and 
hence greater nitrate concentrations and losses.  
 
Cover crops: Cover crops are getting much notoriety in the U.S. for their ability to take 
up residual N remaining in the soil after corn. The cover crops (mainly cereal rye plus a 
host of other crops) are established in the fall for nitrate uptake in the fall, winter in 
some cases, and the spring before the next crop is planted. These cover crops perform 
well at more southern latitudes (below I 80) where fall establishment is successful. This 
is not the case in Minnesota where the window for establishment in the fall between 
corn harvest and fall freezing is small. Successful establishment occurs when the cover 
crops can be planted rather early, when soils are warm, when soil moisture is plentiful, 
and when the first fall frost is delayed. Additionally, the window in the spring for uptake 
of nitrate is often quite short between warm temps for uptake and planting of the next 
crop. A 3-yr study at Lamberton for soybean following corn showed excellent cover crop 
growth in one year (both fall and following spring) with superb uptake of nitrate. In 
another year, establishment of the cover crop was not possible due to the cold fall. In 
the third year, the crop was adequately established but further growth and N uptake was 
marginal at best. Examination of the 3-yr results and the 40-yr fall weather history at 
Lamberton led the scientists to predict that cover crops in a corn-soybean rotation would 
work well in 1 of 4 years in southern Minnesota. Cover crops can work extremely well in 
Minnesota if planted by September 1 when following sweet corn, peas, small grains, 
and corn removed for silage. Additional research on adopting cover crops for a corn-
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soybean rotation in Minnesota is needed. Developing or selecting species that can 
germinate and then tolerate dense corn growth, limiting light in August and early 
September, is needed. Establishing a cover crop in mid-June and getting it to live within 
the dense and shaded conditions from mid-July until early September would be ideal. 
Also, out –of-the-box research such as planting a high yielding corn hybrid that has a 
low biomass characteristic at various reduced populations to provide sufficient light for 
growth of cover crops seeded in mid-June would be valuable. Depending on corn grain 
yield, N rate, net economic return, and cover crop sustainability, growth and N uptake, 
this could be an alternative to simply reducing or shifting X amount of corn acres to 
another non-N demanding crop to achieve meeting the goals of the N Reduction 
Strategy.  
 
Cropping Systems: Cropping system really is the primary factor that controls the input 
of nitrogen, the management of nitrogen, and nitrate losses to ground and surface water 
systems. Corn-based production systems, whether they are continuous corn, a C-C-
soybean rotation, or a simple C-S rotation all require large input loads of fertilizer N. To 
determine the influence of cropping system on drainage volume, nitrate concentration, 
and nitrate loss in tile drainage, a 6-year study (1988-93) was established at Lamberton, 
MN. Drainage occurred in 1990-93, and the results are shown in Table 8. Based on 
these seminal, well cited data, it is fair to say that cropping system has a greater effect 
on hydrology and nitrate losses than any other management practice. The perennial 
crops [alfalfa and Conservation Reserve Program plants (brome grass, orchard grass, 
timothy and alfalfa)] reduced drainage volume by 25 to 50% due to greater transpiration 
and reduced nitrate loses by >95%. Thus, shifting some of Minnesota’s approximately 8 
million areas of corn to other crops requiring substantially less to no nitrogen would 
likely reduce nitrate losses more than implementing all of the previous nitrogen BMP’s 
and crop management practices discussed earlier.  
 Rather than simply shifting one or two million acres to another non-N demanding 
crop, it may be wise to encourage crop rotation research involving a year or two of 
alfalfa such as a C-S-C-A-A rotation or perhaps other crops to determine their efficacy 
at reducing nitrate losses to ground and surface water systems while optimizing net 
return. Because alfalfa requires different seeding and harvesting machinery and storage 
facilities than row crops, perhaps “neighbor” farmers could be incentivized to fulfill the 
alfalfa needs of the system. This may have merit especially in vulnerable soils within 
areas of “high dairy cattle numbers”.  
 
Table 8. Effect of cropping system on drainage volume. NO3-N concentration, and  
              N loss in subsurface tile drainage during a 4-yr period (1990-93) in MN.  



Cropping Total Nitrate-N 



System discharge Conc. Loss 



 inches mg/L lb/A 
Continuous corn 30.4 28 194 
Corn – soybean  35.5 23 182 
Soybean – corn  35.4 22 180 
Alfalfa  16.4                 1.6                  6 
CRP 25.2                 0.7                  4 
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Emerging 4R Practices Water Quality Research 
 



In the October, 2015 issue of the Journal of Environmental Quality, a Technical Report 
was published by L.E. Christianson (U of Illinois) and R.D. Harmel (Texas A & M) 
entitled “4R Water Quality Impacts: An assessment and synthesis of forty years of 
drainage nitrogen losses”. They reviewed and quantitatively analyzed nearly 1000 site-
years of subsurface tile drainage N load data to develop a more comprehensive 
understanding of the impacts of 4R practices (application of the right source of nutrients, 
at the right rate and time, and in the right places) within drained landscapes across 
North America.  
 They concluded that some of the 4R practices for reducing nitrate-N loads were 
stronger than others.  



 Optimizing N rate was important and will continue to receive primary research 
and regulatory focus.  



 The lack of significant difference between N application timing or application 
methods (placement and source) was inconsistent with the current emphasis 
placed on timing as a WQ improvement strategy.  



- Application timing analysis were complicated by differences in application 
rates between timing treatments; highest application rates resulted in 
greatest N losses.  



 
 



Editorial Comment 
 After preparing this document and reading this current JEQ Technical Report, the 
question can be asked “Will the 4R approach be successful in reducing nitrate-N losses 
to surface and ground water to meet the goals of Nitrogen Loss Reduction Strategies 
being established”?  
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
 
26 East Exchange Street • Suite 206 • Saint Paul, MN 55101-1667 • 651.223.5969 


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


04337. MCEA is a Minnesota non-profit environmental organization whose mission is to 


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


and will leave existing contamination unmitigated for many years. These concerns are 


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


nutrients. In addition MDA may develop demonstration sites and provide annual farmer updates. 
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

increase in nitrogen fertilizer application. Water that enters the ground more recently, after the increase in
 
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



http:resources.12

http:water.11





  


 


  


 


    


    


 


   


 


 


 


 


    


  


   


   


   


   


 


  


     


 


 


    


  


 


 


   


    


   


   


 


  


  


                                                 
           


        


    


  


  


   


     


     


            


            


      


 


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

– this data came mainly from shallow wells installed in uppermost part of the aquifer. The Condition of 


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


analysis of BMP adoption rates before WRPRs may be imposed. MDA’s proposal is 


contrary to the goals of the act and impermissibly prevents MDA from establishing 


WRPRs where BMPS are adopted but ineffective. Moreover, it is hardly equitable to 


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


vulnerable to groundwater contamination, or are currently contaminated. MDA’s 


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
Minn. Stat. 103H.275, Subd. 1(b). That MDA intends to restrict application of nitrogen fertilizer in fall 


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
29 30


25%. Therefore these practices are not, by themselves, appropriate WRPRs. However, 


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


	 the impacts of the U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPs on groundwater nitrate 


concentrations, with the goal of establishing the optimal combination of use 


practices capable of preventing and mitigating groundwater contamination to the 


greatest extent. 


	 crop rotations with the potential to reduce nitrate losses to groundwater, including 


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


Kris Sigford Betsy Lawton 


Water Quality Director Water Quality Associate 


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


a.	 Where the U of M Nitrogen Use BMPS have not been adopted and 10% of 
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
b.	 Where the U of M Nitrogen Fertilizer Use BMPS have not been adopted 


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


	 Using the right/correct rate of N is a cornerstone BMP from an economic and water 
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


	 Spring application of N fertilizers is highly recommended regardless of N source. Corn 
grain yields are higher and nitrate losses are lower. 


	 No N is to be fall-applied to medium-textured SE Minnesota soils, coarse-textured 
sandy soils, and vulnerable soils throughout the state. 


	 Use split applications of N on coarse-textured soils. 


	 Incorporate broadcast or inject sidedress applications of urea and UAN into moist soil 
to a minimum depth of three inches. 


	 Restrict present “Acceptable, but with risk” BMPs if nitrate levels in ground and 
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


	 Cover crops perform quite well in Minnesota if planted by Sept. 1 when following 
sweet corn, peas, small grains, or corn harvested for silage. 


	 Use nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve and urease inhibitors (UI’s) such as 
Agrotain and Limus when they are appropriate for reducing losses of yield and N. 


	 Shifting a portion of Minnesota’s corn acres to other non-N demanding crops would 
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


	 When soils have a high leaching potential (sandy texture), nitrogen application in 
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


	 Continue to conduct N rate research studies to determine corn yield response, 
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


	 Conduct cover crop research to increase the success of earlier fall establishment 
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
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	 Crop rotation research involving a year or two of alfalfa in a rotation such as C-S­
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
multiplying the yield goal times a factor of 1.2, i.e., 160 bu/A x 1.2 = 192 lb N/A minus N 
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
The remaining 28% would come from fertilizer N). When 90 lb N/A was applied, yields 
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


Time Rate N-Serve Avg. NO3 -N conc. 


lb/A bu/A mg/L 
--­ 0 --­ 111 --­


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
Nitrogen Treatment Grain Yield Conc. in Soil 


Rate Time/Method 1990 1987-90 Water1/ 


lb N/A - - - - - - bu/A - - - - - ­ ppm 
0 -­ 76 84 1 


75 Spr., preplant 145 156 11 
150 “ “ 155 172 29 
225 “ “ 156 167 43 
150 Fall 145 169 43 
150 Fall + N-Serve 148 169 50 


75 + 75 Spr. + SD (V7) 154 168 47 
1/ Fall, 1990. Determined using porous cup suction samplers. 


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
only 7 of 15 years. In those seven years, when April, May and/or June were wetter-than­
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


Flow-weighted NO3 -N concentration 14.1 12.2 12.0 
in tile drainage from the corn-


soybean rotation (mg/L) 
Nitrogen recovery in the corn grain 38 46 47 


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
N Treatment 7-Yr Average NO3 -N conc. in 


Time N-Serve Corn yield N recovery tile drainage 


bu/A % mg/L 
Fall No 131 31 16.8 
“ Yes 139 37 13.7 


Spring No 139 40 13.7 
Split No 145 44 14.6 


LSD (0.10): 4
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


Time of application No	 Yes 


- - - - - - - - 6-Yr. Avg. Yield (bu/A) - - - - - ­
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


	 Less worry by the retailer about being able to receive and deliver the total 
amount of N needed in a timely manner. They question whether the fertilizer N 
infrastructure is able to supply and deliver the fertilizer in a timely manner when 
only spring applied? 


	 Fall application is often preferred by the farmer because more time is usually 
available in the fall. 


	 If the N is fall applied, the farmer does not need to worry about it in the spring 
when tillage and planting are the highest priorities. The worries only begin to 
occur later in the spring if the soils are warm and rainfall is plentiful, causing loss 
of the fall-applied N. 
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	 Soils are generally more firm and better suited for application without compaction 
in the fall - - favored by both farmers and retailers. 


	 Fertilizer N is often somewhat cheaper in the fall - - - an economic plus for the 
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


Nitrogen Management 3-Yr Average 


Time Source N-Serve Yield N Recovery 


bu/A % 
Fall Urea No 152 43 
“ “ Yes 158 47 
“ An. Ammonia No 168 60 
“ “ Yes 170 63 


Spr. Preplant Urea No 185 76 
“ An. Ammonia No 182 84 
-­ None -­ 112 -­


LSD (0.10):	 8
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
bands on the soil surface, to being knifed in about 2-3” deep with preplant, pre­
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
“insurance” N when fall applying their fertilizer. Growers have additional options, - - ­
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


Tile Drainage Ground Water 
Practice Poorly drained Well drained 


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
Cover crops L (0-30) L (0-30) 
Cropping system VH (100) VH (100) 


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
and corn removed for silage. Additional research on adopting cover crops for a corn­
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
systems. Corn-based production systems, whether they are continuous corn, a C-C­
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


Continuous corn 
inches 
30.4 


mg/L 
28 


lb/A 
194 


Corn – soybean 
Soybean – corn 
Alfalfa 


35.5 
35.4 
16.4 


23 
22 
1.6 


182 
180 


6 
CRP 25.2 0.7 4 


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


	 The lack of significant difference between N application timing or application 
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
2)	 Universal commitment will be needed within the agricultural community 


(ag advisers, retailers, consultants, commodity groups, agricultural interest 
groups, etc.) to advance the 4R concept consistently and quickly. 


3)	 Shifting acreage away from corn to other cropping systems is the most 
effective strategy as it decreases N inputs to the landscape and 
significantly reduces N losses to ground and surface water. 
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From: Bill Bond 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Cc: Craig Maurer (craigm@centralvalleycoop.com); Jessi Brunelle 
Subject: MDAP MCPR Comments 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 12:15:32 PM 
Attachments: DOC012716-01272016102234.pdf 


Larry, 


The Minnesota Crop Production Retailers is submitting comments to the MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Management Plan and proposed rules. Please confirm receipt of this email and that you are able to 
open the attachment. 


Thank you. 


Bill Bond 
Bill Bond 
Executive Director, MCPR 


763.235.6472 direct  |  763.235.6461 fax  |  763.235.6466 office 
15490 101st Ave N., Suite 100, Maple Grove, MN 55369 



mailto:bill@mcpr-cca.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:craigm@centralvalleycoop.com

mailto:jessi@mcpr-cca.org
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Minnesota Crop Production Retailers 



15490 101 •1 Ave N. 
Suite 100 


Maple Grove, MN 55369 
Phone: 763.235.6466 


Fax: 763.235.6461 
www.mcpr-cca.orgJanuary 25, 2016 


Larry Gunderson 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 


625 Robert Street North 
St. Paul, MN 55155-2538 


Dear Mr. Gunderson: 


The Minnesota Crop Production Retailers (MCPR) is an agribusiness association representing 
the Minnesota Crop Input businesses and professionals for over 65 years. MCPR exists to 
promote the proper use, storage and application of crop production inputs in an environmentally 
safe and agronomically sound manner; and to support regulatory and legislative initiatives which 
benefit retailers, manufacturers, distributors and custom applicators of crop production inputs. 


MCPR's commitment to provide professional advice to the Department of Agriculture (MDA) 
during the lengthy process to amend the Nitrogen Plan and subsequent process to develop rules 
related to the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (MDAP) was evidenced by the many hours 
ofvolunteer and professional staff commitment as we engaged in the MDAP process. Minnesota 
agriculture, and MCPR specifically, takes the protection of ground water very seriously. 
Advances in nitrogen management, particularly in areas with relatively higher potential for 
nitrate nitrogen losses due to leaching, have been widely adopted. MCPR members introduced 
Precision Agriculture (P.A.) to producers many years ago. In fact, P.A. has been adopted and 
practiced in farms across the Minnesota landscape serviced by MCPR members for over a 
decade. The site specific application ofcrop inputs has enabled the approximately 2000 farm 
producers who are the primary customers of MCPR members who farm 80% of the crop 
production acres in Minnesota to become much more efficient and effective. As evidence, 
consider the general statistic that while crop production/acre has doubled in the past 25 years, the 
aggregate amount of fertilizer purchased has remained relatively constant or actually decreased 
during that same period. 


Nitrate effects on groundwater is very complicated. MCPR urges you to carefully examine all 
relevant data as you proceed with rulemaking. We offer the following comments to assist you 
and to help insure that the rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan 
(NFMP) might reasonably expected to achieve the goal of protecting groundwater from adverse 
impacts of nitrogen fertilizer use. 



http:www.mcpr-cca.org





The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan (and thus the associated rule) applies to those areas of 
the state where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy 
soils or karst geology. Thus while it is a statewide plan, it is truly focused on a small fraction of 
the state. The MDA estimates in the NFMP that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all townships) 
may be targeted for nitrate testing. The MDA should clearly state this focus of the NFMP and 
rule and clearly state that all other areas are not subject to the proposed rule . 


The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly 
defined areas of focus outlined in the plan. The fact that "three out offour Minnesotans rely on 
groundwater for their drinking water supply" may be true, but it would be more useful to know 
how many Minnesotans get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of focus covered 
by the NFMP. Likewise, statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in 
the context of actually focusing on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 


We agree with the MDA' s conclusion that tile drainage should not be a priority under the NFMP 
as the co-incidence of tile drainage and vulnerable groundwater is extremely minimal. 


We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of questionable construction or with 
known problems from their groundwater assessments. While it is important for all Minnesotans 
to have access to safe drinking water, it is also important to account for other factors aside from 
current agricultural fertilizer use as rules are developed. Is the actual impact due to septic 
systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate condition ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The 
answers to these questions may also vary considerably across the state. 


In order to adequately engage local stakeholders and bring in local knowledge of water 
conditions and farming practices, we strongly suggest that the MDA work diligently with local 
advisory teams once priority areas have been identified. These local advisory teams should 
include farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions and their input should be 
both actively sought and highly regarded. 


Regarding part one of the proposed statewide rule, we again emphasize that the plan may be 
statewide, but it will only apply in areas with vulnerable groundwater. IN THESE AREAS, the 
restriction of fall and frozen soil applications will provide a means for the MDA to insure that all 
farmers are fo llowing this recommended BMP. We would encourage the MDA to allow for 
exceptions for phosphorus fertilizers containing small amounts of nitrogen, such as MAP or 
DAP, in instances where fall application is part of an overall conservation strategy to reduce soil 
erosion. Failing to adjust the MDAP to MAP and OAP applied in the fall as stated above could 
be very harmful to Minnesota crop production. 


MCPR strongly disagrees with the August 1 fall application date. This is an unmanageable date 
which does not provide adequate consideration to late planted crops, which are becoming more 
common in irrigated areas, and which may require nitrogen applications into August or early 
September. The MDA should also consider that more frequent, smaller applications of nitrogen 
may necessitate applications to growing crops further into the late summer and early fall. We are 
aware of large sod producers that carefully "spoon feed" production grass into late September 
each year. Sod is grown in not only peat soils but highly sensitive low organic areas. Of great 







concern is the fact that the agricultural fall application season for MCPR members for their 
producer customers runs well into October. This must be reflected in the MDAP. 


With regards to the question ofcost of complying, we would not expect costs to individual farm 
businesses to exceed $25,000 in association with the basic rule. However, should the MDA move 
in the future to require Alternative Management Tools that might restrict crop choices, some 
farms and some fertilizer retailers may face costs in excess of $25,000. 


With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the 
difficulty of defining geography for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil 
types and their shapes. We would also suggest that the MDA define coarse textured soils based 
on NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand. We also suggest that the MDA 
develop criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater vulnerability 
throughout the karst region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce 
vulnerability and fall nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater 
contamination. 


While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local 
condition, we would suggest that the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships 
in which there are clear and marked differences in soil type and groundwater vulnerability across 
a township. 


With regards to reasonable notification, we recommend notification be sent to affected counties 
and townships, farm organizations and Extension professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in guiding MDA 
efforts. 


We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs of Minnesota farm 
organizations and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual 
Nutrient Management Conference and the annual Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Conference. 


Sincerely, 


Bill Bond, Craig Maurer 
MCPR Executive Director MCPR Board Chairman 








 
       


 


 
 


 


From: Rick L. Gilbertson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Comments on Proposed Rule on Nitrogen Fertilizer Use 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 5:00:20 PM 
Attachments: MNICCA Comments on Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Use Rule.docx 


Larry:
 


Please see the attached document.
 


Thanks,
 


Rick Gilbertson
 
President, MNICCA
 



mailto:rgilbertson@charter.net

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


St. Paul, MN 55155











Mr. Gunderson:





I am commenting on the “Proposed Rule on Nitrogen Fertilizer Use” as put forward by the Minnesota Department of Agriculture. As the current President of the Minnesota Independent Crop Consultants Association (MNICCA), my comments reflect concerns and questions shared by members of the association through personal communication with me.





By far, the largest concern regards the use of private wells in groundwater vulnerable areas as the triggering mechanism to monitor groundwater quality. Age of these private wells, the quality of the individual well construction and proper grouting of these private wells as required by the Minnesota Water Well Construction Code are all suspect in this dataset. A better use of the “Township Testing Program” of private wells may be to educate private well owners on proper well construction and possibly financial assistance in remediating poorly maintained or constructed individual wells. The overwhelming recommendation of MNICCA members is to only use dedicated groundwater monitoring wells, properly sited, as the basis for monitoring groundwater nitrate contamination and the need for nitrogen fertilizer restrictions.





[bookmark: _GoBack]I appreciate the opportunity to voice our concerns, and look forward to continuing to share in the responsibility of striving to prevent or minimize the impacts of nitrogen fertilizer on groundwater.





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


I am commenting on the “Proposed Rule on Nitrogen Fertilizer Use” as put forward by the Minnesota 
Department of Agriculture. As the current President of the Minnesota Independent Crop Consultants 
Association (MNICCA), my comments reflect concerns and questions shared by members of the 
association through personal communication with me. 


By far, the largest concern regards the use of private wells in groundwater vulnerable areas as the 
triggering mechanism to monitor groundwater quality. Age of these private wells, the quality of the 
individual well construction and proper grouting of these private wells as required by the Minnesota 
Water Well Construction Code are all suspect in this dataset. A better use of the “Township Testing 
Program” of private wells may be to educate private well owners on proper well construction and 
possibly financial assistance in remediating poorly maintained or constructed individual wells. The 
overwhelming recommendation of MNICCA members is to only use dedicated groundwater monitoring 
wells, properly sited, as the basis for monitoring groundwater nitrate contamination and the need for 
nitrogen fertilizer restrictions. 


I appreciate the opportunity to voice our concerns, and look forward to continuing to share in the 
responsibility of striving to prevent or minimize the impacts of nitrogen fertilizer on groundwater. 


Sincerely, 


Rick Gilbertson 
President, MNICCA 








 
 


 
 


From: Sanders, Vonda (MPCA)
 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA)
 
Cc: Wall, David (MPCA); Adams, Byron (MPCA)
 
Subject: Response to MDA
 


Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 9:32:11 AM
 


Attachments: BA Responseto MDA.1.27.16.pdf
 
image001.png 


Sent on behalf of Byron Adams. 


Vonda Sanders 
Business Systems Unit 1 
EAO/RMA Divisions 
651-757-2058 
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@ Minnesota Pollution Control Agency








Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
520l afayette Road North I St. Paul, Minnesota 55155-4194 I 651 -296-6300 


800-657-3864 I Use your preferred relay service I i nfo.pca~state.mn .us I Equal Opportunity Employer 


January 28, 2016 


Mr. Larry Gunderson 
625 Robert Street North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 


RE: 	 Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor's ID Number R-04337' 


Dear Mr. Gunderson: 


I am pleased to submit the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency's (MPCA) comments to the Minnesota 
Department of Agriculture's (MDA) request for comments regarding the proposed new rule called the 
Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. The comments were prepared by Dave Wall and myself with input from other 
MPCA staff. Please direct any questions or follow up to either Dave or myself. 


MPCA Comments on MDA-suggested approaches 


We recognize that the nitrogen fertilizer rules are intended to focus only on land that meets the criteria 
for vulnerable groundwater areas. As such, the rules will not directly affect large portions of Minnesota's 
surface water nitrate contamination. We want to emphasize that Best Management Practice (BMP) 
promotion is important across the state, including tile-drained areas. For that reason, the work of the 
newly formed BMP Education and Promotion Team is critical, and should be given our utmost attention. 
Communications on the rules should include statements about the importance of the voluntary 
adoption of BMPs throughout the state. 


In your request for comments, two distinct rules were merged together. We view the fall fertilizer 
restrictions in vulnerable areas separately from the areas with high nitrate groundwater and 
inadequate BMP adoption. We believe it is confusing to lump the two rule scenarios together. Also, we 
did not see much specific information in your request concerning the proposed approach for rules in 
areas with high groundwater nitrate and inadequate BMP adoption. Our comments are separated into 
these two categories for clarity. 


High nitrate groundwater with inadequate BMP adoption: 


1. 	 We do not believe that the rules as outlined in your request will adequately mitigate in areas where 
BMPs have been adopted and elevated nitrate concentrations remain in groundwater resulting from 
nitrogen fertilizer (E.g. Dakota County). We know that in our most vulnerable places, BMPs alone 
will not always be adequate to reduce nitrate to levels below drinking water standards, particularly 
in the upper reaches of unconfined aquifers. The 1989 Groundwater Bill requires improved BMP 
development when the drinking water standard is still exceeded in areas with BMP adoption. The 
rule or Statement of Need And Reasonableness (SONAR) should identify the processes to be used 
for improved BMP development and for determining when Alternative Management Tools, such as: 
crop selection, rotation, and cover crops, would be used or required. The rule or SONAR should 
describe the process for how living cover practices become part of the BMP package that is required 
in our most problematic nitrate areas. 
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2. 	 We are not certain which BMPs on pages 81 and 82 of the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan 
(NFMP) will be required, or the process for selecting them . For example, will a BMP for crediting 
Nitrogen (N) in irrigation water be required? Additionally, an important BMP in the future will likely 
be precision applications, such as split applications with in-season N rates based on various climate, 
soil testing and crop canopy measurements. The rule will be more clearly understood if it specifies 
which BMPs will be required, instead of a list of activities to consider. Several of these activities are 
important enough to be mandatory and not optional; others could be activities to consider. Also, the 
list of activities/BMPs should include more of those listed in the NFMP, starting on page 76-82, 
instead of just 81 and 82? 


3. 	 In item #7 (page 4) of the request for comments, the first sentence refers to wellhead protection 
areas when the previous references have been to Drinking Water Supply Management Areas 
(DWSMAs). We believe DWSMAs have the more easily recognizable boundaries needed to apply 
BMP requirements. 


4. 	 The criteria for determining acceptable and unacceptable BMP adoption levels should be specified 
in rule. How many BMPs need to be adopted and how many farmers need to adopt the BMPs in 
these nitrate contaminated townships and DWSMAs before BMP adoption levels are considered 
acceptable? 


Fall fertilizer restrictions in vulnerable areas: 


1. 	 Item #4 - The third sentence just applies to townships with more than 50 percent of their land in a 
vulnerable groundwater area. This seems to be too coarse of a scale, and perhaps a field-scale 
requirement should be considered. For example, Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation feedlot 
permits have fall restrictions on fields with over 33 percent of the soils as coarse-textured. 


2. 	 Item #8 - "Emergency nitrogen fertilizer treatment" .... (missing some words, like can be, or may be) 
"approved by the MDA" 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 651-757-2180 or by email at byron.adams@state.mn.us. 
Also, feel free to contact Dave Wall at 651-757-2806 or by email at dave.wall@state.mn.us. 


Sincerely, 


Byron Adams 
Research Scientist 3 
Water Assessment and Environmental Information Section 
Environmental Analysis and Outcomes Division 


BA:vs 
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From: Nicole Macalena 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:06:35 PM 


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


Nicole Macalena 
3520 Rhode Island Ave S 
St Louis Park, MN 55426 
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From: Bruce Mackay 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:02:46 PM 


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


Bruce Mackay 
2581 Roth Pl. 
White Bear Lake, MN 55110 
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From: Timothy Madsen 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:28:50 PM 


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


Timothy Madsen 
8117 York Ave S 
Bloomington, MN 55431 
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From: Kathi Mahle 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:10:16 PM 


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


Kathi Mahle 
1410 Spring Valley Rd 
1410 Spring Valley Rd 
Golden Valley, MN 55422 
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From: Marcia M Marks 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:30:32 PM 


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


Marcia M Marks 
4664 Hillsboro Ave. N 
New Hope, MN 55428 
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From: Patricia Melody 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:45:14 PM 


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


Patricia Melody 
Upper 51 street 
Oakdale, MN 55128 
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From: Grant Merritt 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:13:04 PM 


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


Grant Merritt 
8124 40th Ave. N 
New Hope, MN 55427 
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                      Nick George 
                      Midwest Food Processors Association 


                      4600 American Parkway, #210 
                      Madison, WI 53718 


                      608-255-9946 
                      608-219-0790 cell 


                      nick.george@mwfpa.org 
 


 
December 31, 2015 
 
Larry Gunderson     via email – larry.gunderson@state.mn.us  
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Division 
625 Robert St. N. 
St. Paul, MN 55155-2538 
 
Re: Proposed Rule 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337 (Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule) 
 
Dear Mr. Gunderson: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the departments’ proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 
referenced above.     
 
The Midwest Food processors Association (MWFPA) represents the vast majority of the vegetable 
processing industry in Illinois, Minnesota and Wisconsin.  Our members produce and process more fruits 
and vegetables (F&V) than any other area in the country with Minnesota ranking third in the nation in 
the value of processed vegetables and first in the nation for sweet corn and green peas. 
 
Our concern with the proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule is its possible impact on the land application of 
vegetable processing industry by-products (IBP) and the spray irrigation of process wastewater.  IBP’s 
consist of vegetable screenings, wastewater treatment sludges, sweet corn silage, and/or process 
wastewater.  Spray Irrigation is process wastewater that is generally applied immediately or with short 
hold times to cropped fields after it is generated.  Both of these processes are regulated by the 
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) utilizing either General or Individual NPDES or SDS permits.  
 
IBP’s are regulated under an individual NPDES permit or under the MNG960000 SDS Industrial By-
Products from Foods and Beverage Process Facilities general permit.  These permits are protective of 
groundwater and surface water with restrictions for nutrient application on highly permeable and 
course textured soils and restrictions on applications during frozen conditions which appear similar to 
the BMP’s proposed in the Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule.  IBP’s are also restricted from application to areas 
that have sensitivity to surface water runoff. 
 
Spray irrigation of vegetable process wastewater is generally regulated by individual NPDES permits 
issued by the MPCA.  In Minnesota almost all (if not all) vegetable irrigation process wastewater is 
applied onto perennial forage grass fields.  These perennial grasses have an ability to take up in excess 
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of 300 lbs/acre of nitrogen not including denitrification.  These fields have groundwater monitoring 
systems around them and application rate restrictions. 
 
Both IBP and spray irrigation process wastewater contain nitrogen primarily in the organic nitrogen form 
and thus have little risk of leaching like some commercial fertilizers.  The organic nitrogen requires time 
and microbiological activity to convert to a nitrite + nitrate or ammonia nitrogen source that have an 
ability to leach into groundwaters.  Further, the application rate of process wastewater and IBP are 
restricted to avoid the application of excess nutrients. 
 
With current permits and safeguards in place we believe that the proposed nitrogen fertilizer 
application restrictions are redundant and should not apply to these regulated activities.  We 
respectfully request that the proposed rule be modified to exclude regulation of process wastewater 
and IBP that are regulated by MPCA. 
 
Again, thank you for allowing us to comment on this rule.  Please give me a call if you have any 
questions or need any further information. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Nickolas C. George Jr. 
President, MWFPA 
 
 








 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Kathleen Miller 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:34:29 AM 


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


Kathleen Miller 
3808 Cedar Lake Pl. 
3808 Cedar Lake Place 
Minneapolis, MN 55416 
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From: Adam Birr 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Cc: Adam Birr 
Subject: Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 12:43:00 PM 
Attachments: MCGA Nitrogen Proposed Rule Comment Letter Final.pdf 


Larry, 


Please accept the attached comment letter for consideration in the development of the Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Rule, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337. 


Regards, 


Adam Birr, Ph.D. 
Executive Director 
(o) 952-460-3606 (c) 612-803-7090 
MN Corn Growers Association 
MN Corn Research & Promotion Council 
www.MNCorn.org 



mailto:abirr@mncorn.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:abirr@mncorn.org

http://www.mncorn.org/






 



We are dedicated to identifying and promoting opportunities for corn growers while enhancing quality of life 



 



738 1st Avenue East 



Shakopee, MN 55379 



952.233.0333 



mncorn.org 



 



January 26, 2016 



 



Larry Gunderson 



Minnesota Department of Agriculture 



625 Robert Street North 



St. Paul, MN 55155-2538 



 



Dear Mr. Gunderson, 



The Minnesota Corn Growers Association (MCGA) appreciates this opportunity to comment on behalf of 



over 7,100 farmer members on the proposed new Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule.  Many Minnesota farm 



families rely on groundwater as a source of drinking water and to support agricultural production 



activities.   Consequently, MCGA shares Commissioner Fredrickson’s goal of working together to 



respond to localized concerns about unsafe levels of nitrate in groundwater.  Minnesota’s corn farmers 



invest approximately $1.5 million each year to protect surface and groundwater from nitrogen loss.  



Corn farmers are working to develop a combination of practices that are effective, economical and 



feasible for protecting Minnesota’s water resources by supporting innovative research projects, on-farm 



programs, and people with expertise in research and outreach. 



Researchers have been investigating nitrogen movement in the environment and its relationship to 



agricultural practices for many years.  Farmers have used this information for continual improvement of 



their nitrogen management practices.  The investment that has been made in this area reflects the 



complexity of the issue and much remains to be discovered about how nitrogen use efficiency can 



continue to be improved.  With that in mind, MCGA offers the following comments regarding the 



proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule in order to effectively achieve the goals of the Nitrogen Fertilizer 



Management Plan (NFMP). 



Item 2: (1) Restrict application in fall and frozen soils in vulnerable groundwater areas and (2) Require 



the adoption of nitrogen fertilizer Best Management Practices (BMPs) in areas that have elevated nitrate 



in their groundwater and BMPs are not being adopted voluntarily  – The NFMP states that the 



Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) will implement rules when an area has moved to a 



regulatory mitigation level (Level 3 or 4).  This occurs when 10% of the wells tested within a township 



exceed the Health Risk Limit and Best Management Practices (BMPs) for that region are not being 



adopted.  MCGA believes that it is in these situations that the rules should be applied including the first 



part of the rule related to the restriction of nitrogen fertilizer application in the fall and to frozen soils.  



Furthermore, dedicated monitoring wells should be used as part of the mitigation criteria to verify the 



presence of elevated nitrate-nitrogen concentrations in the groundwater given that private well data 



may be confounded by construction issues. 



Item 3: Criteria for determining vulnerable groundwater areas – As stated above, the definition of 



vulnerable area should include documented elevated nitrate-nitrogen concentrations observed in 



dedicated monitoring wells for the purposes of implementing the proposed rules in addition to the 











 



 



proposed soils and geologic related criteria.  This criteria should be weighted more heavily than the 



other proposed criteria in determining vulnerable areas.  MCGA encourages the use of the County 



Geologic Atlases particularly in the areas in which karst or fractured bedrock is present to accurately 



identify groundwater vulnerability.  There are areas in these regions of the state that have topsoil 



characteristics that protect groundwater from nitrate-nitrogen leaching.  MCGA doesn’t believe that the 



Minnesota Department of Natural Resource’s Procedure for Determining Near-Surface Pollution 



Sensitivity should be used as an additional criterion as it is a model based on maps that are already 



being used to identify vulnerable areas. 



Item 4: Boundaries for vulnerable groundwater areas – MCGA recognizes the need for a boundary when 



implementing the rule.  Exceptions should be made for townships that have clearly defined soils and 



geologic differences that impact groundwater vulnerability. 



Item 5: Exceptions to the first part of the rule – MCGA strongly support the allowance for fall application 



of Monoammonium Phosphate (MAP) and Diammonium Phosphate (DAP).  Phosphorus fertilizer 



formulations that do not contain nitrogen are not readily available and it is not economically feasible to 



restrict these applications to the spring. 



Item 6:  Public notice – The Commissioner should provide notice to county and township officials.  In 



addition farm organizations, agricultural service providers, and extension professionals should also be 



included in the notice.   



Item 7: Activities for mitigation – Nitrogen management practices are evolving rapidly with the evolution 



of precision agriculture.  MCGA believes these practices should be explored further for their 



environmental benefits and credited where they are being adopted. 



  



MCGA looks forward to working with MDA on ongoing nitrogen research and education programs. 



Sincerely, 



 



Noah Hultgren 



President 



Minnesota Corn Growers Association  












 


                


 


    


   


 


 


 


   


 


  


    


    


    


 


   


              


               


               


             


               


               


               


            


         


             


               


                


                


                


               


   


                 


               


                 


               


                   


                


                   


                    


                


             


      


               


          


               


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


over 7,100 farmer members on the proposed new Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. Many Minnesota farm 


families rely on groundwater as a source of drinking water and to support agricultural production 


activities. Consequently, MCGA shares Commissioner Fredrickson’s goal of working together to 


respond to localized concerns about unsafe levels of nitrate in groundwater. Minnesota’s corn farmers 


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


agricultural practices for many years. Farmers have used this information for continual improvement of 


their nitrogen management practices. The investment that has been made in this area reflects the 


complexity of the issue and much remains to be discovered about how nitrogen use efficiency can 


continue to be improved. With that in mind, MCGA offers the following comments regarding the 


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


in their groundwater and BMPs are not being adopted voluntarily – The NFMP states that the 


Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) will implement rules when an area has moved to a 


regulatory mitigation level (Level 3 or 4). This occurs when 10% of the wells tested within a township 


exceed the Health Risk Limit and Best Management Practices (BMPs) for that region are not being 


adopted. MCGA believes that it is in these situations that the rules should be applied including the first 


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
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proposed soils and geologic related criteria. This criteria should be weighted more heavily than the 


other proposed criteria in determining vulnerable areas. MCGA encourages the use of the County 


Geologic Atlases particularly in the areas in which karst or fractured bedrock is present to accurately 


identify groundwater vulnerability. There are areas in these regions of the state that have topsoil 


characteristics that protect groundwater from nitrate-nitrogen leaching. MCGA doesn’t believe that the 


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


implementing the rule. Exceptions should be made for townships that have clearly defined soils and 


geologic differences that impact groundwater vulnerability. 


Item 5: Exceptions to the first part of the rule – MCGA strongly support the allowance for fall application 


of Monoammonium Phosphate (MAP) and Diammonium Phosphate (DAP). Phosphorus fertilizer 


formulations that do not contain nitrogen are not readily available and it is not economically feasible to 


restrict these applications to the spring. 


Item 6: Public notice – The Commissioner should provide notice to county and township officials. In 


addition farm organizations, agricultural service providers, and extension professionals should also be 


included in the notice. 


Item 7: Activities for mitigation – Nitrogen management practices are evolving rapidly with the evolution 


of precision agriculture. MCGA believes these practices should be explored further for their 


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








 


 
 


 


From: Joe Smentek 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: N Fertilizer Rule Comments 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 9:46:59 PM 
Attachments: N Fertilizer Comments.docx 


Mr. Gunderson,
 
Please find attached the comments on the N fertilizer rule from the Minnesota Soybean Growers

 Association.
 


Joe
 


Joseph Smentek
 
Minnesota Soybean
 
Director of Public Affairs
 
507-388-1635
 



mailto:Joe@MNsoybean.com

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





[bookmark: _GoBack]The Minnesota Soybean Growers Association appreciates the opportunity to comment on the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and associated rule.  It is important to remember that Minnesota’s farmers and farm organizations take the protection of Minnesota’s ground water very seriously. While soybean growers do not apply N fertilizers generally for the use by the soybean plants, residual N from other crops is an important input for soybeans. 





MSGA reminds you that the issues of nitrate effects on groundwater are very complicated and urge you to carefully examine all relevant data as you proceed with rulemaking.  We offer the following comments to assist you and to help insure that the rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) might reasonably expected to achieve the goal of protecting groundwater from adverse impacts of nitrogen fertilizer use.





The first crucial issue to address is the lack of authority given to the Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) when it comes to Nitrogen.  The MDA has no authority to regulate nitrogen in groundwater from manure.  The MDA also lacks the authority to regulate Nitrogen in groundwater from natural sources.  78 percent of the Earth’s atmosphere is made up of Nitrogen.  Manure is a rich source of Nitrogen used in rural Minnesota.  MSGA is very concerned with the lack of differentiation in this rule regarding the different sources of Nitrogen.  If a well is contaminated with Nitrogen and that Nitrogen came from historic poor manure management then the MDA has no authority to continue with this rule’s proposed actions and best management practices.  MSGA does not support the contamination of wells in any way, shape or form, but is concerned that this rule will far exceed the authority given to the MDA.  Without a way to determine where the Nitrogen came from leaves the MDA without the ability to enact these plans.


 


MSGA objects strongly to the use of domestic wells for testing for Nitrogen.  Public wells are built to strict standards to prevent contamination of ground water by surface waters through the short circuiting process.  Private wells are not constructed to those standards.  Use of these wells in the monitoring system would lead to biased, artificially high nitrate levels in these areas.  On page 11, the process of short circuiting, movement of surface water to ground water, can circumvent natural filtration by karst geology.  This same process can easily occur adjacent to private wells.  The MDA should not enact any portion of this plan without dedicated monitoring wells to ensure that the levels of Nitrogen being observed are not from a poorly constructed well or other well problem.





The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan and associated rule applies to those areas of the state where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy soils or karst geology. Thus while it is a statewide plan, it is truly focused on a small fraction of the state. The MDA estimates in the NFMP that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all townships) may be targeted for nitrate testing. The MDA should clearly state this focus of the NFMP and rule and clearly state that all other areas are not subject to the proposed rule.  





The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly defined areas of focus outlined in the plan. The fact that “three out of four Minnesotans rely on groundwater for their drinking water supply” may be true, but it would be more useful to know how many Minnesotans get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of focus covered by the NFMP. Likewise, statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in the context of actually focusing on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 





We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of questionable construction or with known problems from their groundwater assessments. While it is important for all Minnesotans to have access to safe drinking water, it is also important to account for other factors aside from current agricultural fertilizer use as rules are developed. Is the actual impact due to septic systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate condition ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The answers to these questions may also vary considerably across the state. 





MDA should work with local advisory teams once priority areas have been identified. These local advisory teams should require that a majority of members be farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions and their input should be both actively sought and highly regarded. 





With regards to the question of defining “fall” as after August 1, we propose that the MDA give consideration to late planted crops, which are becoming more common in irrigated areas, and which may require nitrogen applications into August or early September.  The MDA should also consider that more frequent, smaller applications of nitrogen may necessitate applications to growing crops further into the late summer and early fall. Fall should be defined no sooner than September.





If the MDA were to require Alternative Management Tools under this plan that might restrict crop choices, some farms and some fertilizer retailers may face costs in excess of $25,000. 





With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the difficulty of defining geography for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil types and their shapes. In the request for comments, the MDA seems to suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas includes elevated groundwater nitrate levels. We would suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas be considered as a separate step-wise process from the evaluation of groundwater nitrate levels.  





An area deemed vulnerable based on geology may have groundwater with elevated nitrate levels or it may not. Any movement toward nitrogen regulation must be accompanied by documented nitrate impacts to groundwater associated with the use of nitrogen fertilizers, as outlined in the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and as authorized in the Groundwater Protection Act. 





We would also suggest that the MDA define coarse textured soils based on NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand. MSGA also suggests that the MDA develop criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater vulnerability throughout the karst region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce vulnerability and fall nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater contamination.  





While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local condition, we would suggest that the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships in which there are clear and marked differences in soil type and groundwater vulnerability across a township.





MSGA recommends that notification be sent to affected counties and townships, farm organizations and Extension professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen Fertilizer Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in guiding MDA efforts under this plan. 





We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs of Minnesota farm organizations and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual Nutrient Management Conference and the annual Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Conference.  Commodity groups do a lot of education to our members in a variety of ways.  Using their existing programs, magazines, and newsletters would make clear sense to get the message out to farmers.





Sincerely,


[image: ]


Paul Freeman


MSGA President


Minnesota Soybean Growers Association


151 Saint Andrews Court   Suite 710   Mankato, MN 56001   P: 507.388.1635   F: 507.388.6751   mnsoybean.org
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


The Minnesota Soybean Growers Association appreciates the opportunity to comment on the Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Management Plan and associated rule.  It is important to remember that Minnesota’s farmers and farm organizations take the 
protection of Minnesota’s ground water very seriously. While soybean growers do not apply N fertilizers generally for the 
use by the soybean plants, residual N from other crops is an important input for soybeans. 


MSGA reminds you that the issues of nitrate effects on groundwater are very complicated and urge you to carefully examine 
all relevant data as you proceed with rulemaking.  We offer the following comments to assist you and to help insure that the 
rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) might reasonably expected to achieve the goal of 
protecting groundwater from adverse impacts of nitrogen fertilizer use. 


The first crucial issue to address is the lack of authority given to the Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) when it 
comes to Nitrogen.  The MDA has no authority to regulate nitrogen in groundwater from manure.  The MDA also lacks the 
authority to regulate Nitrogen in groundwater from natural sources.  78 percent of the Earth’s atmosphere is made up of 
Nitrogen.  Manure is a rich source of Nitrogen used in rural Minnesota.  MSGA is very concerned with the lack of 
differentiation in this rule regarding the different sources of Nitrogen.  If a well is contaminated with Nitrogen and that 
Nitrogen came from historic poor manure management then the MDA has no authority to continue with this rule’s proposed 
actions and best management practices.  MSGA does not support the contamination of wells in any way, shape or form, but is 
concerned that this rule will far exceed the authority given to the MDA.  Without a way to determine where the Nitrogen 
came from leaves the MDA without the ability to enact these plans. 


MSGA objects strongly to the use of domestic wells for testing for Nitrogen.  Public wells are built to strict standards to 
prevent contamination of ground water by surface waters through the short circuiting process.  Private wells are not 
constructed to those standards.  Use of these wells in the monitoring system would lead to biased, artificially high nitrate 
levels in these areas. On page 11, the process of short circuiting, movement of surface water to ground water, can circumvent 
natural filtration by karst geology.  This same process can easily occur adjacent to private wells.  The MDA should not enact 
any portion of this plan without dedicated monitoring wells to ensure that the levels of Nitrogen being observed are not from 
a poorly constructed well or other well problem. 


The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan and associated rule applies to those areas of the state where groundwater is 
vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy soils or karst geology. Thus while it is a statewide plan, it is 
truly focused on a small fraction of the state. The MDA estimates in the NFMP that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all 
townships) may be targeted for nitrate testing. The MDA should clearly state this focus of the NFMP and rule and clearly 
state that all other areas are not subject to the proposed rule. 


The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly defined areas of focus 
outlined in the plan. The fact that “three out of four Minnesotans rely on groundwater for their drinking water supply” may be 
true, but it would be more useful to know how many Minnesotans get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of 
focus covered by the NFMP. Likewise, statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in the context 
of actually focusing on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 


151 Saint Andrews Court  Suite 710  Mankato, MN 56001   P: 507.388.1635 F: 507.388.6751   mnsoybean.org 
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We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of questionable construction or with known problems from their 
groundwater assessments. While it is important for all Minnesotans to have access to safe drinking water, it is also important 
to account for other factors aside from current agricultural fertilizer use as rules are developed. Is the actual impact due to 
septic systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate condition ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The answers to these 
questions may also vary considerably across the state. 


MDA should work with local advisory teams once priority areas have been identified. These local advisory teams should 
require that a majority of members be farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions and their input should be 
both actively sought and highly regarded. 


With regards to the question of defining “fall” as after August 1, we propose that the MDA give consideration to late planted 
crops, which are becoming more common in irrigated areas, and which may require nitrogen applications into August or 
early September.  The MDA should also consider that more frequent, smaller applications of nitrogen may necessitate 
applications to growing crops further into the late summer and early fall. Fall should be defined no sooner than September. 


If the MDA were to require Alternative Management Tools under this plan that might restrict crop choices, some farms and 
some fertilizer retailers may face costs in excess of $25,000. 


With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the difficulty of defining geography 
for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil types and their shapes. In the request for comments, the MDA 
seems to suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas includes elevated groundwater nitrate levels. We 
would suggest that the identification of vulnerable groundwater areas be considered as a separate step-wise process from the 
evaluation of groundwater nitrate levels. 


An area deemed vulnerable based on geology may have groundwater with elevated nitrate levels or it may not. Any 
movement toward nitrogen regulation must be accompanied by documented nitrate impacts to groundwater associated with 
the use of nitrogen fertilizers, as outlined in the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and as authorized in the Groundwater 
Protection Act. 


We would also suggest that the MDA define coarse textured soils based on NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and 
loamy sand. MSGA also suggests that the MDA develop criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater 
vulnerability throughout the karst region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce vulnerability 
and fall nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater contamination. 


While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local condition, we would suggest that 
the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships in which there are clear and marked differences in soil type and 
groundwater vulnerability across a township. 


MSGA recommends that notification be sent to affected counties and townships, farm organizations and Extension 
professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen Fertilizer Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in 
guiding MDA efforts under this plan. 


We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs of Minnesota farm organizations and the Minnesota 
Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual Nutrient Management Conference and the annual Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Management Conference.  Commodity groups do a lot of education to our members in a variety of ways.  Using 
their existing programs, magazines, and newsletters would make clear sense to get the message out to farmers. 


Sincerely, 


Paul Freeman 
MSGA President 
Minnesota Soybean Growers Association 








 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Daniel Munson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:50:17 PM 


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


Daniel Munson 
5837 Halifax Ave. N. 
Brooklyn Center, MN 55429 



mailto:daniel.munson@comcast.net
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From: April Narcisse 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 9:08:51 AM 


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


April Narcisse 
PO Box 385437 
Bloomington, MN 55438 



mailto:narci001@umn.edu

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Janet Neihart 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:09:59 AM 


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


Janet Neihart 
6751 Geneva Ave. So. 
Cottage Grove, MN 55016 



mailto:janeihart66@aol.com
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From: Cindy Nelson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:13:56 PM 


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


Cindy Nelson 
2nd St, SE 
Mpls, MN 55414 



mailto:Nelson.cmae@gmail.com
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From: Raymond Newman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:47:43 PM 


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
 a 14-step process that unnecessarily delays mandatory requirements and further promotes voluntary BMPs. Twenty-
six years is already far too long and mandatory requirements must begin now where nitrate is elevated in
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


Raymond Newman 
336 5th St NE 
Minneapolis, MN 55413 



mailto:rnewman@umn.edu
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From: Tom Olmstead 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:20:37 AM 


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


Tom Olmstead 
6818 118TH AVE N 
Champlin, MN 55316 
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From: David Ondich 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:06:24 PM 


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


David Ondich 
3137 Emerson Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55408 



mailto:david.ondich@gmail.com
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From: Elanne Palcich 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 6:25:19 PM 


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


Elanne Palcich 
29 5th St SE 
Chisholm, MN 55719 



mailto:epalcich@cpinternet.com
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From: Maryann Passe 
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


Maryann Passe 
1249 Balsam Trl E 
Eagan, MN 55123 



mailto:maryannpasse@yahoo.com
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From: Timothy Pearce 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:40:19 PM 


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


Timothy Pearce 
4616 Vallacher Ave 
St Louis Park, MN 55416 



mailto:tim.r.pearce@gmail.com
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From: Ryan Peterson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Monday, February 01, 2016 7:58:20 AM 


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


Ryan Peterson 
5612 Standish Ave 
Minneapolis, MN 55417 



mailto:rhino_peterson@yahoo.com
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From: Timothy Peterson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 7:29:56 PM 


And yet another city, this time in New York in peril with cancerous drinking water.  We need you let the next city
 revealed to be in Minnesota. Clean drinking water is something all Minnesotans need every day.  The proposed
 Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Rule does not go far enough to protect our drinking water and our health. MDA’s
 proposal, based largely on the recommendations of the 2015 Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP), fails to
 require direct action to address groundwater contamination. 


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


Timothy Peterson 
29082 Potassium St NW 
Isanti, MN 55040 



mailto:timgameworld17@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Judi Poulson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:48:15 PM 


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


Judi Poulson 
1881 Knollwood Dr 
Fairmont, MN 56031 



mailto:judpeace@gmail.com
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From: Kurt Sandgren 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Public comment on the "Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer" 
Date: Sunday, January 24, 2016 1:52:25 PM 


The use of domestic wells as a source of nitrogen levels found in our waters doesn’t
 necessarily correlate with local nitrogen applications. It would make much more sense to use
 monitoring wells to figure out where restrictions need to be implemented. 


There are also technologies on the horizon that will hopefully encapsulate the fertilizer to
 allow applications that would otherwise not be considered. To just make laws that do
 not allow for scientific improvements seems ridiculous. 


Lets use science based information to guide this discussion and not forget that we also need
 the ability to cost effectively raise crops to feed a hungry world! 


Kurt Sandgren 
72266 460 St 
Hector MN 55342 


Sent from Windows Mail 
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From: Stephen Emme 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:17:08 AM 


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


Stephen Emme 
4250 2nd St NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 55421 
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From: Peppi Enos 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:21:00 AM 


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


Peppi Enos 
117 E Lake St 
117 e lake st 
Waconia, MN 55387 
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From: Amanda Erickson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 9:59:13 AM 


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


Amanda Erickson 
Main St 
Blomkest, MN 56216 



mailto:amanda.blomkest@gmail.com
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From: Robin Erickson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:11:43 PM 


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


Robin Erickson 
824 James Ave SE 
East Grand Forks, MN 56721 
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From: Susan Erickson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:20:22 AM 


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


Susan Erickson 
868 4th Ave SW 
Faribault, MN 55021 



mailto:suzusme@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


 
                     


 
         


 


     
 


                             
   


 
 


               
           


               
         


 


                               
                                   
                           
 


                             
                               
               


                                 
                             
                                 
 


From: Fuchs, Dennis - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Cc: Wenz, Brad - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Winkelman, Katie - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Pearson, Grant - NRCS­


CD, Waite Park, MN; Lefebvre, Mark - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Herbst, Megan - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; 
Berscheid, Rick - NRCS, Waite Park, MN 


Subject: FW: Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 
Date: Friday, January 22, 2016 9:08:05 AM 
Attachments: image003.png 


Larry, 


Please see comments below. Is it OK to send them to you? 


Thanks and have a great weekend! 
Dennis 


Dennis J. Fuchs | Administrator | Stearns County Soil and Water Conservation District 
110 Second Street South, Suite 128 | Waite Park, MN 56387 
PH: 320-251-7800 ext. 132 |  FX: 1-855-205-6907  |  CELL: 320-290-3854 
Email: dennis.fuchs@mn.nacdnet.net | Web: www.StearnsCountySWCD.net 
“If we do not change direction, we are likely to end up where we are headed.” 
— Chinese proverb 


From: Winkelman, Katie - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN 
Sent: Tuesday, December 29, 2015 11:55 AM 
To: Fuchs, Dennis - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN <Dennis.Fuchs@mn.nacdnet.net> 
Subject: RE: Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 


Dennis, 
I have reviewed the request for comment on the proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule.  I am not sure 
my comments are worthy of sending or the viewpoint of the district but since I spent some time 
reviewing the proposed items I thought I would send to you none the less. 


1)	 Definition of fall: selecting a specific date without an additional clause statement referencing 
specific climate features may be too limiting.  Why limit to a specific date if the conditions 
should continue to allow application without increased risk. 


2)	 I wonder who is responsible for the cost of not complying to the rule…the fertilizer 
applicators or the land operator or the landowner.  This would need to be clearly identified, 
if all parties are partially responsible the cost of not complying will need to be outlined per 
individual/entity. 



mailto:Dennis.Fuchs@mn.nacdnet.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:Brad.Wenz@mn.nacdnet.net

mailto:katie.winkelman@mn.nacdnet.net
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mailto:rick.berscheid@mn.usda.gov

mailto:dennis.fuchs@mn.nacdnet.net
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https://www.facebook.com/pages/Stearns-County-Soil-and-Water-Conservation-District/309249202425135
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6)  Multiple methods (not relying upon one sole method), direct mailing should be one the 
methods, news article publication and public meetings etc. 
8) Still very vague, will there be a list of acceptable fertilizer treatments 


Like I said earlier I am not sure if this is something that needs to be sent but it is items that I would 
like to follow. 


Happy New Year! 


Katie Winkelman 
Soil Conservationist 
Stearns County Soil and Water Conservation District 


110 2nd Street South, Suite 128 
Waite Park, MN 56387 
Phone: (320) 251-7800 X161 
Fax: (855)-205-6907 


From: Fuchs, Dennis - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2015 6:52 AM 
To: Wenz, Brad - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Winkelman, Katie - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Pearson,
 Grant - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Lefebvre, Mark - NRCS-CD, Waite Park, MN; Herbst, Megan - NRCS­
CD, Waite Park, MN; Berscheid, Rick - NRCS, Waite Park, MN 
Subject: FW: Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 


FYI. If you have any comments on the plan, please submit them to me before Friday, January 29, 
2016 and I will compile and submit for the office. 


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
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From: Wolf, Katie (MDA) [mailto:Katie.Wolf@state.mn.us]
 
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2015 11:13 AM
 
To: Wolf, Katie (MDA) <Katie.Wolf@state.mn.us>
 
Subject: Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule
 


The Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) is in the process of writing a Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Rule. The first formal step of the rulemaking process is to solicit comments from the public on the 
proposed rule through a Request for Comments. The Request for Comments was published in the 
State Register on Monday October 26, 2015 and the comment period will be open until Friday 
January, 29 2016. 


A copy of the Request for Comments is attached to this email and can also be found on the MDA’s 
Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule website. 
More information about the proposed rule and rulemaking process can be found on the MDA 
Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule website. 


We strongly encourage you to sign up for the Nitrogen Management email list to keep up to date on 
the rulemaking process and to receive other updates from the MDA about nitrogen management. 


If you have any questions about the Request for Comments or the rulemaking process, please 
contact Larry Gunderson at larry.gunderson@state.mn.us or Katie Wolf at katie.wolf@state.mn.us. 


Katie E. Wolf 
State Program Administrator Senior 
651-201-6659 
katie.wolf@state.mn.us 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 
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https://www.facebook.com/pages/Stearns-County-Soil-and-Water-Conservation-District/309249202425135

mailto:Katie.Wolf@state.mn.us

mailto:Katie.Wolf@state.mn.us

https://www.mda.state.mn.us/sitecore/shell/Controls/Rich%20Text%20Editor/~/media/580A18E67EDA4DF2A59B66401610DEBA.pdf

https://www.mda.state.mn.us/sitecore/shell/Controls/Rich%20Text%20Editor/~/media/580A18E67EDA4DF2A59B66401610DEBA.pdf

http://www.mda.state.mn.us/chemicals/fertilizers/nutrient-mgmt/nitrogenplan/mitigation/wrpr.aspx

http://www.mda.state.mn.us/chemicals/fertilizers/nutrient-mgmt/nitrogenplan/mitigation/wrpr.aspx

http://webmail.mnet.state.mn.us/mailman/listinfo/nitrogen-management

mailto:larry.gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:katie.wolf@state.mn.us

mailto:katie.wolf@state.mn.us

http://www.mda.state.mn.us/






Minnesota Farm Bureau Federation® 



January 26, 2016 


Larry Gunderson 
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 
Minnesota Department ofAgriculture 
625 Robert Street North 
St. Paul, MN 55155-2538 


Dear Mr. Gunderson: 


Minnesota Farm Bureau is extremely interested in the actions planned by the Department ofAgriculture 
as the process continues in development of rules related to the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan. 
Our members and all Minnesota farmers take the protection of ground water very seriously. 


As opposed to over-reaction and inappropriate regulatory activities we want the record to reflect that 
advances in nitrogen management have been made, particularly in areas with relatively higher potential 
for nitrate nitrogen losses due to leaching. Many proactive and positive steps have been widely adopted 
by those who depend on wise use and optimum benefits associated with nutrient management. Some 
would seek to misrepresent this point, in spite of the way in which MDA and University ofMinnesota 
reports show high rates ofadoption ofcurrently recognized nitrogen fertilizer BMPs. 


We wish the record to properly represent that the issue ofnitrate effects on groundwater is very 
complicated. We strongly encourage that you carefully examine and document for public review all the 
relevant data that is made available during the rulemaking process. We offer the following comments to 
assist you and to help insure that the rules developed under the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan 
(NFMP) might reasonably be expected to achieve the goal ofprotecting groundwater from adverse 
impacts ofnitrogen fertilizer use. 


The NFMP clearly outlines that the plan (and thus the associated rule) applies to those areas of the state 
where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination, generally those areas with sandy soils or karst 
geology. Even though this is a statewide plan, the context of considered activities needs to properly 
focus on a small fraction of the state where contamination is an issue. The MDA estimates in the NFMP 
that 250-350 townships (15-20% of all townships) may be targeted for nitrate testing. The MDA should 
clearly state this focus of the NFMP and rule and clearly state that all other areas are not subject to the 
proposed rule. 


The MDA should refrain from using statewide statistics, which are not relevant given the clearly defined 
areas of focus outlined in the plan. As an example the fact that "three out of four Minnesotans rely on 
groundwater for their drinking water supply" may be true, but it would be more useful to know how 
many Minnesotans get their drinking water from groundwater in the areas of focus covered by the 
NFMP. Likewise, statewide crop acreages, fertilizer sales and related figures mean little in the context of 
actually focusing on and prioritizing efforts to protect vulnerable groundwater. 


Physical Address: 3080 Eagandale Place. Eagan, MN 55121-2118 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 64370, St Paul, MN 55164-0370 


Phone: 651.905.2100 Fax: 651.905.2159 e-mail: info@lbmn.org www.lbmn.org 
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We agree with the MDA's conclusion that tile drainage should not be a priority under the NFMP as the 
co-incidence of tile drainage and vulnerable groundwater is extremely minimal. 


Farm Bureau policy explicitly takes exception to the proposed use of a domestic well testing program 
offered in the MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer Plan. We strongly recommend that the MDA exclude wells of 
questionable construction or with known problems from their groundwater assessments. While it is 
important for all Minnesotans to have access to safe drinking water, it is also important to account for all 
the factors for specific areas of concern and not entirely limit the consequences on commercial 
agricultural fertilizer use. Is the actual impact due to septic systems or feedlots? Is the nitrate condition 
ongoing or due to decades-old contributions? The answers to these questions may also vary considerably 
across the state. 


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
but it will only apply in areas with vulnerable groundwater. In these areas, the restriction of fall and 
frozen soil applications will provide a means for the MDA to insure that all farmers are following this 
recommended BMP. We would encourage the MDA to allow for exceptions for phosphorus fertilizers 
containing small amounts ofnitrogen, such as MAP or DAP, in instances where fall application is part 
of an overall conservation strategy to reduce soil erosion. 


We want to express our concern with arbitrarily defining "fall" as time after August 1. If this timeframe 
will be used for regulatory purposes, substantial documentation and research findings should be given 
for justification. It should also be clearly indicated that it would only apply to areas with vulnerable 
groundwater classification. 


Even though the impact for typical farm or ranch businesses might not exceed $25,000 in association 
with the basic rule, it should be clearly noted that further requirements by MDA for Alternative 
Management Tools and consequences of restrictive crop choices might force costs above $25,000 for 
some farms and fertilizer retailers. 


With regards to the question of criteria for vulnerable groundwater areas, we understand the difficulty of 
defining geography for purposes of a rule, given the highly variable nature of soil types and their shapes. 
We do insist that the rule would incorporate the concept that MDA define coarse textured soils based on 
NRCS classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand. We also suggest that the MDA develop 
criteria that more accurately reflects the variability in groundwater vulnerability throughout the karst 
region. Even in this area, some areas have greater topsoil depths that reduce vulnerability and fall 
nitrogen applications can be done without undue risk of groundwater contamination. 


While the township scale proposed by the MDA should be small enough to address local condition, we 
would suggest that the MDA also consider some exemptions for those townships in which there are clear 
and marked differences in soil type and groundwater vulnerability across a township. 







With regards to reasonable notification, we recommend notification be sent to affected counties and 
townships, farm/commodity organizations and Extension professionals. The newly formed Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Education and Promotion Team should also play an integral role in guiding MDA efforts. 


We also encourage the MDA to support ongoing educational programs ofMinnesota farm/commodity 
organizations and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Resource Center, especially the annual Nutrient 
Management Conference and the annual Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Conference. 


Minnesota Farm Bureau looks forward to continued involvement in this on-going process and being able 
to trace these and other recommended ideas as having been considered and used in the final product of 
the rule-making process. 


Kevin Paap 
President 


KP/kfo 








 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: John Finazzo 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:04 AM 


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


John Finazzo 
1070 North Shore Drive W 
Orono, MN 55364 
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From: Karla Forsyth 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:39:27 PM 


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


Karla Forsyth 
2212 Irving Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55405 
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From: Dong Freeman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:41:51 PM 


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


Dong Freeman 
81 Arthur Ave SE 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 
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From: Brenda Freier 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:20:10 AM 


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


Brenda Freier 
5841 139th St W 
Apple Valley, MN 55124 
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From: Darrell Gerber 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule Comments 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 1:25:42 PM 
Attachments: FWS_Comments_NFR_FINAL_2016_01_27.docx 


Please find attached Freshwater Society’s comments on the Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. 


Thank you, 


Darrell Gerber Research and Policy Director 
Freshwater Society 
dgerber@freshwater.org 
(651) 313-5812 (note the new phone number) 
(612) 802-5372 cell 
Twitter: @FWSDarrell 


www.freshwater.org  -- Like us on Facebook, follow us onTwitter, and Read our Blog 
2424 Territorial Rd, Suite B, St Paul, MN 55114 


Educating and inspiring people to value, conserve and protect freshwater resources. 



mailto:DGerber@freshwater.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:dgerber@freshwater.org

http://www.freshwater.org/

https://twitter.com/FreshwaterSoc

https://twitter.com/FreshwaterSocC:/Users/dcoleman/Documents/Adobe

http://freshwater.org/category/blog/
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January 27, 2016





Larry Gunderson


Minnesota Department of Agriculture


625 Robert Street North 


St Paul MN 55155





Re: Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337 (Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule)





Mr. Gunderson:





Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Minnesota Department of Agriculture’s (MDA) Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule (the Rule). Freshwater Society has a history of working on the intersection of agriculture and water. Freshwater Society staff has participated in advisory committees for the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Quality Certification Program. Our 2014 report “Farm to Stream: Recommendations for Accelerating Soil and Water Stewardship” looked at improvements in the delivery of conservation BMPs in Minnesota.





Freshwater Society reviewed the Rule and offers these comments.





· Timing is too slow – Nitrate contamination of groundwater has been getting progressively worse across rural Minnesota for decades. The Minnesota Department of Health lists sixteen community public water supply systems with nitrates in their source water at concentrations over 10 mg/L in their “Minnesota Drinking Water 2015 Annual Report for 2014”. They also found that about 10 percent of non-community systems are affected by nitrate contamination. This did not happen overnight and will not improve without immediate action. In those areas with known nitrate contamination issues, measures to reduce sources of nitrate pollution must be accelerated.


· Troubling early results – The NFMP called for increased testing of groundwater in areas at high risk of nitrate contamination. The first rounds of testing have revealed surprising and troubling results. Thirteen percent of wells tested in 2013-2014 have nitrate levels above the HRL, and some townships have more than half of wells tested that exceed the HRL. The Rule has not taken into account these surprising results. The results indicate that areas with high risk of nitrate contamination are likely to have excessive levels of nitrates in groundwater. The Rule should accelerate actions in vulnerable areas.


· Manage to prevent contamination – The Rule does not act until contamination levels in groundwater are already high enough to threaten public health. Given the slow rate of increase in nitrate levels, it seems prudent to act when statistical trends are going up—not waiting for them to reach 10 mg/L. This is an unnecessary shift of burden to drinking water users that can be prevented through reductions in nitrogen loss in the most vulnerable areas. 





We appreciate the opportunity to review and comment on the Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. We look forward to the opportunity to continue to work with the Department of Agriculture on these and other issues affecting the state’s water.  








Darrell Gerber





[bookmark: _GoBack]





Research and Policy Director


Freshwater Society
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January 27, 2016 


Larry Gunderson 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
625 Robert Street North 
St Paul MN 55155 


Re: Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor’s 
ID Number R-04337 (Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule) 


Mr. Gunderson: 


Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Minnesota Department of 
Agriculture’s (MDA) Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule (the Rule). Freshwater Society has a 
history of working on the intersection of agriculture and water. Freshwater Society 
staff has participated in advisory committees for the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management 
Plan (NFMP) and the Minnesota Agricultural Water Quality Certification Program. 
Our 2014 report “Farm to Stream: Recommendations for Accelerating Soil and 
Water Stewardship” looked at improvements in the delivery of conservation BMPs 
in Minnesota. 


Freshwater Society reviewed the Rule and offers these comments. 


•	 Timing is too slow – Nitrate contamination of groundwater has been getting 
progressively worse across rural Minnesota for decades. The Minnesota 
Department of Health lists sixteen community public water supply systems 
with nitrates in their source water at concentrations over 10 mg/L in their 
“Minnesota Drinking Water 2015 Annual Report for 2014”. They also found 
that about 10 percent of non-community systems are affected by nitrate 
contamination. This did not happen overnight and will not improve without 
immediate action. In those areas with known nitrate contamination issues, 
measures to reduce sources of nitrate pollution must be accelerated. 


•	 Troubling early results – The NFMP called for increased testing of 
groundwater in areas at high risk of nitrate contamination. The first rounds of 
testing have revealed surprising and troubling results. Thirteen percent of 
wells tested in 2013-2014 have nitrate levels above the HRL, and some 
townships have more than half of wells tested that exceed the HRL. The Rule 
has not taken into account these surprising results. The results indicate that 
areas with high risk of nitrate contamination are likely to have excessive 
levels of nitrates in groundwater. The Rule should accelerate actions in 
vulnerable areas. 


•	 Manage to prevent contamination – The Rule does not act until 
contamination levels in groundwater are already high enough to threaten 


www.freshwater.org 
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public health. Given the slow rate of increase in nitrate levels, it seems 
prudent to act when statistical trends are going up—not waiting for them to 
reach 10 mg/L. This is an unnecessary shift of burden to drinking water users 
that can be prevented through reductions in nitrogen loss in the most 
vulnerable areas. 


We appreciate the opportunity to review and comment on the Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Rule. We look forward to the opportunity to continue to work with the Department 
of Agriculture on these and other issues affecting the state’s water. 


Darrell Gerber 


Research and Policy Director 
Freshwater Society 
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From: Trevor Russell 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: FMR Nitrate Fertilizer Rule Comments 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 4:58:17 PM 
Attachments: FMR N Fertilizer Rule Comments FINAL.pdf 


Greetings Mr. Gunderson, 


Please find FMR's attached comments on the MDA's proposed Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Rule ( /Mn Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337./) 


Best wishes, 


Trevor 


Trevor A. Russell 
Water Program Director 
Friends of the Mississippi River 
360 North Robert Street, Suite 400 
Saint Paul, MN 55101 
Phone: (651) 222-2193 extension #18 
Fax: (651) 222-6005 



mailto:trussell@fmr.org

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us
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January 29th, 2016  
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Larry Gunderson 
Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
625 Robert Street North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
larry.gunderson@mn.state.us 
 
Dear Mr. Gunderson,   
 
I am writing on behalf of Friends of the Mississippi River and our members with our responses to the 
request for comments on the proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule (Mn Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID 
Number R-04337.) 
 
Friends of the Mississippi River (FMR) is a non-profit organization founded in 1993 with a mission to 
protect, preserve and enhance the Mississippi River and its watershed in the Twin Cities metro area and 
beyond. FMR has long been concerned about agricultural impacts to Minnesota's surface waters and 
groundwater resources, and has made advancing meaningful progress toward agricultural water quality 
performance a priority. With over 1,600 statewide members, 22 active board members and 18 staff, FMR 
is a leading citizen organization working to protect and enhance water quality throughout the Mississippi 
River watershed.  
 
Nitrate Pollution in Minnesota 
As demonstrated by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s (MPCA) 2013 report on nitrogen in 
surface water, approximately 73% of nitrate pollution to Minnesota’s surface waters is from agricultural 
pollution. A full 30% of this nitrate contamination is from agricultural pollution to shallow groundwater 
that eventually makes its way to surface waters.  
 
Not surprisingly, groundwater contamination has increased in six out the state’s seven regions over the 
last decade. In addition, 27% of Minnesota streams exceed 10mg/l concentrations for nitrate, and more 
than 40% exceed 5mg/l. Approximately 211 million pounds of excess nitrate flows downstream through 
the Mississippi River watershed annually from Minnesota. The MPCA's Nutrient Reduction Strategy 
includes interim nitrate pollution reduction goals of 20% by 2025 and 45% by 2045. The achievement of 
these goals, along with efforts to protect groundwater resources in Minnesota, will require significant 
changes to on-the-ground agricultural practices across the state, including those influenced by the MDA's 
proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule.  
 
 



Friends of the Mississippi River 
360 N Robert Street, Suite 400 • Saint Paul, MN  55101 • 651/ 222-2193 • Fax 651/ 222-6005 
 
 
 
Working to protect the Mississippi River and its watershed in the Twin Cities Area.  
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The Groundwater Protection Act of 1989  
The 1989 Groundwater Protection Act established the state goal that "groundwater be maintained in its 
natural condition, free from any degradation caused by human activities."1 For agricultural chemicals 
including nitrogen fertilizer, implemented is conducted by the Minnesota Department of Agriculture 
(MDA).  
 
MDA's duties under the Act include the following:  



• Identify and develop best management practices (BMPS) to ensure that the goals of the 
Groundwater Protect Act are achieved;  



• Promote BMP that are capable of preventing and minimizing degradation of groundwater;  
• Evaluate the use and effectiveness of these BMPs;   
• Evaluate agricultural pollutants in the groundwater resources;  
• Monitor groundwater for common detection pollutants; and  
• If voluntary BMPs prove ineffective, the MDA may adopt by rule Water Resource Protection 



Requirements (WRPRs) that are consistent with the goal of preventing and minimizing 
groundwater pollution to the extent practicable. 



 
Despite comprehensive promotion of nitrogen fertilizer BMPs throughout the state, the data suggest that 
efforts to secure voluntary BMPs have proven insufficient to prevent groundwater contamination.  
 
For example, the state has conducted comprehensive monitoring of groundwater throughout the state 
since 1985. These results indicate that rate of detection of nitrate in groundwater is between 50% - 99% 
of samples in all groundwater regions. Rates of detection and the share of samples in excess of the Health 
Risk Limit (HRL) have increased in 6 of the 7 tested groundwater regions of the state.2  
 



 % Detection % Above HRL 



Groundwater Region 1985- 
1999 



2000- 
2010 



% 
Increase 



1985- 
1999 



2000- 
2010 



% 
Increase 



Region 1 (Northwest)  6 50 44 0 8 8 
Region 4 (Central)  73 97 24 38 62 24 
Region 5 (East Central)  74 93 19 44 50 6 
Region 6 (West Central)  25 56 31 8 17 9 
Region 7 (Southwest)  34 56 22 6 29 23 
Region 8 (South Central)  18 62 44 7 19 12 
Region 9 (Southeast)  83 99 16 35 22 -13 



 
The Groundwater Protection Act clearly states that if voluntary BMP adoption proves insufficient to 
achieve the goals of the Act, the MDA has authority to adopt mandatory Water Resource Protection 
Requirements (WRPRs) that include “design criteria, standards, operation and maintenance procedures, 
practices to prevent releases, spills, leaks, and incidents, restrictions on use and practices, and treatment 
requirements."3 
 



                                                 
1 Min. Stat. 103H.001 Degradation protection Goal. Available at: .https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=103H.001 
2 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 131. 
3 Minn. Stat. §§ 103H. 275, subd. 1 (b) and 103H.005, subd.14  
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Given the state of groundwater contamination in Minnesota, FMR concludes that voluntary BMP 
adoption has proven ineffective, and strongly supports the MDA's decision to establish Water Resource 
Protection Requirements (WRPRs) by rule.  
 
Comments on the Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule (Mn Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337) 
The MDA is proposing a two-part Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule:   



• Part 1: The first part of the rule will apply to areas of the state overlying vulnerable groundwater. 
In these vulnerable groundwater areas, nitrogen fertilizer applications either in the fall or to frozen 
soils will have restrictions.  
 



• Part 2: The second part of the rule will apply to areas where measured nitrate levels in 
groundwater are elevated and it has been determined that the nitrogen fertilizer Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) are not being adopted. Restrictions will be based on University of Minnesota 
Best Management Practices for Nitrogen Application.  



 
1. The MDA is considering using a definition of fall as after August 31st. Nitrogen fertilizer 



applications in vulnerable groundwater areas after August 31st would be subject to some level 
of restriction.  
 
Comment: FMR supports the MDA's approach to defining fall as after August 31st of a given year. 
However, the MDA's definition of "vulnerable groundwater areas" is severely flawed and is 
incompatible with the goals of the Groundwater Protection Act. Please see comments below.  
 



2. The MDA is seeking comments on whether the cost of complying with the proposed rule in the 
first year after the rule takes effect will exceed $25,000 for any small business or small city.  



 
Comment: FMR concludes that the cost of complying with the proposed rule in the first year after the 
rule takes effect will not exceed $25,000 for any small business or small city.  
 
The MDA has repeatedly asserted that excess application of agricultural fertilizer is incompatible 
with profit motives of producers; and thus farm operations can and will reduce nitrogen loss in order 
to maximize nitrogen efficiency and farm profit. As such, WRPRs aimed at adopted practices that 
will enhance farm profitability cannot reasonably be anticipated to impose additional costs on the 
above parties. As such, FMR concludes that the proposed rules will not impose costs in excess of 
$25,000 to any small business or small city.  



 
3. An area will be considered a vulnerable area if it meets any one of the following criteria: (A) 



Areas with coarse textured soils; (B) Geology defined as karst or fractured bedrock. (C) The 
township or Drinking Water Supply Management Areas (DWSMAs) meets the groundwater 
nitrate concentration criteria of mitigation level 1 or higher as indicated in the NFMP on pages 
69 and 70 and in Chapter 10; (D) The MDA is also considering using the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resource’s Procedure for Determining Near-Surface Pollution 
Sensitivity as an additional criterion.  
 
Comment: FMR has serious concerns with items (C) listed above: "an area will be considered a 
vulnerable area if…the township or Drinking Water Supply Management Areas (DWSMAs) meets 
the groundwater nitrate concentration criteria of mitigation level 1 or higher as indicated in the NFMP 
on pages 69 and 70 and in Chapter 10.: 
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Our concerns are three-fold:   
I. The MDA's proposed rules fail to achieve the clearly stated non-degradation goal of the 



Groundwater Protect Act. While the MDA does acknowledge the intent of the Act is to 
prevent groundwater degradation, the MDA proposes only to deploy Nitrogen Fertilizer Rules 
once groundwater has become contaminated. This approach in incompatible with the clearly 
stated goals of the Act. The MDA's sole justification for this approach appears to be its 
interpretation that the Act's "maximum extent practicable” test limits MDA action to activities 
that will "…provide for the minimum amount of nitrogen fertilizer to be used while still 
achieving economic profitability."4  
 
While FMR has a stated goal of helping Minnesota achieve both clean water and farm 
prosperity, we strongly disagree with the MDA's assumption that maintaining producer 
profitability trumps the public's interest in clean, safe groundwater resources. The decision to 
apply a profit-driven "maximum extent practicable" threshold to short-circuit the goal of the Act 
violates both legislative intent of the Act and the public interest in clean water. The Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Management Plan and Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule should be re-drafted to address the 
clearly stated non-degradation goals of the Groundwater Protection Act.  
 



II. The MDA's proposed rule unreasonably limits application of the Groundwater Protection 
Act to drinking water resources instead of applying the law to protect all groundwater as 
directed by the Act. The MDA has failed to provide sufficient justification for this 
interpenetration.  
 
This is of concern to FMR because of the widespread frequency of shallow groundwater 
contamination across the state. According to the State, 85% of shallow groundwater samples 
have detectable levels of nitrate contamination.5 The MDA's approach would eliminate the 
application of phased mitigation criteria and the use of WRPRs in areas with significant 
groundwater contamination where the shallow groundwater wells are not a source of public or 
private well water.  
 
Were the Act called the "Groundwater Used as Drinking Water Protect Act", FMR would not 
object to the MDA's approach. However, that is not the case. FMR feels strongly that the MDA 
has a responsibility to apply the law based on clearly established legislative intent.  
  
The Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan and Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule should be re-drafted to 
address the Groundwater Protection Act's clearly stated goal of protecting all groundwater 
rather than a subset of groundwater resources. The MDA should authorize the use of WRPRs in 
areas with demonstrated groundwater contamination regardless of whether or not that 
groundwater is used as a drinking water source.  
 



III. The MDA's mitigation criteria fail to meet the goals of the Act. Even when the MDA does 
apply the Nitrogen Fertilizer Rules to already-contaminated well water, the phase criteria are far 
too lenient to meet the goals of the Groundwater Protection Act or to reasonably protect either 
public health or local economic vitality.  



                                                 
4 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 131. 
5 Minnesota Environmental Quality Board. 2015. EQB Water Policy Report, Beyond the Status Quo, Appendix A: Five-year Assessment of Water Quality 
Degradation trends and Prevention Efforts. Page 7. Available at: https://www.eqb.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/documents/App%20A%20Five-
year%20Assessment%20of%20Water%20Qual%28final%29.pdf 
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The draft NFMP utilizes a phased approach to determine the appropriate BMP adoption criteria 
and mitigation strategy, based largely on BMP adoption rates and drinking water contamination 
levels. The NFMP includes the following tables that summarize these mitigation phase criteria. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



z 
FMR has a number of concerns with these phase criteria and how they will be applied to the 
determination of 'vulnerability' in the MDA's WRPRs.  
 



a. Phase 1: For private wells, phase 1 is considered when 5% of the wells have nitrate 
levels greater than the HRL or 10% or more of the wells have groundwater 
concentrations greater than 7 mg/L. For public wells, phase 1 is considered wells have 
nitrate levels at 5.5 mg/l - greater than the 50% of the HRL.  
 
The thresholds for Phase 1 mitigation are far too high. Postponing even voluntary Phase 
1 action until 1 in 20 private wells exceeds the HRL poses a significant threat to public 
health and a substantial cost burden on local residents and businesses. Likewise, 
postponing Phase 1 adoption for public wells until drinking water supplies are more than 
half way to the HRL is unwise, and poses unfair long-term risks to local communities. 
This approach fails to honor the spirit and intent of the Groundwater Protection Act. 
 
FMR's concerns are amplified by the MDA's acknowledgement that there can be a 
substantial lag time between in-field nutrient management choices and a response in 
drinking water quality.6 As a result, waiting until groundwater is already contaminated 



                                                 
6 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 80. "The lag time can be less than a year to decades depending 
upon a number of factors including soil type, geology, depth to groundwater, the volume, intensity and timing of precipitation, as well as field practices such 
as tillage and crop type."  
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to these thresholds before beginning a laborious and long-term 4-phase process of 
remediation presents the very real possibility that drinking water contamination at or 
above these levels will persist for "years or decades" even after WRPRs are 
implemented.  
 
The Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan's Phase 1 criteria should apply when 5% of 
private wells exceed 5.4 mg/l, or public well contamination levels exceed 2.5 mg/l (25% 
of HRL). This level allows communities to engage in mitigation efforts before HRLs are 
exceeded, and long before local residents are forced to invest in bottled water, expensive 
new wells, or residential de-nitrification systems.  
 



b. Phase 2: For private wells, Phase 2 is considered when 10% of the wells have nitrate 
levels greater than the HRL and BMPs are being adopted. For public wells, Phase 2 is 
considered wells are projected to exceed the HRL within 10 years and BMPs are being 
adopted.  
 
The thresholds for Phase 2 mitigation are far too high. Postponing consideration of 
regulatory action until more than 1 in 10 private wells are unsafe to drink imposes 
significant costs on local residents and businesses. Likewise, we oppose the MDA's 
proposed approach of maintaining voluntary-only mitigation when public wells are still 
projected to exceed the HRL in the near future. Asking Minnesotans to consider 
substantial investments in bottled water, de-nitrification systems, or new drinking water 
wells absent any accountability for the agricultural businesses responsible for that 
contamination is profoundly unfair.  
 
The Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan's Phase 2 criteria should apply when 10% of 
private wells exceed 7 mg/l, or when public well contamination levels exceed 5.4 mg/l. 
This approach will allow communities to engage in mitigation efforts before HRLs are 
exceeded.  
 
The larger flaw with the Phase 2 threshold is that the MDA commits not to move beyond 
phase 2 voluntary mitigation if nitrogen fertilizer BMPs are being adopted, regardless of 
water quality conditions. According to the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan:  
 



"All sites will start in a voluntary level (Level 1 or 2), determined using the 
mitigation criteria discussed in Chapter 9, and will only move to a regulatory level 
(Level 3 or 4) if the BMPs are not being adopted."7 



 
This statement aligns with the MDA’s October 16th, 2013 presentation on the NFMP at 
the Minnesota Water Resources Conference, during which staff stated: “If growers 
adopt best management practices, its very unlikely that regulations will be adopted.” 



 
This is a dangerous and absurdly flawed approach for three reasons.  
 



i. The state is hamstringing its own ability to deploy regulatory measures in the 
event of a public health crisis. BMP adoption rates should not prevent the state 



                                                 
7Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 75. Available at: 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf 
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from adopting Phase 3 & 4 regulatory mitigation activities to protect public 
health.  



 
FMR is concerned that the MDH has failed to anticipate the justifiable public 
outcry that will inevitably arise when communities in crisis find that their own 
state agency has made itself powerless to compel polluters to take any additional 
action to protect drinking water supplies. 



 
ii. The MDH is setting the state up for failure by proposing to limit regulatory 



action based on adoption BMPs that were simply never intended to prevent 
drinking water contamination in the first place. The proposed BMPs were instead 
created to maximize farm profit; even at application rates the state acknowledges 
lead to extremely high concentrations of nitrate in farm runoff.  



 
For example, page 3 of the University of Minnesota Extension Best Management 
Practices for Nitrogen Use in South-Central Minnesota states that “Maximum 
Economic Return to N” (MRTN) rates are used to determine economically 
optimal fertilizer application rates. In the example used, the MRTN rate was 
found to be spring-applied at 120-lb/acre.  



 
“Greatest yield and profit with a minimal increase in NO3-N concentration 
was found with the spring-applied 120-lb N rate.” 



 
Table 2 of that same document concludes that the recommended spring 
application of nitrogen fertilizer at a 120 lbs/acre would yield nitrate loss at 
concentrations of 13.7 mg/l – well above the state’s Health Risk Limit for 
nitrate.  



 
As this example suggests, the fertilizer application rates recommended by the 
UofM Extension are designed to provide the rate that ensures maximum 
producer profitability; even at rates that yield high levels of pollution to 
groundwater and surface waters.  



 
• The MDA acknowledges this in the NFMP, noting that these nitrogen 



BMP recommendations focus on managing the “agronomic risk", and that 
other risks such as environmental and societal risks are not accounted for.8  



 
• The NFMP also states that "In areas with highly vulnerable groundwater, 



the use of nitrogen fertilizer at the recommended rate, timing, source and 
placement…may not be enough to decrease the amount of nitrate leaching 
into groundwater to meet water quality goals."9 



 
The MDA has not provided any reasonable explanation as to how nitrogen 
fertilization rates that yield pollution concentrations in excess of the HRL can 



                                                 
8 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 41. Available at: 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf	
  
9 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 57. Available at: 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf 
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possibly comply with the goals of the Groundwater Protection Act, let alone 
adequately protect public health. 



        
FMR respectfully re-states our recommendation that the MDA partner with the 
Minnesota Department of Health, the University of Minnesota and local 
stakeholders (including public and private well owners) to establish University of 
Minnesota Extension Sustainable Nitrogen Application Best Management 
Practices in prioritized communities.  
 
These two-part, sustainability-focused BMPs would:  



• Define the maximum sustainable level of nitrate loss to groundwater and 
surface water based on local conditions; and  



• Assign tailored nitrogen fertilization management BMPs that result in 
nitrogen losses that do not exceed sustainable nitrogen loss levels. 



 
In this way, BMP fertilizer application rates are localized to meet water resource 
goals, resulting in fair and efficient achievement of protection and restoration 
outcomes.  
 
In addition, because these BMP rates are based on water quality needs (rather 
than crop and fertilizer prices), these application rates will not be subject to 
change based solely on outside market forces as is the case with the current 
UofM approach.  
 



iii. When the MDA does choose to consider moving to more "stringent" regulatory 
measures, it does so at an alarmingly slow pace. The NFMP prescribes a 14-step 
mitigation phase evaluation process that takes at least 3 years if not far longer to 
implement. The process includes the following steps:  
 
1. Form local Advisory Team; 
2. Select a project lead and develop a work plan; 
3. Establish a local nitrate monitoring network; 
4. Hold a public information meeting(s); 
5. Select UofM nitrogen BMPs; 
6. Conduct an initial survey of BMP adoption; 
7. Consider Alternative Management Tools (AMTs); 
8. Assess the need for demonstration projects; 
9. Develop a plan for educational activities; 
10. Assist with obtaining funding for implementation;  
11. Work with farmers to implement selected BMPs; 
12. Conduct a follow up survey of BMP adoption after three years; 
13. Evaluate BMP adoption; and  
14. Determine mitigation phase.  



 
This lengthy 14-step process simply delays the inevitable. In any area vulnerable 
to groundwater contamination, farm operations will eventually need to comply 
with basic fertilizer management recommendations as a first step toward 
improvement. In doing so, producers will also maximize their own farm profits. 
Requiring such a time-consuming and expensive 14-step process during early-
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phase mitigation activities simply to further encourage farm operations to apply 
fertilizer at their economically optimal rate is a tremendous waste of time, 
money, and community goodwill. 
 



c. Phase 3 & 4: Phase 3 is considered when 10% of the private wells have nitrate levels 
greater than the HRL and BMPs are not being adopted. For public wells, Phase 4 is 
considered when 15% or more of the wells exceed the HRL and BMPs are not being 
adopted. For public wells, Phase 4 mitigation is triggered when public wells are exceed 
9 mg/l and BMPs are not being adopted.  



 
These mitigation phase thresholds are dangerously unwise. As stated above, the MDH is 
proposing to hamstring its own ability to deploy regulatory measures in the event of a 
public health crisis simply because a given percentage of producers have adopted BMPs 
that were never intended to prevent drinking water contamination in the first place10, and 
which the MDA acknowledges are not sufficient to meet the goals of the Act.11  
 
As a result, the modest local adoption of inherently sub-optimal BMPs deprives the 
entire community of regulatory relief regardless of water quality conditions. This is 
profoundly unfair to local residents and is a serious flaw with both the Nitrogen 
Fertilizer Management Plan and the Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule.  
 
FMR is concerned that the MDA has failed to anticipate the public's response to the 
inevitable scenario where 10-15% of private wells and an entire community drinking 
water supply system are contaminated in excess of the HRL, and the MDA is forced to 
acknowledge that it has chosen to limit its own ability to intervene. 
 
FMR respectfully restates our recommendation that the MDA removed BMP adoption 
rates as a consideration in Phase 3 and Phase 4 mitigation criteria. If community and 
private well water is unsafe for consumption, the MDA has a responsibility to deploy 
regulatory intervention without restrictions.  



 
4. Vulnerable groundwater areas will need recognizable boundaries. The MDA is proposing to use 



townships and DWSMAs as these boundaries. Township boundaries would be used for 
mitigating private wells. DWSMA boundaries would be used for mitigating public wells. Any 
township with more than 50% of its land meeting the definition of vulnerable groundwater 
areas would have a restriction on nitrogen fertilizer application in the fall or to frozen soils.  



 
Comment: FMR recommends that a restriction on nitrogen application in the fall or to frozen soils 
should extend statewide to all farm operations regardless of perceived groundwater or surface water 
vulnerability.  



 
5. The MDA is considering exceptions to the first part of the rule restricting fall application or 



application to frozen ground for specific crops and/or agricultural practices. Exceptions being 
considered are:  



a. Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish cover crops.  



                                                 
10	
  Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 41. Available at: 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf	
  
11	
  Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 57. Available at: 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf	
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b. Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish small grains.  
c. Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish perennials in the fall.  
d. Nitrogen needed for fall pasture fertilization.  
e. Application of Monoammonium Phosphate (MAP) and Diammonium Phosphate 



(DAP) when following University of Minnesota phosphorus recommendations. . 
f. Land application of agricultural chemical contaminated soil in accordance with 



Minnesota Statute 18D.1052.  
 



FMR has no comment on these exceptions at this time.   
 
6. According to the Statute 103H.275, the Commissioner of Agriculture would issue a 



Commissioner’s Order detailing the townships or Drinking Water Supply Management Areas 
affected by the rule and the practices required to minimize nitrogen leaching. The 
Commissioner is required to provide notice to the public before the Commissioner’s Order goes 
into effect. What reasonable methods of notification should be used to notify the affected 
townships and Drinking Water Supply Management Areas of the Commissioner’s Order?  
 
Comment: Given the public health risks associated with elevated nitrate levels in both public and 
private drinking water supplies, it seems reasonable to notify all residential and commercial 
properties in effected townships and DWSMAs affected by the Commissioners Order. This includes 
all private well owners, community water supply systems, and non-community public water supply 
systems.  
 
Notifications should be made available by direct mail to all known addresses, through local media 
outlets, via standard public notice procedures, and through direct consultation with local 
governments.  
   
In addition, FMR feels strongly that notifications should also clarify for local residents and businesses 
in Phase 1-4 mitigation areas that the MDA is choosing to:  
 



I. Limit application of regulatory mitigation criteria when profit-derived BMPs are being adopted, 
even if drinking water contamination levels continue to exceed the Health Risk Limit. Local 
residents deserve to know that the MDA's approach to rectifying drinking water contamination 
is not based on public health and drinking water quality but rather the rate of adoption of 
fertilizer management practices that the agency acknowledges are not environmentally based, 
but instead are designed to optimize the incomes of the very farm operations contaminating 
public and private drinking water sources; and 
 



II. Limit any application mitigation criteria when groundwater that is not used as a drinking water 
source is contaminated, in violation of the clearly stated intent of the Groundwater Protection 
Act; and;  



 
FMR feels that the MDA's proposed rules have clearly been crafted under the assumption that 
Minnesotans who cannot safely drink their water (or who can reasonably anticipate future 
contamination of their drinking water in excess of the HRL) will be satisfied with the MDA's slow-
walk approach to rectifying a serious local public health risk. In addition, the MDA's approach 
assumes Minnesotans are comfortable with the MDA's application of the rules only to groundwater 
used as drinking water, despite the Groundwater Protection Act stating otherwise.  
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While FMR strongly disagrees with the MDA's assumptions, it is certainly fair to ask and expect that 
the MDA fully disclose those assumptions and the conditions under which contamination of drinking 
water and groundwater can and will persist absent any regulatory relief from the state.   
 



7. The Commissioner’s Order will contain a list of activities required for mitigation that will be 
specific to each township or wellhead protection area. The mitigation activities would be 
selected from a menu of options contained in the rule. These activities would be based on region 
specific BMPs as well as other recommended practices such as record keeping or farmer 
education. A proposed list of these activities can be found on pages 81 and 82 of the NFMP.  
 
Comment: Please see FMR's response to question 3 above. The proposed mitigation activities are 
dangerously insufficient and should be modified to fully protect public health and achieve the goals 
of the 1989 Groundwater Protection Act.  
 
FMR would also like to remind the MDA that WRPRs may include nitrogen fertilizer rate restrictions 
that are more protective than the profit-based U of M nitrogen fertilizer use rates. In addition, FMR 
supports the recommendations of the Minnesota Center for Environmental Advocacy in the 
comments to this proposed rule with regard to the menu of menu of practices that could be required 
by a Commissioner’s order. These items include:  



• Cover crops, where effective, including in areas where they could be planted by September 1 
and following sweet corn, peas, small grains and corn removed for silage. 



• Alternative cropping systems, including alfalfa and other crops with low nitrate losses. 
• Use of low nitrogen input crops such as forage crops and other vegetative cover, and other 



“AMTs” identified in MDA’s NFMP.  
• Use of split application of N on coarse-textured soils. 
• Incorporate broadcast or inject side dress application of urea and UAN into moist  



soil to a minimum depth of three inches.  
• Restrict the use of U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPS that are “Acceptable , but  



with risk” if nitrate levels increase or BMPs are not used. 
• Use of nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve and urease inhibitors (UI’s)  



such as Agrotain and Limus when appropriate for reducing losses of yield and N.   
 



8. Emergency nitrogen fertilizer treatment approved by the MDA in response to extreme weather 
events or other causes of crop damage, loss or failure.  



 
FMR has not been able to locate information on the MDA's preferred approach to identifying 
conditions that would quality for approval of emergency nitrogen fertilizer treatment in response to 
extreme weather events or other causes of crop damage, loss or failure. Therefore we have no 
comment on this question at this time.   



 
On behalf of the board, staff, volunteers and members of Friends of the Mississippi River, I thank you for 
the opportunity to provide comments on the MDA’s proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule (MN Rules, 1573; 
Revisor’s ID Number R-04337.  
 
We look forward to working with the MDA and all water quality stakeholders to revise the current draft 
to better protect groundwater resources for all Minnesotans as required by the 1989 Groundwater 
Protection Act.  
 
Sincerely,  
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Trevor A. Russell 
Watershed Program Director 
Friends of the Mississippi River 
360 North Robert Street, Suite 400 
Saint Paul, MN 55101 
Phone: (651) 222-2193 extension #18  
Email: trussell@fmr.org 
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Friends of the Mississippi River

360 N Robert Street, Suite 400 • Saint Paul, MN 55101 • 651/ 222-2193 • Fax 651/ 222-6005 


Wo ki h Mi i i i Ri d i h d i h T i Ci i A 


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


Friends of the Mississippi River Page 1 of 12 
2013 Draft Minnesota Nitrate Fertilizer Management Plan Comments 



mailto:larry.gunderson@mn.state.us





                      
   


 
  


  
 


 
 


  
  


  
   
    
   
   
 


 
 


  
  


 
 


  
 


   


  
 


 
  


 
 


 
  


       
       


       
       


       
       


       
 


 
 


 


                                                 
    
     


  


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
•	 Identify and develop best management practices (BMPS) to ensure that the goals of the
 


Groundwater Protect Act are achieved;
 
•	 Promote BMP that are capable of preventing and minimizing degradation of groundwater; 
•	 Evaluate the use and effectiveness of these BMPs; 
•	 Evaluate agricultural pollutants in the groundwater resources; 
•	 Monitor groundwater for common detection pollutants; and 
•	 If voluntary BMPs prove ineffective, the MDA may adopt by rule Water Resource Protection 


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


Region 1 (Northwest) 6 50 44 0 8 8 
Region 4 (Central) 73 97 24 38 62 24 
Region 5 (East Central) 74 93 19 44 50 6 
Region 6 (West Central) 25 56 31 8 17 9 
Region 7 (Southwest) 34 56 22 6 29 23 
Region 8 (South Central) 18 62 44 7 19 12 
Region 9 (Southeast) 83 99 16 35 22 -13 


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


•	 Part 1: The first part of the rule will apply to areas of the state overlying vulnerable groundwater. 
In these vulnerable groundwater areas, nitrogen fertilizer applications either in the fall or to frozen 
soils will have restrictions. 


•	 Part 2: The second part of the rule will apply to areas where measured nitrate levels in 
groundwater are elevated and it has been determined that the nitrogen fertilizer Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) are not being adopted. Restrictions will be based on University of Minnesota 
Best Management Practices for Nitrogen Application. 


1.	 The MDA is considering using a definition of fall as after August 31st. Nitrogen fertilizer 
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


2.	 The MDA is seeking comments on whether the cost of complying with the proposed rule in the 
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


3.	 An area will be considered a vulnerable area if it meets any one of the following criteria: (A) 
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
I.	 The MDA's proposed rules fail to achieve the clearly stated non-degradation goal of the 


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


II.	 The MDA's proposed rule unreasonably limits application of the Groundwater Protection 
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


III.	 The MDA's mitigation criteria fail to meet the goals of the Act. Even when the MDA does 
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


a.	 Phase 1: For private wells, phase 1 is considered when 5% of the wells have nitrate 
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


b.	 Phase 2: For private wells, Phase 2 is considered when 10% of the wells have nitrate 
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


i.	 The state is hamstringing its own ability to deploy regulatory measures in the 
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


ii.	 The MDH is setting the state up for failure by proposing to limit regulatory 
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


•	 The MDA acknowledges this in the NFMP, noting that these nitrogen 
BMP recommendations focus on managing the “agronomic risk", and that 
other risks such as environmental and societal risks are not accounted for.8 


•	 The NFMP also states that "In areas with highly vulnerable groundwater, 
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
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iii. 


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
•	 Define the maximum sustainable level of nitrate loss to groundwater and 


surface water based on local conditions; and 
•	 Assign tailored nitrogen fertilization management BMPs that result in 


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


When the MDA does choose to consider moving to more "stringent" regulatory 
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


c.	 Phase 3 & 4: Phase 3 is considered when 10% of the private wells have nitrate levels 
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


4.	 Vulnerable groundwater areas will need recognizable boundaries. The MDA is proposing to use 
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


5.	 The MDA is considering exceptions to the first part of the rule restricting fall application or 
application to frozen ground for specific crops and/or agricultural practices. Exceptions being 
considered are: 


a.	 Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish cover crops. 


10 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 41. Available at:
 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf
11 Minnesota Department of Agriculture. 2015. Nutrient Fertilizer Management Plan. Page 57. Available at:
 
http://www.mda.state.mn.us/~/media/Files/chemicals/nfmp/nfmp2015.pdf
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b.	 Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish small grains. 
c.	 Nitrogen fertilizer needed to establish perennials in the fall. 
d.	 Nitrogen needed for fall pasture fertilization. 
e.	 Application of Monoammonium Phosphate (MAP) and Diammonium Phosphate 


(DAP) when following University of Minnesota phosphorus recommendations. . 
f.	 Land application of agricultural chemical contaminated soil in accordance with 


Minnesota Statute 18D.1052. 


FMR has no comment on these exceptions at this time.  


6.	 According to the Statute 103H.275, the Commissioner of Agriculture would issue a 
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


I.	 Limit application of regulatory mitigation criteria when profit-derived BMPs are being adopted, 
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


II.	 Limit any application mitigation criteria when groundwater that is not used as a drinking water 
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


7.	 The Commissioner’s Order will contain a list of activities required for mitigation that will be 
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


•	 Cover crops, where effective, including in areas where they could be planted by September 1 
and following sweet corn, peas, small grains and corn removed for silage. 


•	 Alternative cropping systems, including alfalfa and other crops with low nitrate losses. 
•	 Use of low nitrogen input crops such as forage crops and other vegetative cover, and other 


“AMTs” identified in MDA’s NFMP. 
•	 Use of split application of N on coarse-textured soils. 
•	 Incorporate broadcast or inject side dress application of urea and UAN into moist 


soil to a minimum depth of three inches. 
•	 Restrict the use of U of M nitrogen fertilizer use BMPS that are “Acceptable , but 


with risk” if nitrate levels increase or BMPs are not used. 
•	 Use of nitrification inhibitors (NI’s) such as N-Serve and urease inhibitors (UI’s) 


such as Agrotain and Limus when appropriate for reducing losses of yield and N.  


8.	 Emergency nitrogen fertilizer treatment approved by the MDA in response to extreme weather 
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
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From: Ann Galbraith Miller 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 9:04:04 AM 


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


Ann Galbraith Miller 
2921 E 1st St 
Duluth, MN 55812 
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From: Jane Galbraith 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 1:40:14 AM 


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


Jane Galbraith 
5741 13th Ave S 
5741  13th Ave.So. 
Minneapolis, MN 55417 
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From: Allen Gibas 
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


Allen Gibas 
4239A Abbott Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55410 
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From: Grecia Glass 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 6:10:13 PM 


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


Grecia Glass 
1266 Englewood Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55104 
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From: Raymond Gockowski 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 11:03:13 PM 


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


Raymond Gockowski 
1427 Cliff Ave 
Duluth, MN 55811 
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From: Esther Goldberg-Davis 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:51:27 PM 


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


Esther Goldberg-Davis 
2724 Raleigh Ave 
2724 Raleigh Ave 
St Louis Park, MN 55416 
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From: Gretchen Goodman 
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
 is already far too long and  mandatory requirements must be initiated now where nitrate is elevated in groundwater,
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


Gretchen Goodman 
13744 Shirley Dr. 
13744 Shirley Drive 
Burnsville, MN 55337 
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From: Janice Hallman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 7:51:15 PM 


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


Janice Hallman 
5355 Anderlie Lane 
St. Paul, MN 55110 
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From: Stacie Hang 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 8:05:19 PM 


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


Stacie Hang 
8272 Parell Ave. NE 
Elk River, MN 55330 
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From: Bob Haugen 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:42:02 PM 


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


Bob Haugen 
5813 36th Ave N 
Crystal, MN 55422 
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From: Wendy Heath 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:02:09 PM 


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


Wendy Heath 
9935 Briar Rd Apt 230 
Apt. 230 
Bloomington, MN 55437 
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From: Susan Hellstrom 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:58:01 PM 


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


Susan Hellstrom 
4704 Colfax Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55419 
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From: Charles Hoffman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 11:20:54 PM 


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


Charles Hoffman 
738 Forest Dale Rd 
New Brighton, MN 55112 
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From: Kris Hogquist 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:13:02 PM 


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


Kris Hogquist 
1911 Ashland Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55104 
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From: Shirley Huskins 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:02:24 PM 


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


Shirley Huskins 
1841 Eagle Ridge Dr 
Mendota Heights, MN 55118 
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From: Matt Johnson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:43:52 PM 


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


Matt Johnson 
3317 Garfield Ave 
Minneapolis, MN 55408 



mailto:northfalke@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Mary Ann Kastorff 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 8:59:30 PM 


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


Mary Ann Kastorff 
4647 15th Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55407 
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From: Gretchen Koehler 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 8:56:16 PM 


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


Gretchen Koehler 
1007 Madison St 
Saint Peter, MN 56082 
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From: Tyler Kukowski 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:05:09 PM 


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


Tyler Kukowski 
3331 25th Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55406 



mailto:tylerkukowski@hotmail.com
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From: Maria Alcaraz 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:06 AM 


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


Maria Alcaraz 
5749 24th ave s 
Minneapolis, MN 55417 
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From: Sally Allen 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 3:51:36 PM 


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


Sally Allen 
3523 Colfax Ave N 
Minneapolis, MN 55412 
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From: Lesli Anderson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 7:04:59 PM 


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


Lesli Anderson 
5207 11th Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55417 
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From: Lee Beaty 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 6:25:32 PM 


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


Lee Beaty 
2801 42nd Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55406 
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From: Karen Benson 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:52:29 AM 


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


Karen Benson 
1807 Sargent Avenue 
Edina, MN 55105 
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From: Laurence Bogolub 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:22:24 PM 


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


Laurence Bogolub 
1424 Lincoln Ave 
Lincoln Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55105 
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From: Peter H. Breyfogle 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 9:47:54 PM 


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


Peter H. Breyfogle 
4089 Brigadoon Dr. 
Shoreview, MN 55126 
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From: Aaron Brunette 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 2:23:20 PM 


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


Aaron Brunette 
1045 13th Ave SE 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 
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From: Ann Cader 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:32:13 PM 


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


Ann Cader 
2007 Berkeley Ave 
Saint Paul, MN 55105 
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From: Joan Carlson 
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


Joan Carlson 
14216 Woodhaven Rd. 
Minnetonka, MN 55345 
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From: Melissa Cathcart 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 11:43:10 AM 


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


Melissa Cathcart 
3018 38th Ave. S 
Minneapolis, MN 55406 
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From: Stephanie Chapman 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:09:22 PM 


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


Stephanie Chapman 
Golden Valley, MN 55422 


Stephanie Chapman 
2517 Parkview Blvd 
Golden Valley, MN 55422 
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From: Robert Chase 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:49:55 PM 


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


Robert Chase 
2558 Beacon St 
Roseville, MN 55113 



mailto:roverrob@comcast.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Bobbe Chock 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 4:53:56 PM 


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


Bobbe Chock 
314 4th ave ne 
lonsdale, MN 55046 



mailto:coolest.game.on.earth@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Carol Cochran 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:05 AM 


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


Carol Cochran 
1913 S 6th St Apt A 
Minneapolis, MN 55454 



mailto:cj70cochran@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






  


  


 


 


   


From: David Ellis Hollenhorst
 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA)
 
Subject: Comment on proposed nitrogen mitigation plan.
 
Date: Saturday, December 19, 2015 11:45:47 AM
 


Hello; 


The comment sheet states  "Person Affected.  The proposed rule likely affect local
 government, landowners, farmers, agricultural retailers and applicators as well as
 others in the agricultural industry." 


The ruling will also affect any person using groundwater, now and in the future. 


The ruling is specifically for an "agricultural industry".  This industry's pollution of
 public resources needs to be regulated. 


I support the proposed reduction of fall application of nitrogen on row crop land.  The
 ruling should be broadened to include all fall application of nitrogen on all row crop
 land.  The wash off to surface waters pollutes these public resources and wastes the
 nitrogen. 


Thank you. 


David Ellid Hollenhorst 
50570 Lands End Lane NE 
Elysian, MN 56028 



mailto:mehhed@frontier.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






   


 


From: Rod Sommerfield 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Comment on rule to stop Fall Nitrogen applications in Karst and sand areas 
Date: Friday, November 27, 2015 4:44:35 PM 


Mr. Gunderson
 We believe the stopping of Fall Nitrogen applications in these areas is decades over due.


 When one considers that newborns are most at risk from Nitrates in drinking water, it is hard
 to believe anyone can find justification for continuing this practice. Our farm was talked into
 trying Fall anhydrous back in the mid-70's and we stopped after one year. We do
 Regenerative Agriculture having significantly increased our soil organic matter and grown the
 A Horizon by double from what it was when our soils were first cleared. We currently produce
 a bushel of corn with no more than .6 pounds of purchased Nitrogen and many times less. We
 also feel no one should be allowed to apply Nitrogen at rates greater than 10 times the soils
 CEC. We believe the main drivers of this misuse are the Custom fertilizer applicators who
 want to spread there equipment and labor over Fall and Spring. There are many of us who do
 all we can to be Good Stewards of the Environment it is not fair to us when the State allows
 BAD Stewards to always have their way. 


Thank You! 
Rod & Rick Sommerfield 
Sunnyfield Farms Partnership 
48718 240th Ave. 
Mazeppa MN 55956 


This email has been checked for viruses by Avast antivirus software. 
www.avast.com 



mailto:sommerfieldr@sleepyeyetel.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

http://www.avast.com/

http://www.avast.com/






 
                


     
 


 


 
  
     


  
 


From: Steve Commerford 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: MDA Nitrogen Rule Comment letter 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 10:42:54 AM 
Attachments: MDA Nitrogen Rule Comment letter.pdf 


MN Groundwater study SE MN 2010-3 (2).pdf 


Larry 


Attached are my comments on the proposed MDA nitrogen rule and a copy of the SE Minnesota 
groundwater study that I referenced. 


Steve 


comagro@comcast.net 
Steve Commerford 
1901 Crestview Drive 
New Ulm, MN 56073 
507-359-4429 
507-327-8845 - cell 



mailto:comagro@comcast.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us
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Co m rnerf*r d Agro nofil Lss, Inc .



lndependent Crop Cansulting



Steven Commerf*rd
1901 Crestview Drive
I.lerv TJlm, MI.i 56*73



Cell {5s7) 327-8s45
Home {507} 359-4429



January 27,2A16



Larry Gunderson
Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division
Minnesota Departrnent of Agriculture
625 Robert Street North, St. Paul, MN, 55155
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RE: Comments on the proposed MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule'



I appreciate the oppornrnity to comment on the Minnesota Department of Agdculture (MDA) proposed



Nltogen nertitizer Rute. After rwiewing the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NF !F) which is



propo"sed to be put into rule, I have somJserious concerns regarding the-prTo:ed ry]e One concern is the



need for such a rule. Nitrogen fertilizer use in Minnesota has been flat for the last 25 years, while yields have



increased significantly because of improved management practices. Nitrogen fertilizer use efficiency today



is as high as-scientifii processes and iechnology allows. Miruresota farmers are not interested in using more



nitrogei fertilizer than is needed to optimize economic yields for the crops they produce' Competitive



pressures prevent them from doing otherwise.



Farmers in Minnesota use lower rates of nitrogen per acre than farmers in any of the sunounding states with



similm yield levels. This is due to the soil and climatic conditions that exist in Minnesota, as well as, the



need to maximize economic retu11rs. Both over and under application of nitrogen have negative impact on



yi.mr *O qualrty of crops grown in Minnesota; and therefore, tltere is no economic incentive to over apply



,rit og.r1 In additiorL tlere-is no evidence provided in the 2013 NFMP to indicate that groundwater nit€te



problems are increasing due to the use of nitrogen fertilizers'



A second concerrL with the proposed rule, is that nitate-nitrogen tests from domestic wells will trigger a



phrased regulatory approach toiitrogen fertilizer regulation. Th" I!ryA assumes a positive correlation of



well nitrate levels to nitrogen fertilizer use without providing scientific evidence to support this assumption.



It is common knowledge tlat most elevated nitrate levels are associated with site-specific well issues. Cracks



or holes in the casing and lack of grouting allow near surface water to easily enter a well, causing elevated



nitrate levels.



The attached study of 434 randomly selected wells in SE Minnesota documented that grouting prevented



wells from exceeiing the 10 ppm drinking water standard 100% of the time, with only 5o/o elevated above 3



ppm. To the contrary, wells without gtrouting exceeded the 10 ppm standard lTVoof the time with an



additional 3lyo elettatedabove 3 pptn Ctouilog is now required as pafi of the Minnesota well code. This



study is evidence that elevated niiate levels arapredominately due to site-specific well issues and not to the



general use of nitrogen fertilizer.



There are many sources of nitrate in surface soils that can move into wells" other than nitrogen fertilizer. The



largest ,oorr",-by far, is the mineralization of soil organic matter. Nitrate produced by this source is just as



susceptible to leaching and moving into wells, as any other source'



The use of domestic wells to trigger the phased approach to regulation is without foundation and sttould not



be used to trigger nitrogen fertifier regulations. The scientific evidence contradicts such an approach. Only











a>li



properly constructed dedicated monitoring wells shoutd be used to trigger the regulatory process. The



irfet-rasf.a regulatory progam was referenced as the model for the Minnesota pfogram' Nebraska only uses



dedicated m6nitoring wik in their progrum. They found that domestic and even irrigation wells were not



reliable indicators of groundwater aquiier nitrate ievels. Trying to relate domestic well nitrates lwels to



*trog* fertilizer use-is a flawed concept. The proposed regulatory process is likely.to impose management



restr[tions on nitrogen fertilizer when goundwater nitrate levels are not being impacted by nitrogen



fertilizer use. Instead, other factors arelitety to be the cause ofhigher nitrates in the wells.



A third concem of the proposed rule is the fact that the University of Minnesota nitrogen fertilizer guidelines



would be mandated. These guidelines essentially produce a single ni8ogen rate for all fields of a given crop



with the same previouu 
".opl 



One rate for all corn or wheat acres in the state with the same previous crop is



not improving nitrogen management. Farmers and Ag Professionals understand the site-specific nature of



nitrogen fertilize, *aouge*"n=t Regressing to a one size fits all approach degrades the existing maragement



abiliies that farmers *i eg professlonal bring to the table in establishing site-specifrc 
"tl98"tt 



management



for a given field or area witlin a field. Someone sitting in St Paul is mgch less capable of determining the



best nitrogen management approach versus a local Ag professional and farmer that are aware of all the



factors that impact the flranagemeot of a given field'



A recent five year MDA study demonstrated that existing U of Minnesota nitrogen guidelines were



inadequate in producing the highest economic refirrris. The study demonstrated that higher economic corn



,4.fOr ror obtained frim ratei tfrat were 30-40 lbs/acre higher than the existing University of Minnesota



nitrogen fertilizer guidelines. Many of the farmers that participated in this studywere workingwith local Ag



profe"ssionals. tn tlis case the study showed the need for higher rates. In other situations" the u of Minnesota
'goiA"Ur,", 



exceed tfr" opti*o* rates. Clearly, the MDA regulatory process needs to account for the expertise



if tocat Ag professionis ana more site-specific nitrogen nunagement research needs to be done by the



University of Minnesota.



In summary, the proposed MDA nitrogen rule should not proceed as published. There are serious questions



as to whether a rule wolld improve oriexisting managementpractices. Clearly, the proposed township well



testing program which would trigger regulation is seriously flawed. If groundwater nilrate levels are



moniioieO,-it shouldbe done using only, properly installed, dedicated monitoring wells' Changes in nitrate



levels in the monitoring wells stroutd Ue verifred as being due to nitrogen fertilizer use and not due to some



other cause.



If you have any questions, please contact me at the address below'



Sincerely



W*
Steven Commerford
Independent CroP Consultant,
190 I Creshrier,r, Drirre
New Ulm. Ml'{ 560?3



5{}7 -359-4429



CA
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By Jim Lundy, Hydrogeologist, Minnesota Department of Health, 
Source Water Protection and Linda Dahl, Executive Director, 
Southeastern Minnesota Water Resources Board



Introduction
This article summarizes results from the Volunteer Nitrate Moni-
toring Network (VNMN), a project that has yielded water quality 
data in domestic wells in southeastern Minnesota since 2008. 
Nitrate in drinking water has been concern at least since Kingston 
(1943) first described connections between geologic sensitivity 
and water quality in the karst of Fillmore County. The past two 
decades produced several additional important studies of nitrate 
in domestic drinking water supply wells of southeastern Min-
nesota. In 1994, the MPCA sampled a network of 55 (primarily 
domestic) wells in west-central Winona County (Wall and Regan, 
1994). While there was great variability in nitrate concentration, 
the study found hydrogeologic setting and well construction to be 
important controls on the occurrence of elevated nitrate concen-
trations.
Simultaneously, the Southeast Minnesota Water Resources Board 
(Board) received a baseline study of ground water quality across 
the nine counties under the board’s jurisdiction. Using MPCA 
Ground Water Monitoring and Assessment Program (GWMAP) 
data, MGS determined that “positive correlations of low nitrate 
levels with vintage waters and elevated nitrate levels with recent 
water indicate that sources of nitrate contamination in the ground 
water of the region result from activities at the land surface” (Tip-
ping, 1994). Though the baseline study is useful, county water 



planners recognized that only wells were sampled that complied 
with the Minnesota Water Well Construction Code. Consequently, 
water quality data were skewed toward properly constructed 
wells and lower nitrate concentrations, even though numerous 
southeastern Minnesota domestic wells pre-date the Minnesota 
Water Well Construction Code. Thus the baseline study may 
exclude domestic drinking water wells with the greatest nitrate 
concentrations. 
In 2004, the Board received federal 319 demonstration/educa-
tion/research funding to measure nitrate in domestic wells across 
the region. The VNMN study goal was to determine whether a 
volunteer drinking water supply well monitoring network, using 
low-cost, non-certified nitrate analyses, provided worthwhile 
information and could be sustained inexpensively. Ultimately, the 
complex study goal simplified to: What is the nitrate concentra-
tion of the drinking water?
Methods
The VNMN developed three well networks: 1) a “grid” network 
of randomly selected wells, comprising the majority of wells 
sampled in the study, and described further below; 2) a “base-
line” network, consisting of available wells originally sampled 
in Tipping (1994); and 3) “targeted” networks initiated in Dodge 
and Winona counties to address specific problems these counties 
identified. This project summary focuses on the grid and baseline 
networks.
To support a statistically defensible regional evaluation of well 
water quality, the grid monitoring network well selection proce-
dure potentially included wells of all types, even if construction, 
geologic record, or exact location was initially unknown. Six-
hundred and seventy-five uniformly spaced nodes were superim-
posed over the nine-county study area, and a circular search area 
(or “buffer”) approximately two miles in diameter circumscribed 
each node. County representatives recruited a randomly selected 
well owner within each buffer as a study volunteer. If the initially 
approached well owner was unable or unwilling to volunteer, a 
second randomly selected owner was solicited, and the process 
repeated until a volunteer was identified. In 15% of buffers, ulti-
mately no volunteer was identified. During the site visits county 
representatives also interviewed well owners to determine age 
and well depth, and recorded well location, diameter, and nearby 
potential nitrate sources.
Grant budget and timeline allowed for two sampling events per 
year (February and August) during 2008-2009. County staff 
mailed each participating volunteer a sample container with 
instructions to collect untreated aquifer water after running the 
pump for several minutes until the water temperature stabilized. 
No field measurements were recorded. After labeling and freez-
ing the samples, volunteers returned them by pre-paid postage to 
the county offices.
County staff received and stored frozen samples while awaiting 
batch analysis. Thawed samples were analyzed for nitrate using a 
table-top Hach 4000 spectrophotometer provided by MDA. Prop-
erly maintained and operated, these instruments have minimal 
deviations from laboratory nitrate measurements and minimal 
operator-operator variability (R2= 0.98 and R2 = 0.9587, respec-
tively; MDA unpublished information).
County staff transmitted well information and nitrate data to 



Volunteer Nitrate Monitoring Network, Southeastern Minnesota:  
Preliminary Data Assessment



— continued on page 10
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Volunteer Nitrate Monitoring Network, cont.



MDH staff as available. MDH staff reviewed the well data, 
checked locations, assigned unique numbers where necessary, 
and updated County Well Index (CWI) as appropriate. MDH staff 
also determined and tabulated the following well attributes: 
1. Matrix of the open interval (clastic bedrock, soluble bedrock, 
both clastic and soluble bedrock, low permeability material, qua-
ternary material, or unknown);
2. Aquifer designation, either by confirming existing CWI infor-
mation, or by comparison to nearby wells with defined geologic 
intervals;
3. Presence or absence of overlying protective geologic layers 
(DNR, 1991);
4. The documented presence or absence of casing grout, as re-
quired by the Minnesota Water Well Construction Code; and
5. Ground surface slope toward or away from the well casing.
Results and Discussion
Over the four sampling rounds, county staff received and ana-
lyzed nitrate samples for 553 of the 675 buffers in the original 
network. Failure to receive samples from the remaining buffers 
is due either to a failure to enroll a well in the study, or a lack 
of participation by the volunteer. Round 1 nitrate distribution is 
shown in Figure 1. 
Mean nitrate concentration varied by aquifer (Table 1). The great-
est average nitrate concentrations occurred in wells completed 
in the Prairie du Chien aquifer (5.0 mg/L, round 4), and the least 
average nitrate concentrations occurred in the Franconia Aquifer 
(0.4 mg/L, all rounds). The result reflects the fact that over much 



Table 1: Mean Nitrate Concentration by Major Aquifer, mg/L 
Aquifer Round 1* Round 2 Round 3 Round 4



Quaternary 2.4 (46) 2.9 (45) 2.7 (43) 3.0 (40)
Spillville 3.5 (18) 3.1 (17) 2.8 (17) 1.9 (16)
Galena 4.8 (33) 4.4 (33) 3.2 (31) 3.6 (30)



St. Peter 2.1 (27) 2.2 (30) 1.8 (30) 2.1 (28)
Prairie du Chien 4.2 (23) 4.3 (24) 3.6 (21) 5.0 (22)



Jordan 3.6 (65) 3.4 (66) 3.3 (68) 2.9 (64)
Franconia 0.4 (46) 0.4 (47) 0.4 (44) 0.4 (42)



* Number of samples indicated in italics 



of southeastern Minnesota the Franconia Aquifer is overlain by 
younger, protective geologic layers (sufficiently thick shale or 
clay). In contrast, aquifers from the Jordan upwards through the 
Quaternary sometimes lack such overlying protective layers.
Alternatively, we can classify by hydrogeologic setting, recog-
nizing that from the standpoint of nitrate, an aquifer’s geologic 
identity (St. Peter sandstone, or Jordan sandstone, for instance) 
matters less than whether an overlying protective geologic layer 
prevents easy recharge. Because the study tracked overlying geo-
logically protective layers and casing grout for each well, we can 
assess their importance in nitrate occurrence. The horizontal axis 
of Figure 2 contains four groups: 
1. Wells possessing both overlying geologic protective layers and 
casing grout; 
2. Wells possessing geologic protection but no casing grout; 
3. Wells lacking geologic protection but possessing casing grout; 
and 
4. Wells lacking both geologic protection and casing grout. 
— continued on page 11
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— continued on page 12



The vertical axis indicates the number of wells in each 
of three nitrate concentration categories: 
1. Low (green), where nitrate concentrations are less 
than 3 mg/L; 
2. Moderate (gray), where nitrate concentrations are 
greater than or equal to 3 mg/L but less than 10 mg/L; 
and 
3. High (red), where nitrate concentrations are greater 
than or equal to 10 mg/L. 
In the first well group (possessing both geologic 
protection and casing grout), 118 wells (100%) fall 
into the low nitrate range. In the second and third well 
groups (lacking either geologic protection or casing 
grout), 116 wells (77%) are in the low nitrate range, 
and 35 wells (23%) in the moderate or high nitrate 
ranges. In the fourth well group (lacking both geologic 
protection and casing grout), wells are evenly distrib-
uted (25-38%) in low, medium and high nitrate ranges. 
Eighty-seven percent of all high nitrate concentrations 
during round 2 occurred in wells lacking both geologic protec-
tive layers and casing grout. Because well owners seldom have 
control over the presence of geologic protective layers, the result 
underscores the importance of effective casing grout in  
maintaining water quality. 
During the study, changes in nitrate concentration appeared to be 
minimal, but a complete statistical analysis is not presented here. 
Such an analysis must account for changes to the network over 
time (at least six wells from the original network were replaced) 



Volunteer Nitrate Monitoring Network, cont.



Figure 2:  VNMN Round 2 Nitrate Concentration vs. Geologic 
Protection and Grouting
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because such changes may produce false indications of changes 
in nitrate concentration. For instance, after an early sampling 
round a volunteer with unexpectedly high nitrate may drill a new 
well that meets the Minnesota Water Well Construction Code, 
effectively excluding nitrate in subsequent sampling rounds. 
Inadvertent incorporation of the new well into the network thus 
contributes to an apparent decrease in nitrate, but it is only an 
artifact of improved well construction. 
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The maximum number of baseline wells resampled during this 
study occurred in Round 2 (August 2008; 44 wells). Figure 3 
shows the change in nitrate concentration for these wells over the 
time interval of 1994 to 2008. Thirty-six wells (82%) shown in 
grey did not change by more than 1 mg/L. Nitrate concentrations 
decreased by more than 1 mg/L in five wells, with a maximum 
decrease in one well of 7.2 mg/L. Two of these wells, including 
the well with the maximum decrease, remained in the high nitrate 
(equal to or greater than 10 mg/L) category. Nitrate concentra-
tions increased in three wells by more than 1 mg/L, including a 
maximum increase in one well of 14 mg/L (0 mg/L in 1994, 14 
mg/L in 2008). This well lacks both protective geologic layering 
and casing grout, so the increase could be due to intensification 
of the nitrate source at the ground surface. It could also be due to 
sampling or analytical error.
Study Benefits
The study provides drinking water quality information to the well 
owners in the study, and county and MDH staff are available to 
discuss results with individual well owners. A broader benefit 
is realized by recognizing the usefulness of this data for other 
related studies, for example as a check layer in a county nitrate 
probability mapping project. It may be possible to use the nitrate 
results at individual wells, along with available geological maps 
and other information, to define priority map areas where hydro-
geologic setting and measured nitrate concentrations indicate a 
significant risk of elevated nitrate. County staff could use this 
information to prioritize the most urgent delivery of outreach and 
technical assistance to help assure high quality drinking water for 
all domestic well owners, even those not a part of this study.



Future Work
One project goal was to sustain the volunteer monitoring network 
over time, and the original grant has been extended for three 
years, enabling annual sampling to continue at least through 
2012. The grant extension includes additional special projects 
to be conducted by five counties. If additional funding can be 
obtained, network wells could be sampled for analytes other than 
nitrate, including: major ions, trace metals, tritium, carbon-14, 
arsenic, radioƒnuclides, pesticides, and perhaps others.
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Steven Commerford Cell (507) 327-8845 
1901 Crestview Drive Home (507) 359-4429 
New Ulm, MN 56073 


January 27, 2016 


Larry Gunderson 

Pesticide and Fertilizer Management Division 

Minnesota Department of Agriculture 

625 Robert Street North, St. Paul, MN, 55155 

' i )1- ! 1..._. ~\ )~ .I . " ! i ! ,, 


RE: Comments on the proposed MDA Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. 


I appreciate the opportunity to comment on the Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) proposed 

Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule. After reviewing the Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) which is 

proposed to be put into rule, I have some serious concerns regarding the proposed rule. One concern is the 

need for such a rule. Nitrogen fertilizer use in Mi1mesota has been flat for the last 25 years, while yields have 

increased significantly because of improved management practices. Nitrogen fertilizer use efficiency today 

is as high as scientific processes and technology allows. Minnesota farmers are not interested in using more 

nitrogen fertilizer than is needed to optimize economic yields for the crops they produce. Competitive 

pressures prevent tl1em from doing otherwise. 



Fam1ers in Mi1mesota use lower rates of nitrogen per acre than farmers in any of the surrounding states witl1 

similar yield levels. This is due to the soil and climatic conditions tl1at exist in Minnesota , as well as, the 

need to maximize economic returns. Both over and under application of nitrogen have negative impact on 

yields and quality of crops grown in Minnesota; and tllerefore, there is no economic incentive to over apply 

nitrogen. In addition, tl1ere is no evidence provided in the 2013 NFMP to indicate tl1at groundwater nitrate 

problems are increasing due to tile use of nitrogen fertilizers. 



A second concern, witl1 the proposed rule, is tllat nitrate-nitrogen tests from domestic wells will trigger a 

phrased regulatory approach to nitrogen fertilizer regulation. The MDA assumes a positive correlation of 

well nitrate levels to nitrogen fertilizer use without providing scientific evidence to support this assumption. 

It is common knowledge that most elevated nitrate levels are associated with site-specific well issues. Cracks 

or holes in tl1e casing and lack of grouting allow near surface water to easily enter a well, causing elevated 

nitrate levels. 



The attached study of 434 randomly selected wells in SE Minnesota documented that grouting prevented 

wells from exceeding tile 10 ppm drinking water standard 100% of tl1e time, witl1 only 5% elevated above 3 

ppm. To the contrary, wells witllout grouting exceeded tile 10 ppm standard 17% of the time with an 

additional 31% elevated above 3 ppm. Grouting is now required as part of the Minnesota well code. This 

study is evidence that elevated nitrate levels are predominately due to site-specific well issues and not to tl1e 

general use of nitrogen fertilizer. 



There are many sources of nitrate in surface soils tllat can move into wells, other tl1an nitrogen fertilizer. The 

largest source, by far, is the mineralization of soil organic matter. Nitrate produced by this source is just as 

susceptible to leaching and moving into wells, as any other source. 



The use of domestic wells to trigger tl1e phased approach to regulation is without foundation and should not 

be used to trigger nitrogen fertilizer regulations. The scientific evidence contradicts such an approach. Only 








properly constructed dedicated monitoring wells should be used to trigger the regulatory process. The 
Nebraska regulatory program was referenced as the model for the Minnesota program. Nebraska only uses 
dedicated monitoring wells in their program. They found that domestic and even irrigation wells were not 
reliable indicators ofgroundwater aquifer nitrate levels. Trying to relate domestic well nitrates levels to 
nitrogen fertilizer use is a flawed concept. The proposed regulatory process is likely to impose management 
restrictions on nitrogen fertilizer when groundwater nitrate levels are not being impacted by nitrogen 
fertilizer use. Instead, other factors are likely to be the cause of higher nitrates in the wells. 


A third concern of the proposed rule is the fact that the University of Minnesota nitrogen fertilizer guidelines 
would be mandated. These guidelines essentially produce a single nitrogen rate for all fields of a given crop 
with the same previous crop. One rate for all corn or wheat acres in the state with the same previous crop is 
not improving nitrogen management. Farmers and Ag Professionals understand the site-specific nature of 
nitrogen fertilizer management. Regressing to a one size fits all approach degrades the existing management 
abilities that farmers and Ag professional bring to the table in establishing site-specific nitrogen management 
for a given field or area within a field. Someone sitting in St Paul is much less capable of determining the 
best nitrogen management approach versus a local Ag professional and farmer that are aware of all the 
factors that impact the management of a given field. 


A recent five year MDA study demonstrated that existing U of Minnesota nitrogen guidelines were 
inadequate in producing the highest economic returns. The study demonstrated that higher economic com 
yields were obtained from rates that were 30-40 lbs/acre higher than the existing University of Minnesota 
nitrogen fertilizer guidelines. Many of the fanners that participated in this study were working with local Ag 
professionals. In this case the study showed the need for higher rates. In other situations, the U of Minnesota 
guidelines exceed the optimum rates. Clearly, the MDA regulatory process needs to account for the expertise 
of local Ag professionals and more site-specific nitrogen management research needs to be done by the 
University of Minnesota. 


In smmnary, the proposed MDA nitrogen rule should not proceed as published. There are serious questions 
as to whether a rule would improve on existing management practices. Clearly, the proposed township well 
testing program which would trigger regulation is seriously flawed. Ifgroundwater nitrate levels are 
monitored, it should be done using only, properly installed, dedicated monitoring wells. Changes in nitrate 
levels in the monitoring wells should be verified as being due to nitrogen fertilizer use and not due to some 
other cause. 


Ifyou have any questions, please contact me at the address below. 


~VL aruW{e,f. . 
Steven Commerford 
Independent Crop Consultant, 
190 I Crestview Drive 
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


MGWA Newsletter September 2010 10 







 


 
 


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


Figure 2: VNMN Round 2 Nitrate Concentration vs. Geologic 
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
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From: Dan Conner 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 7:59:27 AM 


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


Dan Conner 
15 Simon Trail 
North Mankato, MN 56003 
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From: Nels Paulsen 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Nitrogen Fertilizer Comment 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 3:05:37 PM 
Attachments: Nitro Fertilizer Comment.pdf 


Mr. Gunderson,
 
Please find a formal comment on the Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer attached.
 
Thank you,
 
Nels
 


Nels Paulsen 
Policy Manager 
Conservation Minnesota 
1101 West River Parkway, Suite 250 
Minneapolis, MN 55415 
Direct Line: 612-767-1567 
Main Line: 612-767-2444 
www.ConservationMinnesota.org 
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January 25, 2016



To: Mr. Larry Gunderson
 larry.gunderson@state.mn.us
 651-201-6168



RE: Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number 
R-04337



Greetings Mr. Gunderson,



I am writing to you on behalf of Conservation Minnesota. As an organization, we work to solve the 
conservation problems that are most important to Minnesotans.



We write regarding the Minnesota Department of Agriculture’s proposed rule adopting mandatory 
requirements to prevent nitrate contamination in groundwater. While this proposed rule is an impor-
tant step towards protecting Minnesota’s drinking water, the proposed rule does not go far enough. 
Restricting fall and winter nitrogen fertilizer application is essential to preventing contaminated 
groundwater. However, this restriction only applies to the most vulnerable areas within the state. And 
further more, many farmers already restrict their use of nitrogen fertilizers in the fall and winter. The 
rule should consider requiring fertilizer limitations on additional lands to ensure that our water is better 
protected for safe human consumption. 



Restricting nitrogen fertilizer use is only one means to safeguard drinking water - other options would 
create even more protection. A more extensive and comprehensive rule, requiring broader restrictions 
to even more areas of the state, would be a healthier option for Minnesotans. We appreciate the effort 
put into this proposed rule to improve water quality, but we believe the rule can go even further. Addi-
tional steps should be taken to protect Minnesota’s precious water resources, and this proposed rule 
leaves some vulnerable water resources needing additional protections. 



This proposed rule is on the right path to protecting drinking water for all Minnesotans. However, we 
ask that you continue to develop the rule to enhance those protections.



Thank you,



Nels Paulsen
Policy Manager
Conservation Minnesota 
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From: Patrick Murray 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Cooperative Network comments to MDA"s Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 5:13:25 PM 
Attachments: image001.png 


Cooperative Network Comments on Proposed Nitrogen Fertilizer Rule 1-29-16.pdf 


Hi Larry – 


Attached please find Cooperative Network’s comments to the proposed rule governing nitrogen
 fertilizer. Please feel free to let me know if you have any questions. Thanks and I hope all is well. 


Patrick 


PATRICK MURRAY | Director of Government & Member Relations 
Cooperative Network | 145 University Ave. West, Ste. 450 | St. Paul, MN 55103-2044 
patrick.murray@cooperativenetwork.coop 
www.cooperativenetwork.coop 
☎ 651-280-4901 (office) | 651-900-4078 (cell) 


The united voice for cooperatives in Minnesota and Wisconsin. 


UPCOMING EVENTS 
Co-op Communicators Workshop – Feb. 25-26 
Co-ops Yes! Youth Leadership Conference – March 7-8 
Minnesota Co-op Day at the Capitol – March 15 



mailto:Patrick.Murray@cooperativenetwork.coop

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us

mailto:patrick.murray@cooperativenetwork.coop

http://www.cooperativenetwork.coop/

http://www.cooperativenetwork.coop/wm/events/education/coopcommunicators.html

http://www.cooperativenetwork.coop/wm/education/youthprograms/web/coopsyes.html

http://www.cooperativenetwork.coop/wm/legislativeregulatory/minnesota/web/2016_Minnesota_Co-op_Day_at_the_Capitol.pdf












 
 



January 29, 2016 



 



 



 



Mr. Larry Gunderson 



Minnesota Department of Agriculture 



625 Robert Street North 



St. Paul, MN 55155 



 



Re:  Comments on Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer 



 



Dear Mr. Gunderson: 



 



Cooperative Network is an association of more than 400 cooperative businesses owned by 



residents of Wisconsin and Minnesota. Our diverse membership includes member-owned farm 



supply, financial, health care, mutual insurance, dairy marketing, processing, consumer, 



livestock marketing, communications, electric utility, housing, school district, and worker-owned 



cooperatives, among others. Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Minnesota 



Department of Agriculture’s (MDA) Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer. 



 



Comments regarding specific provisions in the proposed rule include: 



 



 The proposed rule and associated Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) 



identifies areas of the state where groundwater is vulnerable to contamination (i.e., sandy 



soils or karst geology).  Specifically, defining coarse textured soils based on Natural 



Resources Conservation Services classifications as dominated by sand and loamy sand is 



suggested. However, more accurate criteria reflecting the variability in groundwater 



vulnerability in the karst region is needed.  Depth of topsoil is one variable that can 



support fall nitrogen application. We believe that MDA should focus the NFMP and 



proposed rule to these vulnerable areas (i.e., sandy soils or karst geology) and explicitly 



state all other areas are not subject to the proposed rule.  



 



 Upon identification of priority areas, MDA should engage local stakeholders with 



knowledge of water conditions and farming practices. The local advisory teams should 



include farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions. 



 



 Notification of the proposed rule and subsequent priority areas should be sent to affected 



local units of government, farm organizations and local extension professionals. 



Cooperative Network participates in The Nitrogen Fertilizer Education and Promotion 



Team and sees its role as an opportunity to guide MDA efforts on the proposed rule. 



 











 Finally, we would prefer that the rule reflect that commercial nitrogen fertilizer only be 



permitted on non-sandy soils after soil temperature has reached 50 degrees Fahrenheit or 



below, with the use of an approved inhibitor at recommended rates.   



 



We plan continued engagement in on this process. It is critical to our agricultural cooperatives 



and their member-owners. Once again, we appreciate the opportunity to comment on this 



proposed rule, and we thank you in advance for your consideration of our comments. 



 



Sincerely, 



 
Matt Hughes 



Minnesota Managing Director 



Cooperative Network 
 












 
 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
  


 


  


 


 


 


  


 


  


 


 
 


 


 


January 29, 2016 


Mr. Larry Gunderson 


Minnesota Department of Agriculture 


625 Robert Street North 


St. Paul, MN 55155 


Re: Comments on Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer 


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


	 The proposed rule and associated Nitrogen Fertilizer Management Plan (NFMP) 


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


	 Upon identification of priority areas, MDA should engage local stakeholders with 


knowledge of water conditions and farming practices. The local advisory teams should 


include farmers and agronomists with knowledge of local conditions. 


	 Notification of the proposed rule and subsequent priority areas should be sent to affected 


local units of government, farm organizations and local extension professionals. 


Cooperative Network participates in The Nitrogen Fertilizer Education and Promotion 


Team and sees its role as an opportunity to guide MDA efforts on the proposed rule. 







  


 


  


 


 


  


  


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


	 Finally, we would prefer that the rule reflect that commercial nitrogen fertilizer only be 


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








 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Douglas Crane 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 8:27:19 PM 


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


Douglas Crane 
888 Cannon Valley Dr. Apt 207 
Northfield, MN 55057 



mailto:lo4251@charter.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Cynthia Crawford 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 8:10:12 AM 


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


Cynthia Crawford 
2908 Dakota Ave S 
Saint Louis Park, MN 55416 



mailto:pennyroyalcottage@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Karen Crowley 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 6:34:17 PM 


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


Karen Crowley 
7275 165th St. W 
Rosemount, MN 55068 



mailto:crowleyk1147@gmail.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Chelsea D"Astolfo 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 8:17:10 AM 


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


Chelsea D'Astolfo 
1009 1st St S 
Stillwater, MN 55082 



mailto:chelseamichele@yahoo.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 


 
 


From: Wright, Skip W (DNR) 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA); Berg, Jeffrey (MDA) 
Cc: Wright, Dave I (DNR) 
Subject: FW: Comments from DNR Groundwater Technical Staff and Climatology 
Date: Monday, February 08, 2016 3:34:45 PM 
Attachments: image003.png 


Hi Jeff and Larry: 


Just following up on our discussions with some technical comments we received from Greg Spoden
 and Steve Thompson’s group. 


1) From Greg Spoden(DNR State Climatologist) 


Greg said that using the climatological start of fall was a reasonable and commonly used reference
 point.  He said that his comments were not based on a detailed understanding of how the definition
 of fall would impact the new rules but rather reflected that using September 1st as the start of fall is
 a commonly used reference point 


2) From: Todd Petersen (DNR) 


I have two comments on the five page document entitled “Request for Comments, Proposed Rule
 Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer, Minnesota Rules, 1573; Revisor’s ID Number R-04337”. 
I have added sticky notes to the MDA pdf file and am attaching it to this email. My comments are
 also repeated below. 


On page 2, under 3.b., the MDA is proposing that karst or fractured bedrock be considered a
 vulnerable area. Please note that DNR will be publishing a statewide new karst feature class along
 with the Minnesota Hydrogeology Atlas, HG-02, Pollution Sensitivity of the Near Surface. The MDA
 may wish to reference this new karst feature class. 


On page 3, under 3.d., the MDA is considering using the DNR’s Procedure for Determining Near-
Surface Pollution Sensitivity. Note that the linked document in MDA’s Proposed rule summary is an
 older static version. A new procedural document will be published this spring with HG-02, the
 Minnesota Hydrogeology Atlas report on Near-Surface Sensitivity. Also note that the referenced
 DNR document describes a procedure to rate areas of near-surface sensitivity from Very High to
 Very Low. The MDA does not state which DNR ratings will be used for the Nitrate Vulnerability rules. 


Let me know if you have any questions.  Thanks, Skip 


From: Wright, Skip W (DNR) 
Sent: Monday, February 08, 2016 3:16 PM 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MPCA); Berg, Jeffrey (MDA) 
Subject: Comments from DNR Groundwater Technical Staff 
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
 Minnesota Hydrogeology Atlas report on Near-Surface Sensitivity. Also note that the referenced DNR
 document describes a procedure to rate areas of near-surface sensitivity from Very High to Very Low.
 The MDA does not state which DNR ratings will be used for the Nitrate Vulnerability rules. 


Skip Wright 
North District Manager -  Region 4 
Ecological and Water Resources 
398 Sibley Park Road NE 
New London, MN 56273 


(320)354-0083 








 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Leslie Dee 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:17:00 PM 


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


Leslie Dee 
14725 Natchez Ave 
Savage, MN 55378 



mailto:leslie1@mediacombb.net

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Laura Dillon 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:33:53 PM 


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


Laura Dillon 
3245 39th Ave S 
Minneapolis, MN 55406 



mailto:dlaura1@usiwireless.com

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us






 
 
 


 


From: Gamm, Mark 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Public Comments on Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer 
Date: Tuesday, January 26, 2016 3:41:10 PM 
Attachments: Dodge County comments regarding MDA nitrogen fertilzer rules.doc 


Hello Larry.
 
Attached please find written comments submitted by Dodge County Environmental Services

 Department.
 
Thank you
 


Mark Gamm 
Environmental Services Director 
Dodge County, Department 391 
721 Main Street North, Mantorville 55955 
Phone: 507-635-6273 
Cell Phone: 507-206-9265 



mailto:mark.gamm@co.dodge.mn.us

mailto:Larry.Gunderson@state.mn.us
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January 26, 2016


Larry Gunderson


Minnesota Department of Agriculture



625 Robert Street North



St. Paul, MN 55155



Subject: Comment on Proposed Rule Governing Nitrogen Fertilizer



The following comments relate to the criteria for determining “vulnerable groundwater areas”:



1. We believe that identification of vulnerable areas will be most accurate when done in cooperation with local governments. Many local governments have a long history of collecting drinking water data in attempt to recognize water quality trends and vulnerable areas. Dodge County was been collecting drinking water quality data, including nitrate concentrations, for over 20 years. We have identified vulnerable areas based on observation of strong correlation between nitrate concentrations and specific geologic conditions including depth to bedrock.  



2. We agree that the DNR’s methodology for determining pollution sensitivity would be an acceptable way to identify vulnerable areas but only if done in conjunction with data provided by recent Geologic Atlas prepared by MGS. Modeling is only as good as input data. 


The following comments relate to the boundary determination for vulnerable groundwater areas:



1. We believe residents of a township with only 49% of its surface area defined as “vulnerable” may be concerned if they are not afforded the same groundwater protection as a neighboring township with 51% of its area defined as vulnerable. It may be beneficial to provide opportunity to use features that define vulnerable areas more precisely than township boundaries. It seems reasonable to use major roadways or surface features such as rivers to more accurately define limits of vulnerability when supported by data (for example, when data is obtained as part of a recent Geologic Atlas or detailed groundwater sensitivity study). 



2. Related to the comment above, MDA rule may want to define a process in which the vulnerable area boundary can be amended over time in response to new data.  


Sincerely,



Mark Gamm



Dodge County Environmental Services Director



P:\EQDATA\Mark\Dodge County comments regarding nitrogen fertilzer rules.









  


  
  


    
    


  


  
 


 
  


  
 


 
 


 
   


 
      


   
   


    
   


   
 


    
   


    
 
 


   
 


         
      


        
       


     
     


  
 


   
    


  
 


 
 


 
 


  


       


Dodge County
Environmental Services 


721 Main St N •   Dept. 391  •   Mantorville,  MN 55955-2208
 
Phone: 507-635-6273
	


Email: mark.gamm@co.dodge.mn.us
	


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


1.	 We believe that identification of vulnerable areas will be most accurate when done in cooperation with local 
governments. Many local governments have a long history of collecting drinking water data in attempt to 
recognize water quality trends and vulnerable areas. Dodge County was been collecting drinking water 
quality data, including nitrate concentrations, for over 20 years. We have identified vulnerable areas based 
on observation of strong correlation between nitrate concentrations and specific geologic conditions 
including depth to bedrock. 


2.	 We agree that the DNR’s methodology for determining pollution sensitivity would be an acceptable way to 
identify vulnerable areas but only if done in conjunction with data provided by recent Geologic Atlas 
prepared by MGS. Modeling is only as good as input data. 


The following comments relate to the boundary determination for vulnerable groundwater areas: 


1.	 We believe residents of a township with only 49% of its surface area defined as “vulnerable” may be 
concerned if they are not afforded the same groundwater protection as a neighboring township with 51% of 
its area defined as vulnerable. It may be beneficial to provide opportunity to use features that define 
vulnerable areas more precisely than township boundaries. It seems reasonable to use major roadways or 
surface features such as rivers to more accurately define limits of vulnerability when supported by data (for 
example, when data is obtained as part of a recent Geologic Atlas or detailed groundwater sensitivity 
study). 


2.	 Related to the comment above, MDA rule may want to define a process in which the vulnerable area 
boundary can be amended over time in response to new data. 


Sincerely, 


Mark Gamm 
Dodge County Environmental Services Director 


C:\Users\afelix\AppData\Local\Temp\4\A9R1B1.tmp\Dodge County comments regarding MDA nitrogen f.doc 



mailto:mark.gamm@co.dodge.mn.us






 


       
     


       
     


 
       


     
 


     


From: Kay Doyle 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 5:03:06 PM 


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


Kay Doyle 
2232 Vermilion Rd. 
Duluth, MN 55803 



mailto:kaymattdoyle@hotmail.com
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From: Greg Dutton 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 6:40:47 PM 


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


Greg Dutton 
3204 E 51st St 
Minneapolis, MN 55417 
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From: Stephanie Elko 
To: Gunderson, Larry (MDA) 
Subject: Prevent Nitrate Contamination 
Date: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 8:19:28 PM 


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


Stephanie Elko 
267 Roma Ave 
Roseville, MN 55113 



mailto:stephanie.elko@gmail.com
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Larry Gunderson, 651-201-6168 


625 Robert St. N., St. Paul, MN 55155 
www.mda.state.mn.us 
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In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this information is available in alternative forms 
of communication  upon request by calling 651/201-6000. TTY users can call the Minnesota Relay 


Service at 711. 
The MDA is an equal opportunity employer and provider.  
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